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OFFice oF THE GOVERNOR

PauL E. PATTON 700 CapPiToL AVENUE
GOVERNOR Suite 100
FrRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601
(502) 564-2611
Fax (502) 564-2517

December 20, 2002

My Fellow Kentuckians:

| am proud to present the Commonwealth of Kentucky's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Thisreporthas been prepared by the Finance and Administration Cabinet, Office of the
Controller, Division of Statewide Accounting Services, and audited by the independent
Office of the Auditor of Public Accounts. It complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for State Governments as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants for measuring the financial activity of the government's various funds.

The information contained herein fairly presents and fully discloses all appropriate
financialinformation required for taxpayers, investors, creditors,and others to understand
and evaluate Kentucky's financial position.

Sincerely,

Jal Htes

Paul E. Patton
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PauL E. PatToN OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY Gordon C. Duke
GOVERNOR FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION CABINET Secretary
383 CaPITOL ANNEX
FrankrFort, KENTUckY 40601
(502)564-4240
(502) 564-6785 Fax

December 20, 2002

TheHonorablePaul E. Patton
Governor, Commonwedl thof Kentucky
TheCapitol Building

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Dear Governor Patton:

INTRODUCTION

In accordance with Section 48.800 (3) of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (K.R.S.), itismy pleasureto transmit to you the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Kentucky for theFiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2002. Thisreportisprepared by theFinance
and Administration Cabinet, Office of the Controller, Division of Statewide Accounting Services, which isresponsiblefor the accurate,
complete, and fair presentation of the data contained herein. The information presented fully describes the Commonwealth’ s financial
position and results of operationsof the primary government and component unitsfor whichitisfinancially accountable. All appropriate
disclosures necessary for the reader to gain the maximum understanding of Kentucky’ sfinancial affairs are included.

Thereport is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. Theintroductory section includesthetransmittal letters,
the2001 Certificateof Achievement, organizational chartandlist of principal officials. Thefinancial sectionincludes: theauditor’ sreport
on the Basic Financial Statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which provides an introduction, overview and
analysistothe" Basic Financial Statements’; theBasic Financial Statements, which present thegovernment-widefinancial statementsand
fund financial statements for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and component units, together with footnotes to
theBasicFinancial Statements; Required Supplementary InformationotherthanM D & A, which presentsbudgetary comparison schedules
and information about infrastructure assets; and the supplemental financial datawhich includes the combining financial statements and
schedules. The statistical section includes such items astrend information, debt information and other selected economic and stati stical
data.

The Reporting Entity and its Services

Thisreportincludesall funds, and component unitsfor which the Commonwealthisfinancially accountable, based on criteriaestablished
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’ s Statement 14. The component units which are blended into the Commonwealth’s
primary government are: the State Property and Buildings Commission, Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission, Kentucky Lottery
Corporation, Turnpike Authority of Kentucky, Board of Agriculture, Kentucky SavingsBond Authority, Kentucky Retirement System,
Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System, and Judicial Form Retirement System.



The Commonwealth’s discretely presented component units are: the Bluegrass State Skills Corporation, Kentucky School Facilities
Construction Commission, Kentucky River Authority, Kentucky State Fair Board, Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation, Kentucky
Educational Television Authority, Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Kentucky Higher Education Assistance
Authority, Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corporation, Kentucky Educational Savings Plan Trust, Kentucky Housing
Corporation, Kentucky Infrastructure Authority, Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation, Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation,
Kentucky Local Correctional FacilitiesConstruction Authority, Kentucky Access, Kentucky Community and Technical College System,
and the eight state supported universities.

Additional detailed information pertaining to Commonwealth’s component units are located within the Financial Section of thisreport.

TheCommonwealth providesthefull rangeof servicescontemplated by statute, including economic devel opment, educational and human
services, energy and natural resources management, law enforcement, correctional and public protection services, transportation, public
improvements, and general legislative, administrative, and judicial services.

ECONOMICCONDITIONANDOUTLOOK

After adecade of remarkabl e economic growth the economy slipped considerably infiscal year 2002. Thenationwasinarecession. Real
grossdomestic product (GDP) declinedfor threeconsecutivequartersmakingit theworst performancesincetherecessionof 1991. However,
unlikethelast recession, average GDPfor theyear stayed positiveat 0.8 percent, becauselow interest rates managed to keep consumption
relatively high. Real consumptionfor fiscal year 2002 was 3.0 percent, with the consumption of durablesgrowing at aheady 8.4 percent.
Incentiveslikezero-percent financing for carsand trucksduring thesecond and fourth quartersof fiscal year 2002 resultedinal6.2 percent
increase in the consumption of light vehicles.

The Kentucky economy was heavily impacted by the recession. Even though Kentucky’s economic base had diversified over much of
the 1990s, the strong reliance on manufacturing jobs hurt both employment and income. Total nonagricultural employment fell slightly
infiscal year 2002, and personal incomewas up just 3.4 percent compared to 5.6 percent in the previousyear. The cause of Kentucky’s
dismal performancewastherapid drop in high-paying manufacturing jobs. Manufacturing employment saw a contraction of 4.9 percent
infiscal year 2002. (Theincreasein consumer purchases did not translate into increased manufacturing employment primarily because
imports soared in the face of a strong dollar.)

The outlook for both the national and state economiesis for slight growth during the current fiscal year. Kentucky’s nonagricultural
employment isexpectedtoincreaseby just 0.7 percentinfiscal year 2003, with personal incomerisingby 4.5percent. Neither of thesenumbers
represents the strong growth typically following arecession. Thisrather cautious outlook is due to the poor performance of the stock
market, and the slight possibility of factorslike war inthe Middle East and high oil prices causing the recovery to be slower than normal.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Fiscal year 2002 wasmarked by aseriesof revenue shortfallsand corresponding budget cutbacksreflecting aweak national economy that
many national analystsbelieve may have dropped into recession. The Commonwealth of Kentucky, along with over 40 other states, was
compelled to initiate spending reduction and budget cutback measures throughout the entire fiscal year. The first such reduction was
implemented effective July 1 after the Consensus Forecast Group adopted a reduced revenue projection prompting budget cutbacks for
fiscal year 2002 amountingto $326.7 millioninthe General Fund and $85.4 millioninthe Road Fund. Elementary and secondary education
aswell aspostsecondary educationand M edicaid wereexempt fromthisinitial round of cutbacksasamatter of policy. Authorized capital
construction projectsand local community devel opment projects were similarly exempted — also as amatter of policy.

Theoverriding policy goal adopted throughout thefiscal year —even asthe Commonwealth coped with aseriesof shortfallsin the enacted
budget —wasto maintain government operationswith thel east amount of disruption possible. That goal wasachievedinthat no perceptible
program cutbacksor servicereductionswerenecessary. Therewerenolayoffsof publicemployeesand no across-the-board program cuts.
Instead, the budget was balanced through a spend down of the Budget Reserve Trust Fund (the “Rainy Day” fund), through the transfer
to the General Fund of accumul ated balances and surplusesin non-General Fund accounts, and by selective cutsin administrative costs,
asharp curtailment of overtime, and a series of largely one-time reduction measures.

The Consensus Forecasting Group was reconvened by the State Budget Director in October and re-estimated revenues translated into
further budget cutbacks effected by a Budget Reduction Order in December resulting in an additional reduction of $200.1 millionin the
General Fund and $37.9 million in the Road Fund. Once again, elementary and secondary education were exempted from cutbacks, but
Medicaid and postsecondary education became subject to a two percent reduction. Capital project activity remained in place.



Whenthe General Assembly convenedin January initsregular biennial budget session, the Governor presented arecommended Executive
Budget predicated on agradual upturninthe state’ seconomy and anticipated revenue collections expected to take place midway through
thecalendar year. Unfortunately, the General Assembly wasunableto enact abudget for either the Executiveor Judicial Brancheswithin
thetimeframe permitted by the state Constitution duelargely to adispute over partial public financing of gubernatorial campaignsfor the
2003 electioncycle. Becausethe Commonweal thisconstitutionally required to enact abalanced budget prior to July 1, the period coinciding
with the commencement of the fiscal biennium, the Governor called the General Assembly into Special Session in late April. That
Extraordinary Session ended May 1 without the enactment of Executiveor Judicial budgets. Aswasthe caseduring the Regular Session,
thebudgetary impasse stemmed almost wholly from adispute over funding for partial publicfinancing of gubernatorial campaigns. There
remained very few significant differences between the House and Senate versions of the biennial Appropriations Bill.

By late June, with the fiscal year nearing an end and no L egisl atively-enacted budget on the horizon, the Governor issued an Executive
Order setting fortha“ Spending Plan” for fiscal year 2003 designed to keep the Executive Branch of government operational effective July
1—-and until such time asthe General Assembly reconvened inregular or special session and enacted acomprehensive Executive Branch
budget. There was no precedent in Kentucky for such an action, but there likewise was no known precedent for a General Assembly to
fail to enact an Executive Budget and Appropriations Bill prior to July 1.

A few dayslater, the Chief Justiceof the Supreme Court promul gated an Executive Order setting out aSpending Planfor the Judicial Branch
of government in order to ensure that the Court of Justice continued to operate in the absence of Legislatively-enacted appropriations.
Consequently, the Treasurer of the Commonwealthfiled alawsuitin Franklin Circuit Court inan attempt to determinewhether “ warrants’
on the Treasury could be honored, based on the Spending Plans promulgated by the heads of the Executive and Judicial Branches of
government. Immediately thereafter, the Spending Plans were challenged by representatives of leadership of the State Senate on the
grounds that only the General Assembly was empowered to authorize appropriations, although it was acknowledged that the Governor
has the power to spend for “essential” government functions.

Atthesametime, inthelast few daysof thefiscal year, athird Budget Reduction Order was executed designed to conform total spending
toactual receiptsfor fiscal year 2002. Thisamounted to an additional $155 million shortfall and accommodated through acombination of
spending reductions, fund transfers, and the exhaustion of the state’s Budget Reserve Trust Fund (“Rainy Day” Fund). Once again
elementary and secondary education were spared from budget cuts. A few daysafter June 30, afinal “technical” Budget Reduction Order
was executed during the statutory closeout fiscal period precisely conforming actual spending to actual revenue receipts at year’ s end.
Thislast action amounted to $5.3 millionin General Fund dollars. Cumulatively, fiscal year 2002 revenue shortfallsand budget reduction
actionstotal ed some$687 millionfor the General Fund—anominal dollar record shortfall eclipsed, in percentageterms, only onceinrecent
decades — by the still record reductions necessitated by the recession of 1982.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Accounting System and Budgetary Controls

The Commonwealth’ sfinancial statementsare prepared in accordancewith accounting principlesgenerally accepted inthe United States
of America. Additional discussions of the various funds and how they are reported are located in the Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) section of thisreport.

Indevel oping and operating the Commonweal th’ saccounting system, emphasi sisplaced on theadequacy of internal accounting controls.
They are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against 1oss from unauthorized use or
disposition, andthat financial recordsarereliablefor preparing financial statementsand maintaining accountability for assets. Theconcept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from their use,
and that such cost-benefit eval uation requires estimates and judgements by management. All internal control evaluations occur within
thisframework.

Budgetary control ismaintained at the budget unit level, described inthe notesto the Required Supplementary | nformation. Encumbrance
accounting is utilized to insure the availability of funding before contracts arefinalized. Contractswhich result in overruns of available
balances, are not released until budget revisions are approved. Outstanding encumbrances for long-term construction projects, in the
Transportation Fund and the Capital Projects Fund are reported as reservation of fund balance. Encumbrancesin all other funds lapse
at the end of the fiscal year.



Debt Administration

The amount of debt service for general bonded debt, the ratio of this amount to total expenditures for general governmental functions,
andtheamount of debt per capitaareuseful indicatorsto citizens, investors, and management regarding the Commonweal th’ sdebt position.
Thedatafor 2002is:

Debt Service (thousands) Ratioto Total General Governmental Debt Per Capita
General Bonded Debt $232,106 1.6% $167

No general obligation bonds were authorized or outstanding at June 30, 2002.

A detailed analysis of the Commonwealth’ s debt issuance during the fiscal year ended 2002 is presented in Note 15.

Cash Management, I nvestment and Collateral Policy

The Commonwealth of Kentucky’s investments are governed by KRS 42.500 and KAR Title 200 Chapter 14. The State Investment
Commission, comprised of the Governor, the Treasurer, Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet and gubernatorial
appointees of the Community Independent Banker’ s Association and the Kentucky Banker’s Association, is charged with the oversight
of theCommonweal th’ sinvestment activities. The Commissionisrequiredto meet at | east quarterly, and del egatesday- to-day investment
management to the Office of Financial Management.

At June 30, 2002, the Commonwealth’ s operating portfolio was approximately $3.7 billion in cash and securities. The composition of
investmentswasasfollows: U.S. treasury securities(18%); securitiesissued by agencies, corporationsand instrumentalitiesof the United
States Government, including mortgage backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations (45%); repurchase agreements
collateralized by theaf orementioned (19%); municipal securities(5%); and corporateand asset backed securities, including money market
securities (13%). Theportfolio hasacurrent yield of 3.00% and amodified duration of 1.43 years. Investment income through June 30,
2002was$221 millionversus$316 millionthepreviousfiscal year.

The Commonwealth’ sinvestments are categorized into four investment pools: Short-Term, Intermediate-Term, Long-Term, and Bond
Proceeds Pools. The purpose of these pools is to provide economies of scale that enhance yield, ease administration and increase
accountability and control. The Short-Term Pool consistsprimarily of General Fund cash balancesand providesliquidity totheremaining
pools. The Intermediate Pool represents Agency Fund investments, state held component unit funds and fiduciary fund accounts held
for the benefit of others by the state. The Long-Term Pool invests the Budget Reserve Trust Fund and other funds deemed appropriate
for the pool where liquidity is not a serious concern. The Bond Proceeds Pool is where bond proceeds for capital construction projects
are held until expended for their intended purpose.

TheCommonwealth of Kentucky engagesin sel ectivederivativetransactions. Thesetransactionsareenteredinto only withanabundance
of caution and for specific hedge applicationsto minimize yield volatility in the portfolio. The State Investment Commission expressly
prohibitstheuseof marginor other leveraging techniques. The Commonweal th executesavariety of transactionswhich may beconsidered
derivative transactions, which include: the securitieslending program, over-the-counter treasury options, interest rate swaps, and more
recently the purchase of mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations.

The Commonwealth has used over-the-counter treasury options since the mid-1980s to hedge and add val ue to the portfolio of treasury
securities. These transactionsinvolve the purchase and sale of put and call options on a covered basis, holding either cash or securities
sufficient to meet the obligation should it be exercised. The State Investment Commission limitsthetotal option commitment to no more
thantwenty percent of thetotal portfolio of treasury and agency securities. Historically, actual commitmentshavebeenlessthanten percent
of the portfolio.

The Commonweal th hashad asecuritieslending program sincethemid-1980s. The stateisableto enter into either aprincipal relationship
or anagent relationship. Inaprincipal relationshipthestatereversesitstreasury and agency securitiesinexchangefor 102 percent of eligible
collateral, marked to market daily. Eligible collateral isdefined as securities authorized for purchase pursuant to KRS 42.500. I n an agent
program the agent lends the states treasuries and agencies, takes the cash received from the loan and invests it in securities authorized
for purchase pursuant to KRS 42.500. Theincome generated by these transactionsis split between the agent and the state. At the present
time the state has entered into an agent agreement that has a guarantee of 10 basis points of the average market value of securitiesin the

program.



On September 28, 1995, the State I nvestment Commission adopted resol ution 95-03, which re-authorized interest rate swap transactions
in anotional amount not to exceed $200 million outstanding, using the International Swap Dealers Association, Inc. Master Agreement
and applicabl e appendices. The Commonweal th engagesin asset-based interest rate swapsto better manage its duration and to stabilize
the volatility of interest income. Currently, the Commonwealth has no asset-based swap transactions outstanding.

HouseBill 50f theFirst Extraordinary Sessionof 1997 wasenacted onMay 30, 1997. TheBill amended KRS 42.500to authorizethepurchase
of additional investment securitieswith excess funds available for investment. The new classes of investment securitiesinclude: United
Statesdollar denominated corporate securities, issued by foreign and domesti cissuers, including soverei gn and supranatural governments,
rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency, and asset-backed securities rated in the highest
category by a nationally recognized rating agency.

KARTitle 200 Chapter 14 provides, among other thingsthat: corporate securities, inclusive of Commercial Paper, Banker’ sAcceptances
and Certificatesof Deposit arelimited to twenty-fivemillion per issuer and astated maturity of fiveyearsor less. Money market securities
ranked A1-P1 or higher arelimited to 20 percent of any investment pool when combined with corporateand Asset-Backed Securities, and
must not exceed 25 percent of any investment pool. Asset-Backed must have aweighted-average life of not more than four years at the
time of purchase. United States Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMO) are aso
limited to amaximum of twenty-five percent of any investment portfolio. MBS must have astated final maturity of tenyearsor less, with
aweighted-average life of not morethan four yearsat time of purchase. CMO must have aweighted-averagelife of four yearsor lessat
time of purchase.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Division of Risk Management (DRM) provides oversight and coordinates risk management and insurance responsibilities among
variousstateagenciesin accordancewithKRS42.0245. For theyear ended June 30, 2002, the Division assisted in achievingacash savings
of $304,326 by obtaining lower bids from improved insurance bid specifications and by seeking broader markets. Risk exposuresin the
amount of $53,012,096 were eliminated for state agencies properties that were either uninsured or underinsured. The Finance and
Administration Cabinet insures property, computers, vehicles, telephones, fidelity bonds, and workers compensation with a total
insurancevalueof $462 millionannually for apremium of $253,000.

New risk management initiativesfully implemented for theyear includedinitiating acomputer applicationto standardizetheidentification
of stateinsured buildings for tracking methods of both the Department of Insurance and the Finance and Administration Cabinet. This
initiative provides more current property appraisals and expedites claims analysis.

Currently, the Commonwealth’ stwo major self-insurance programsinclude the State Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund for property and
casualty coverage and the State Self-Insurance Fund for Workers' Compensation benefits. The Finance and Administration Cabinet, in
accordancewith KRS45A.022, purchasesinsurance policiesto transfer to insurance companiesother financial and catastrophicrisksfor
various state agencies. One such coverageisthevehicleliability insurance policy, which insures 10,609 vehiclesfor an annual premium
of $3,094,104. Asof June30, 1999, the Commonweal th terminated thesel f-insured K entucky Kareprogram and offered coveragefor health
benefits through competitive bidding with the private health insurance markets. The Commonwealth expended $558 million for health
insurancefor the calendar year 2001.

TheStateFireand Tornado I nsurance Fund, created in 1936, insurespublicly owned buildingsand personal property, including computers,
against lossfromfire, windstorms, hail, explosions, floods and earthquakes. All state agenciesare required to secureinsurance fromthe
Fund against these perils. Earthquake and flood coveragefor all statefacilitiesare available asadditional insured perilsinthe Fund. The
Fund, inaccordancewithKRS56.070, iscomprised of anappropriationlevel of $5millioncombined with premiumschargedto stateagencies
and universities. By statute, the Fund must have areserve of $5 million at the close of each fiscal year.

Current Annual premiums of $6,474,405 insure $7,723,945,499 in property assets for 6,800 facilities throughout the state. Compuiters,
telephones, fineartsand other insured assetstotal $930,569,808. All lossesarereinsuredtolimitfundliability to $500,000for any oneloss
to each subject risk. The premium for reinsuranceis$3,839,250, a 183 percent increase from the previousfiscal year. For theyear ended
June 30, 2002, the Fund paid 293 claimsintheamount of $1,464,631.

The State Self-Insured Workers' Compensation Trust Fund, established in 1979, provides workers' compensation coverage for state
employees. AtJune30, 2002, the State program had assetsof $14.3 millionand an unreserved accumul ated deficit of $78.4 million. Premium
incomefor thefiscal year totaled $13.6 million, and the unreserved accumul ated deficit increased $14.5 million or 22.6 percent from the



previousfiscal year. The Fund carriesreinsurancecoveragefor largeindividual orincident claimsof $5million, withlimitsof $10million.
Theamount of claimspaidfor thefiscal year was$25.0million, whichis$7.8 millionlessthanfiscal year 2001. The Transportation Cabinet
hasaseparatesel f-insuredworkers' compensationfundfor itsemployees. Asof June30, 2002, theFundhasaclaimliability of $21.2million.
Total claim paymentsfor theyear were$3.5million. Thefund carriesreinsurance coveragefor claimsexceeding $1 million, with limitsof
$10million.

OTHERINFORMATION
I ndependent Audit
The accompanying financial statements have been audited by the Office of the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of
Kentucky. Their examination was conducted in accordance with government auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, andthestandardsapplicabletofinancial auditscontainedin Government Auditing Standardsissued by theComptroller General
of the United States. The report of the independent auditor appears elsewhere in this report.
Certificate of Achievement for Excellencein Financial Reporting

TheGovernment Finance OfficersAssociation of the United Statesand Canada(GFOA) awarded aCertificateof Achievement for Excellence
inFinancial Reportingtothe Commonwealth of Kentucky for itsComprehensive Annual Financial Report for theyear ended June 30, 2001.
This is the fifteenth consecutive year the Commonwealth has received this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of Americaand applicablelegal requirements.

TheCertificateof Achievementisvalidfor aperiod of oneyear only. Webelieveour current report continuesto conformto the Certificate
of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowledgments
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the cooperation of all branches and agencies of the
Commonwealth. The professionalism demonstrated by the staffs of the Finance and Administration Cabinet’ s Divisions of Statewide
Accounting Services and Printing, as well as the Office of the Auditor of Public Accounts, is especially noteworthy. Their combined
dedication made the publication of this report possible.

Respectfully submitted,

A ohis

Gordon C. Duke, Secretary
Finance and Administration Cabinet



Finance and Administration Cabinet

Paul E. Patton Office of the Controller Edgar C. Ross
Governor Capitol Annex Building Controller
Gordon C. Duke 702 Capital Avenue, Room 393
Secretary Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-3448

(502)564-2210
Fax (502) 564-5697

December 20, 2002

The HonorableGordon C. Duke

Secretary, Financeand Administration Cabinet
383 New Capitol Annex

Frankfort, Kentucky

Dear Secretary Duke:

Pursuant to Section48.800 (3) of the K entucky Revised Statutes, the ComprehensiveAnnual Financial Report (CAFR) of
theCommonweal th of Kentucky for thefiscal year ended June30, 2002, is submitted herewith. 1t containsall fundsof the
primary government and component unitsfor whichitisfinancially accountabl e, based onthecriteriadevel oped by the
Governmental A ccounting StandardsBoard (GASB) Statement 14.

Thebasi sof accountinguponwhichthereport hasbeen prepared complieswithaccounting principlesgenerally accepted
intheUnited Statesof A mericafor stategovernmentsasprescribed by both GA SB andthe A merican|nstituteof Certified
PublicAccountants (AICPA) publicationAuditsof Stateand L ocal Governmental Units.

The information presents fairly and fully discloses the financial position and results of financial operations of the
Commonwedl thfor thereporting period asmeasured by thefinancid activity of thevariousfunds. All appropriatedisclosures

necessary toass st readersintheir understanding andeval uation of Kentucky’ sfinancia conditionhavebeenincludedinthis
report.

Respectfully submitted,

e

Edgar C. Ross, Controller

Iﬁﬂﬁw
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Certificate of
Achievement
For Excellence
in Financial
Reporting
Presented to:

Commonwealth of

Kentucky

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2001
A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standardsin governmentaccounting

and financial reporting.
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Chart 1
General Fund — Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year 2002

(Expressed in millions)
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Chart 2
Governmental Funds — GAAP Basis
Fiscal Year 2002

(Expressed in millions)

Revenue Source Revenue Percentage
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EpbwarD B. HATCHETT, JR.
AUDITOR OF PuBLiIc ACCOUNTS

| ndependent Auditor’s Report

To the People of Kentucky

The Honorable Paul E. Patton, Governor
Mr. Gordon C. Duke, Secretary

Finance and Administration Cabinet

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and theaggregateremai ning fund information of the Commonweal th of K entucky,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, which collectively comprise the Commonwealth’ s basic financial statements aslisted in the
tableof contents. Thesefinancial statementsaretheresponsibility of the Commonwealth’ smanagement. Our responsibility isto express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

Wedidnot audit thefinancial statementsof someof theentitiesthat comprisethe Commonwealth. Thosefinancial statementswereaudited
by other auditorswhose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar asit relatesto the amountsincluded for those
component units and funds, is based upon the reports of the other auditors. Those entities were:

Certain portions of the Governmental Fundsincluding:

- Transportation Fund - Special Revenue Fund — Turnpike Authority
- Debt Service Fund — Turnpike Authority

Certain portions of the Proprietary Fundsincluding:

- Kentucky L ottery Corporation - Kentucky Workers' Compensation Special Fund
- Kentucky Coal Workers' Pneumoconiosis - Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance Program

Certain portions of the Risk Management fundswithin the Internal Service Funds:
- State Workers' Compensation Program - Transportation Cabinet’ s Self-Insured Workers
Compensation Trust Program

Certain Fiduciary Fundsincluding:

- Pension Trust Funds - Kentucky Affordable Prepaid Tuition Plan
- Kentucky Educational Savings Plan Trust

Component Units:

- Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Corporation - Kentucky Housing Corporation

- Bluegrass State Skills Corporation - Kentucky State Fair Board

- Kentucky Educational Television Authority - Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction

Authority

- Kentucky Infrastructure Authority - Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation

- Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority - Kentucky Economic Devel opment Finance Authority

- Kentucky Access - Kentucky River Authority
144 CAPITOL ANNEX 14 105 SEA HERO ROAD, SUITE 2
FRANKFORT, KY 40601-3448 FRANKFORT, KY 40601-5404
502.564.5841 AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER M/ F /D 502.573.0050

FACSIMILE 502.564.2912 FACSIMILE 502.573.0067
ehatchett@kyauditor.net @



To the People of Kentucky

The Honorable Paul E. Patton, Governor
Mr. Gordon C. Duke, Secretary

Finance and Administration Cabinet

Page 2

Colleges and Universities:

- University of Kentucky - University of Louisville
- Eastern Kentucky University - Kentucky State University
- Morehead State University - Murray State University

- Northern Kentucky University
- Kentucky Community and Technical College System

Thosefinancial statementsreflect total assetsand revenues of the government-widefinancial statementsand total assetsand revenuesor
additions of the fund financial statements asfollows:

Government-WideFinancial Statements: Per cent of Assets Per cent of Revenues
or Additions
Primary Government — Governmental Activities 6.57% 19.21%
Primary Government —Business-Type Activities 44.07% 60.81%
Component Units 96.59% 93.52%
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds—Major Funds 24.44% 8.35%
Governmental Funds—Non-Major Funds 43.11% 15.07%
Proprietary Funds— Business-Type Activities-

Enterprise Funds 43.93% 62.40%
Proprietary Funds — Governmental Activities—

Internal Service Funds 6.55% 11.40%
Fiduciary Funds— Pension Trust Funds 100.00% 100.00%
Fiduciary Funds— Private Purpose Funds 100.00% 100.00%
Component Units 96.59% 93.52%

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the standards
applicabletofinancial auditscontainedin Gover nment Auditing Standar dsissued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes ng the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, aswell as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide areasonable
basis for our opinions.

I'n our opinion, based on our audit and thereportsof other auditors, thefinancial statementsreferredto above, present fairly, inall material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remai ning fund i nformati on of the Commonweal th of Kentucky, asof June 30, 2002,
andtherespectivechangesinfinancial position and cashflows, whereapplicable, thereof for theyear ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

15



To the People of Kentucky

The Honorable Paul E. Patton, Governor
Mr. Gordon C. Duke, Secretary

Finance and Administration Cabinet

Page 3

Asdiscussed in Note 2 of the basic financial statements, the Commonwealth of Kentucky adopted Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions; Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments; Statement No. 35, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management’ s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Collegesand Universities; Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting
for Certain Shared Non-exchange Revenues; Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Satements—and Management’ sDiscussionand Analysis
—for Sate and Local Governments: Omnibus; and Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

Theaudit reportsfor Western Kentucky University and the Kentucky Center for the Artshave not been rel eased as of thedate of thisreport
and therefore those financial statements have not been audited. Western Kentucky University’s and the Kentucky Center for the Arts
financial activitiesareincludedinthebasicfinancial statementsasadiscretely presented component unitsand represent 2.76% and .30%
of assets and 2.47% and .20% of revenues, respectively, of the Commonwealth’ s aggregate discretely presented component units.

The management’ s discussion and analysis on pages 17 through 27, budgetary comparison schedul es and corresponding notes on pages
113 through 133, and information about infrastructure assets reported using the modified accrual approach on pages 134 and 135, and
claims development information for entity risk pools on page 136, are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting StandardsBoard. Weand the other auditorshave applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on thefinancial statementsthat collectively comprise the Commonwealth
of Kentucky’ sbasic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules—non-major funds, presented in
this report on pages 137 through 184 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not arequired part of the basic financial
statements of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Thisinformation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of
thebasicfinancial statementsand in the audits performed by other auditorsand, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other
auditors, isfairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statementstaken asawhole. The Introductory and
Statistical sectionspresentedinthisreport on pages1through 7 and 185 through 196 are al so presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not arequired part of the basic financial statements. Thisinformation has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
by us and the other auditorsin the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report on our consideration of the Commonwealth of
Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. That reportisanintegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gover nment Auditing Standardsand should
be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Respectfully submitted,

T

Edward B. Hatchett, Jr.
December 20, 2002

16



MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

17



MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management of the Commonwealth of Kentucky provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Commonwealth’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for readers of the financial statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the Commonwealth of Kentucky isfor thefiscal year ended June 30, 2002. We encourage readersto consider this
information in conjunction with the additional information that isfurnished in theletter of transmittal, which can befound preceding this
narrative, and with the Commonwealth’ sfinancial statementswhich follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS- PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Government-WideHighlights:

Net Assets - The assets of the Commonwealth exceeded its liabilities at fiscal year ending June 30, 2002 by $15.4 billion (presented
as “net assets”). Of thisamount, a negative $2.5 billion was reported as “ unrestricted net assets’. Unrestricted net assets represent the
amount available to be used to meet the Commonwealth’ s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Changesin Net Assets - The Commonwealth’s total net assets increased by $193.7 million (a1.3% increase) in fiscal year 2002. Net
assets of governmental activitiesincreased by $447.3 million (a2.9% increase), while net assets of the business-type activities
showed a decrease of $253.5 million.

Fund Highlights:

As of the close of fiscal year 2002, the Commonwealth’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $2.42
billion, a decrease of $186.5 million in comparison with the prior year. Of thistotal amount, $1.23 billion represents the “ unreserved
fund balances” with majority being in the special revenue fund. Included in the $1.23 hillion is a negative $36.0 million in the
General Fund, $1.22 billion in the Special Revenue Fund, $316.6 million in the Debt Service Fund, leaving a negative $265.5 million
in the Capital Projects Fund. The $1.22 hillion represented by the Special Revenue Fund is roughly 8.2 percent of the total
governmental fund expenditures for the year.

Long-Term Debt:
The Commonwealth’ s total long-term debt obligations increased by $502 million, or 9.2 percent during the current fiscal year. A
major contributing factor was the increase of $460 million of net bonds payable in Primary Governmental Activities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thisdiscussion and analysisisintended to serve as an introduction to the Commonweal th of Kentucky’ sbasic financial statements. The
basicfinancial statementsincludetwo kindsof financial statementsthat present different viewsof the Commonweal th—the Government-
Wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements and Combining Major Component Unit Financial Statements. These
financial statementsal soincludethe Notestothe Financial Statementsthat explain someof theinformationinthefinancial statementsand
provide more detail. This report also contains additional required supplementary information (budgetary schedules) and other
supplementary information (combining financial statements) in addition to the basic financial statementsthemselves. Thesecomponents
are described below.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements provide a broad view of the Commonwealth’ s operationsin amanner similar to aprivate-
sector business. Thestatementsprovide both short-term and long-terminformati on about the Commonweal th’ sfinancial position, which
assistsin assessing the Commonwealth’ seconomic condition at the end of thefiscal year. Theseare prepared using theflow of economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Thismeansthey follow methodsthat are similar to those used by most
businesses. They takeinto account all revenues and expenses connected with thefiscal year even if cash involved has not been received
or paid. The government-wide financial statementsinclude two statements:

The Statement of Net Assets presentsall of the government’ s assetsand liabilities, with the difference between the two reported
as‘“net assets.” Over time, increases or decreasesin the Commonwealth’ s net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the Commonwealth isimproving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presentsinformation showing how the government’ snet assets changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
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timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in
cash flows until future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also
presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the Commonwealth.

Both of the above financia statements have separate sections for three different types of state programs or activities.
These three types of activities are:

Governmental Activities—Theactivitiesin thissection aremostly supported by taxesand intergovernmental revenues (federal
grants). Most services normally associated with State government fall into this category, including education (support for both
common public schools and higher education), general government, health services, legal and judiciary services, museums,
natural resources, public safety and defense, regulatory services, social services, and transportation. Internal Service Fund
bal ances are reported as a part of the governmental activities.

Business-Type Activities— These functions normally areintended to recover all or asignificant portion of their coststhrough
user fees and charges to external users of goods and services provided by the State. The business-type activities of the
Commonwealth include the operations of various Enterprise Funds as listed later in the text.

Discretely Presented Component Units— These are operations for which the Commonwealth hasfinancial accountability but
they have certain independent qualitiesaswell. For the most part, these entities operate similar to private-sector businesses and
the business-type activities described above. The Commonwealth’ sdiscretely presented component units are presented in two
categories, magjor and non-major. This separation is determined by the relative size of the entities' assets, liabilities, revenues
and expensesin relation to the total of all component units.

The Commonwealth’ sfive discretely presented major component units are:

Kentucky Housing Corporation

Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Corporation
University of Louisville

University of Kentucky

Kentucky Community and Technical College System

The Commonwealth’s nineteen non-major component units are combined into a single column for reporting in the fund financial
statements. These non-major component units are:

Kentucky State Fair Board

Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation

Kentucky Educational Television Authority
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority

Kentucky River Authority

Kentucky Access

Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation
Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation

Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority
Bluegrass State Skills Corporation

Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission
Eastern Kentucky University

Kentucky State University

Morehead State University

Murray State University

Northern Kentucky University

Western Kentucky University

Completefinancia statementsof theindividual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. Addresses
and other additional information about the Commonwealth’s component units are presented in the notes to the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and analysis.
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Fund Financial Statementsand Major Component Unit Financial Statements

A fund isagrouping of related accountsthat is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities
or objectives. The Commonwealth, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal and contractual requirements.

Thefundfinancial statementsfocusonindividual partsof the State government, reporting the Commonwealth’ soperationsin moredetail
than the government-wide statements. All of the funds of the Commonwealth can be divided into three categories. It isimportant to note
that these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted differently.

The three categories of funds are:

Governmental FundsFinancial Statements—Most of the basi ¢ servicesprovided by the Commonweal th arefinanced through
governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the
governmental fund financial statementsfocuson near-terminflowsand outflows of spendableresources. They alsofocusonthe
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
government’ s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known the modified accrual basis of accounting. These
statements provide adetail ed short-term view of the Commonwealth’ sfinancesthat assistsin determining whether therewill be
adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs of the Commonwealth.

Becausethefocusof governmental fundsisnarrower thanthat of thegovernment-widefinancial statements, itisuseful tocompare
the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changesin fund bal ances provide areconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
andthegovernmental activities. Thesereconciliation’ sarepresented onthe pageimmediately following each governmental fund
financial statement.

The Commonwealth hasten governmental funds; five are considered major fundsfor presentation purposes and the remainder
are considered non-major. Each major fund is presented in aseparate column in the governmental fund bal ance sheet and inthe
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changesin fund balances. All the non-major funds are aggregated
together into onecolumnonthesestatements. TheCommonwealth’ smajor governmental fundsarethe General Fund, theFederal
Fund, the Transportation Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the Agency Revenue Fund. The non-major governmental funds
arean aggregateof the Special Revenue Fundsand Debt Service Funds. Thenon-major Special Revenue Fundsare Other Special
Revenue, Special Benefitsand Turnpike Authority. The Debt Service Fundsare Primary Government and Turnpike Authority.

Thebasic governmental fundsfinancial statementscan befoundinthe Fund Financial Statementssectionimmediately following
the Government-Wide Statements. Individual fund datafor each of the non-major governmental fundsis provided in the form
of combining statements as part of Other Supplementary Information of this report.

Proprietary FundsFinancial Statements—Thesefundsareusedto show activitiesthat operate morelikethoseof private sector
business. Proprietary fundsareused whenthestate chargesfor servicesprovided, whether itisto an outside customer (enterprise
fund) or to another agency withinthestate(internal servicefund). Proprietary funds, whichincludeenterpriseandinternal service
fundsusetheaccrual basisof accounting. Internal servicefundsarereported asgovernmental activitiesand enterprisefundsare
reported as business-type activities.

The Commonwealth hasfive enterprisefunds, of which all are considered major proprietary fundsfor presentation purposes. As
previously mentioned, they are the operations of the State Parks, the Kentucky L ottery Corporation, the Kentucky Horse Park,
Insurance Administration, and Unemployment Compensation Insurance. All other proprietary funds are aggregated into one
column titled Internal Service Funds on the Proprietary Funds Statements.

Thebasicproprietary fundsfinancial statementscanbefoundimmediately following thegovernmental fundfinancial statements
inthe fund financial statements section.

Fiduciary FundsFinancial Statements—Thesefundsare used to account for resourcesheld for custodial purposes. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to

20



support theprogramsof the Commonwealth. Theaccounting usedfor fiduciary fundsismuchlikethat usedfor proprietary funds.
They use the accrual basis of accounting.

The Commonwealth’ sfiduciary fundsare the Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Fundsand the Private-Purpose Trust
Fundswhich includesthe Kentucky Educational SavingsPlan Trust (adescretely presented component unit) and Agency Funds.
Individual fund detail can be found in the combining financial statements described bel ow.

Thebasicfiduciary fundsand similar component units’ financial statementscan befound immediately following the proprietary
fundsfinancial statements.

Other than the three previously mentioned fund categories, thereis also acategory for operations of the Commonwealth which
isindependent in some aspects. Those operations are classified as Discretely Presented Component Unitsin the:

Component Units Financial Statements — As mentioned above, Component Units are operations for which the
Commonweal th hassomefinancial accountability , but al so have certainindependent qualitiesaswell. Component Units
operate similarly to private sector businesses. The government-wide financial statements present information for the
component unitsin aggregate within asingle column of the statement of net assets. Also, information on the statement
of activitiesis aggregated for component units. The combining statements of net assets and the combining statement
of activities provide details for each major component unit and in aggregation for the non-major component units.
Individual non-major component unit detail can be found in the combining financial statements described bel ow.

Financial statementsfor major component unitsfollow the financial statementsfor fiduciary funds and fiduciary type component units.

NotestotheFinancial Statements- Thenotesprovideadditional information that isessential to afull understanding of the dataprovided
in the government- wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the discretely presented major component units financial
Statements.

Required Supplementary I nfor mation - Thebasicfinancial statementsarefoll owed by asection of required supplementary information.
Thissectionincludesabudgetary comparison schedule, whichincludesareconciliation between the statutory fund balancefor budgetary
purposes and the fund balance for the General Fund as presented in the governmental fund financial statements.

Other Supplementary Information
Combining Financial Statements- The combining financial statementsreferred to earlier in connection with fiduciary funds
and non-major component units are presented following the required supplementary information. The total columns of these
combining financial statements carry to the applicable fund financial statement.
Budgetary Detail - The Schedule of Expenditures and Intra-Agency Transfers — Detail Budget to Actual Comparison is

presented inthissection. It providesdetailed comparisonsof expendituresand intra-agency transfersat thelegal level of control.
Comparisons can be made between the original budget, final budget, and actual.
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Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Net Assets-Primary Government
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Change
2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001-2002

Current Assets $ 2055210 $ 2,189,501 $ 856,785 $ 720223 $ 2,911,995 $ 2,909,724 -0.1%

Capital Assets 16,470,304 17,097,185 206,484 221,517 16,676,788 17,318,702 3.9%

Other Assets 2,193,162 1,786,505 700,548 625,371 2,893,710 2,411,876 -16.7%

Total Assets $ 20,718,676 $ 21,073,191 $ 1,763817 $ 1,567,111 $ 22482493 $ 22,640,302 0.7%

Non Current Liabilities 3,972,043 4,326,574 1,633,561 1,627,808 5,605,604 5,954,382 6.2%

Other Liabilities 1,567,832 1,120,533 119,530 182,111 1,687,362 1,302,644 -22.8%

Total Liabilities $ 5539875 $ 5,447,107 $ 1,753,091 $ 1,809,919 $ 7,292966 $ 7,257,026 -05
Invested in Capital Assets

Net of Related Debt 15,022,791 15,678,028 220,546 220,996 15,243,337 15,899,024 4.3%

Restricted 1,176,705 1,524,926 1,252,635 451,761 2,429,340 1,976,687 -18.6%

Unrestricted (1,020,695) (1,576,870) (1,462,455) (915,565) (2,483,150) (2,492,435) 0.4%

Total Net Assets $ 15,178,801 $ 15,626,084 $ 10,726 $ (242,808) $ 15,189,527 $ 15,383,276 1.3%

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Assets
Asnoted earlier, net assets may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of agovernment’sfinancial position. Because the
Commonwealth of Kentucky isimplementing new reporting standards for thisfiscal year with significant changesin content and
structure, much of the information is not easily comparable to prior years. However, in future years, comparisons will be more
meaningful and will go further in explaining the Commonwealth’ s financial position and results of operations. The Commonwealth’s
combined net assets (governmental and business-type activities) totaled $15.4 billion at the end of 2002, compared to $15.2 billion at
the end of the previous year.

The current assets of the Commonwealth, 12.9 percent of total assets, are used to maintain the daily operations and provide services
to the citizens. A portion of the current assets, (19.9%) have externally applied restrictions and are not available to meet the
Commonwealth’s ongoing obligationsto citizens and creditors.

Changesin Net Assets

The Commonwealth’s net assets increased by $193.7 million or 1.3 percent. Approximately 49.0 percent of the Commonwealth’s
total revenue came from taxes, while 34.4 percent resulted from grants and contributions (including federal aid). Chargesfor various
goods and services provided 14.0 percent of the total revenues. The Commonwealth’ s expenses cover arange of services. The largest
expenses were for common public schools, higher education and humanities, human resources, and transportation. In fiscal year
2002, governmental activity expenses exceeded program revenues, resulting in the use of $7.58 billion in general revenues (mostly
taxes). On the other hand, net expenses from business-type activitiesin Fiscal Y ear 2002 exceeded revenues by $69.45 million, after
transfers.
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Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Changesin Net Assets-Primary Government
(Expressed inThousands)
For Fiscal Year 2002

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 1,072,378 $ 1,052,258 $ 2,124,636
Operating Grants and Contributions 4,366,372 220,812 4,587,184
Capital Grants and Contributions 646,847 646,347
General Revenues:
Income Taxes 3,171,395 3,171,395
Sales Taxes 3,343,082 3,343,082
Property Taxes 450,134 450,134
Other Taxes 493,042 493,042
Investment Earnings 49,259 49,259
Other 340,718 6,808 347,526
Total Revenues 13,933,227 1,279,878 15,213,105
Expenses:
Governmental Activities: General Government 1,917,289 1,917,289
Legislative and Judicial 243,571 243,571
Commerce 88,229 88,229
Education and Humanities 3,639,130 3,639,130
Human Resources 5,576,596 5,576,596
Justice 611,350 611,350
Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 114,496 114,496
Public Protection and Regulation 50,798 50,798
Transportation 1,093,070 1,093,070
Unallocated Depreciation
Interest Expense 335,499 335,499
Business Activities: State Parks 97,706 97,706
Lottery Corporation 475,944 475,944
Horse Park 6,715 6,715
Insurance Administration 156,851 156,851
Unemployment Compensation 612,112 612,112
Total Expenses 13,670,028 1,349,328 15,019,356
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets Before Transfers 263,199 (69,450) 193,749
Transfers 184,084 (184,084)
Change in Net Assets 447,283 (253,534) 193,749
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 15,178,801 10,726 15,189,527
Net Assets, End of Year $ 15,626,084 $ (242,808) $ 15,383,276

Business-TypeActivities

The business-type activities decreased the Commonwealth’ s net assets by $253.5 million. Thisresulted from a$85.3 million decrease
in net assetsby the Insurance Administration, and increasesin the net assets of $2.2 million by the Commonwealth’ sL ottery Corporation,
$1.3 million decrease by State Parks, $3.6 million increase by the Kentucky Horse Park and $172.7 decrease million by Unemployment
Compensation.
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Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
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FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE COMMONWEALTH'SINDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Asnoted earlier, the Commonweal th uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and
contractual requirements.

Governmental Funds - Thefocus of the Commonwealth’s governmental fundsis to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Commonwealth’ s financing requirements.
Because the Commonwealth of Kentucky isimplementing new reporting standards for thisfiscal year with significant changesin
content and structure, much of the information is not easily comparable to prior years. However, in future years, comparisons will be
more meaningful and will go further in explaining the Commonwealth’ s financial position and results of operations. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of agovernment’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Commonwealth’ s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $2.42
billion, adecrease of $186.5 million in comparison with the prior year. Just over one-half ($1.23 billion or 51%) of this total amount
constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending in the coming year. The remainder of fund balanceis reserved
to indicate that it is not available for new spending. The reserves have been established: (1) to fund statutory obligations ($835.5
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Revenues - Business Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
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million), (2) for inventory on hand at year end ($66.9 million), (3) to fund capital outlay ($260.1 million), or (4) for other restricted
purposes ($25.8 million).

The General Fund isthe chief operating fund of the Commonwealth. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of
the general fund was a negative $36.0 million, while the total fund balance reached $87.5 million. Asameasure of the general fund's
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved
fund balance represents -.54 percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 1.32 percent of that same
amount.

The fund balance of the Commonwealth’s general fund decreased by $311.4 million during the current fiscal year. Thisisa 78.66
percent decrease from the prior year.

Due to the downturn in the economy, the General Fund experienced an increased number of interfund transfers out, leading to a
decline in the General Fund’s fund balance. In fiscal year 2002, the General Fund increased the amount of transfers out from $303.0
million in fiscal year 2001 to $468 million in fiscal year 2002. Thisisan increase of about $165 million or a54.5 percent rise from
the previous year.



Proprietary Funds - The Commonwealth’ s Proprietary funds are used to account for activities which charge for servicesit provides
whether to outside customers (enterprise fubds) or to other agencies within the government (internal service funds). The
Commonwealth’s proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Asdiscussed in the business-type activities, the Commonwealth’ s net assets decreased by $253.5 million as aresult of operationsin
the enterprise funds. Thisresulted from a$172.7 million decrease (28.3% from prior year) in net assets by Unemployment |nsurance
and a decrease of net assets of $85.3 million (9.8) by the Commonwealth’ s Insurance Administration program.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Dueto thedownturnintheeconomy, the Commonweal th decreased estimated General Fund Revenuesby $171.5million. Taxescollected
still fell short of the revised estimate by $161.1 million.

The original appropriations were reduced by $254.0 million due to the shortfall in revenues. Appropriations were cut for all agencies,
excluding elementary and secondary education.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets- The Commonwealth’ sinvestment in capital assetsfor itsgovernmental and business-type activitiesas of June 30, 2002,
amountsto $18hillion, with accumul ated depreciation of $737 million, leaving anet book valueof $17.3billion. Thisinvestmentincapital
assetsincludesland, improvements, buildings, equipment, construction in progress, infrastructure and intangibles. Infrastructure assets
arenormally immovableand of valueonly to the Commonwealth, such asroads, bridges, streetsand sidewal ks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar items.

Thetotal increaseinthe Commonwealth’ sinvestment in capital assetsfor thecurrent fiscal year wasabout 3.7 percent intermsof net book
value. However, actual expendituresto purchase or construct capital assetswere$703 millionfor theyear. Most of thisamount was used
to construct or reconstruct roads and bridges. Depreciation charges for the year totaled $74 million. Additional information on the
Commonwealth’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of the “Notesto the Financial Statements” of this report.

I nfrastructur e Assets— The Commonwealth has el ected to utilize the “Modified Approach” option asit relates to guidelines set forth
inthe GA SB (Government A ccounting StandardsBoard), Statement Number 34. Under thisalternativemethod, referredto asthemodified
approach, the Commonwealth expenses certain maintenance and preservation costs and does not report depreciation expense. Assets
accounted for, under themodified approach, include 61,500 |ane miles of roadsand approximately 8,900 bridgesthat the Commonwealth
has responsibility for maintaining.

- There have been no significant changesin the condition levels of the infrastructure assets.

- The asset condition level established by the Commonwealth has been met and exceeded for the past two years.

- There have been no significant differences between the amounts estimated to be necessary to maintain and preserve infrastructure
assets at target condition levels and the actual amounts of expense incurred for theat purpose during the current fiscal period.

A morein-depth discussion of the Commonwealth’ sinfrastructure assetsislocated in the “ Required Supplemental Information” section
of thisreport.

Debt Administration - The authority of the Commonwealth to incur debt is described in Article X, Section 25, of the Kentucky
Constitution. 1n 1987, the Commonwealth created the Executive Bond Oversight Commission and the L egislative Bond Oversight
Commission. The commissions meet jointly to review all proposed debt issuance. Both commissions must approve each financing
plan before obligations are issued. The legislation that created the bond oversight commissions also created the position of
Commonwealth Bond Advisor, who advises the commissions, and must approve the pricing and fees associated with any debt
issuance.
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General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth including the Commonwealth’ s power to levy
additional taxes to ensure repayment of the debt.

The Commonwealth of Kentucky’stotal liabilitiesincreased by $257 million (a3.7% increase) during the current fiscal year;
however, long-term debt increased by $502 million, a9.2 percent increase. No general obligation bonds were were authorized or
outstanding at June 30, 2002. The key factor in thisincrease was the issuance of $976 million in Revenue Bonds (a 15.6% increase).

Additional information on the Commonwealth’ slong-term debt obligations can be found in Note 15 of the notes to the financial
statements of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORSAND NEXT YEAR'SBUDGETSAND RATES

The unemployment rate for the Commonwealth of Kentucky is currently 5.5 percent, which is an increase from arate of 4.1 percent a
year ago. This compares to the nation’ s average unemployment rate of 4.8 percent.

Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices as well. These factors are considered by |legislative |leaders and
management in preparing the Commonwealth’ s budget for future years.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the governmental funds decreased to $1.23 billion, with $1.22 hillion of
thisin the Special Revenue Fund and $316.6 million in the Commonwealth’s Debt Service Fund leaving a negative $36.00 millionin
the General Fund and a negative $265.50 million in the Capital Projects Fund. This $1.23 billion isroughly 8.3 percent of the total
governmental fund expenditures for the year.

On July 1, 2001, arevenue shortfall was declared for fiscal year 2002. The Consensus Forecast Group adopted a reduced revenue
projection prompting budget cutbacks amounting to $326.7 million in the General Fund and $85.4 million in the Road Fund. Further
budget cutbacks effected by a Budget Reduction Order in December resulted in an additional reduction of $200.1 million in the
General Fund and $37.9 million in the Road Fund. Then again, in the last few days of the fiscal year, athird Budget Reduction Order
was executed designed to conform total spending to actual receipts for fiscal year 2002. This amounted to an additional $155
million. A more comprehensive budgetary dissertation islocated in the “ L etter of Transmittal — Mgjor Initiatives’ section of this
report.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth has not yet passed aBudget for thefiscal year 2003 although there are very few significant
differencesbetweenthe Houseand Senateversionsof thebiennial AppropriationsBill. The Commonweal thispresently functioning under
a “Spending Plan,” as set forth by an executive order of the Governor, for fiscal year 2003 only. A more comprehensive budgetary
dissertation islocated in the “ L etter of Transmittal — Major Initiatives” section of this report.

Pursuant to Continuing Disclosure requirements and Rule 15¢2-12, a “Material Event Notice,” representing an S& P bond rating
downgrade, has been madeto the Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities|nformation Repositories (NRM SIR) and Trusteesfor the
affected bondsincluding State Property Building Commission (SPBC), Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KI1A), Turnpike Authority of
Kentucky (TAK), and Asset/Liability Commission (ALCo). The downgrade is due to the current downturn in the economy. A more
comprehensive bond downgrade dissertation is located in the Note 18, “ Subsequent Events” section of this report.

Asaresult of al of the present combined economic factors, the overall economic condition of the Commonweal th hasdeclined. However,
the Commonwealth looks forward to a slow, yet more favorable outlook for the coming year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

Thisfinancial reportisdesignedto provideagenera overview of the Commonweal th of Kentucky’ sfinancesfor all of Kentucky’ scitizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. Thisfinancial report seeks to demonstrate the Commonwealth’ s accountability for the
money it receives. Questions concerning any of theinformation provided in thisreport or requests for additional information should be
addressed to: Commonweal th of K entucky, Finance and Administration Cabinet, Office of the Controller, 702 Capitol Avenue, Frankfort,
KY 40601.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Prim ary Government

Governm ental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) $ 601,118 $ 72,155 $ 673,273 $ 741,234
Cash with fiscal agents 12,707 12,707
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5) 1,786,505 625,371 2,411,876 1,444,848
Receivables, net (Note 4) 1,472,327 73,268 1,545,595 2,603,019
Due from component units (Note 7) 62
Due from fiduciary funds (Note 7) 1,000 1,000
Internal balances (3,554) 3,554
Inventories 70,526 3,648 74,174 26,632
Prepaid expenses 8,483 505 8,988 2,926
Deferred charges 14,778 14,778 36,441
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) 12,116 567,093 579,209 456,840
Capital assets (Note 6):
Land 95,178 18,443 113,621 129,036
Improvements other than buildings 7,116 67,963 75,079 100,115
Buildings 755,456 165,395 920,851 2,759,427
Machinery and equipment 481,510 51,252 532,762 993,385
Other fixed assets 13,569 13,569 43,564
Easements and other intangibles 2,321 2,321 6,277
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (594,715) (142,370) (737,085) (1,997,003)
Construction in progress 2,324,621 58,513 2,383,134 374,438
Infrastructure 14,014,450 14,014,450
Total Capital Assets 17,097,185 221,517 17,318,702 2,409,239
Other assets 120,890
Total Assets 21,073,191 1,567,111 22,640,302 7,842,131
Liabilities
Accounts payable (Note 4) 849,906 168,196 1,018,102 223,301
Tax refunds payable 222,734 222,734
Accrued liabilities 3,925
Due to fiduciary funds (Note 7) 390 390
Deferred revenue 47,503 13,915 61,418 131,265
Other liabilities 49,592
Liabilities from restricted assets 2,465
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year (Note 15) 388,511 189,308 577,819 221,623
Due in more than one year (Note 15) 3,938,063 1,438,500 5,376,563 3,524,386
Total Liabilities 5,447,107 1,809,919 7,257,026 4,156,557
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 15,678,028 220,996 15,899,024 1,765,334
Restricted for:
Debt service 329,267 329,267 318,764
Other purposes (Note 1) 1,195,659 451,761 1,647,420 1,050,384
Unrestricted (1,576,870) (915,565) (2,492,435) 551,092
Total Net Assets $ 15,626,084 $ (242,808) $ 15,383,276 $ 3,685,574

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

31



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Functions/Program s Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Prim ary Governm ent:
Governmental Activities:
Generalgovernment $ 1,917,289 $ 249,343 $ 221,361 $ 38,065
Legislative and judicial 243,571 8,752 3,545
Commerce 88,229 27,918 14,797 241
Education and humanities 3,639,130 9,298 564,824 234
Human resources 5,576,596 419,916 3,404,258 3
Justice 611,350 32,730 45,727 701
Naturalresources and
environmental protection 114,496 21,547 55,540
Public protection and regulation 50,798 55,609 6,543
Transportation 1,093,070 247,265 49,777 607,603
Interest expense 335,499
Total Governmental Activities 13,670,028 1,072,378 4,366,372 646,847
Business-Type Activities:
State Parks 97,706 47,640 720
Lottery Corporation 475,944 638,728 8,322
Kentucky Horse Park 6,715 5,379 498
Insurance Administration 156,851 133,749 (4,937)
Unemployment Compensation 612,112 226,762 216,209
Total Business-Type Activities 1,349,328 1,052,258 220,812
Total Primary Government $ 15,019,356 $ 2,124,636 $ 4,587,184 $ 646,847
Component Units:
Authorities:
Kentucky Housing Corporation $ 226,426 $ 98,394 $ 136,962 $
Kentucky Higher Education Student
Loan Corporation 43,721 56,101
Other authorities 291,656 175,407 171,193 3,375
Universities and Colleges:
University of Kentucky 1,181,743 538,954 309,153 12,628
University of Louisville 489,511 244,945 86,348 2,514
Kentucky Community and
Technical College System 355,864 36,657 147,367
Other universities and colleges 697,154 232,229 129,640 23,647
Total Component Units $ 3,286,075 $ 1,382,687 $ 980,663 $ 42,164

General Revenues (Note 1):
Taxes:
Sales and gross receipt
Individual income
Corporate income
Property
License and privilege
Severance
Inheritance and estate
Miscellaneous taxes
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous general
Specialitems
Extraordinary items
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated
Net Assets at June 30

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Prim ary Governm ent

Governm ental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units
(1,408,520) $ $ (1,408,520) $

(231,274) (231,274)
(45,273) (45,273)
(3,064,774) (3,064,774)
(1,752,419) (1,752,419)
(532,192) (532,192)
(37,409) (37,409)
11,354 11,354
(188,425) (188,425)
(335,499) (335,499)
(7,584,431) (7,584,431)
(49,346) (49,346)
171,106 171,106
(838) (838)
(28,039) (28,039)
(169,141) (169,141)
(76,258) (76,258)
(7,584,431) (76,258) (7,660,689)

8,930

12,380

58,319

(321,008)

(155,704)

(171,840)

(311,638)

(880,561)
3,343,082 3,343,082
2,564,182 2,564,182
607,213 607,213
450,134 450,134
92,953 92,953
158,354 158,354
94,609 94,609
147,126 147,126

2 2 171,629

49,259 49,259 1,747

(3,768) (370) (4,138) 3,080

344,484 7,178 351,662 900,021

178,668

(1,194)

184,084 (184,084) 1,929

8,031,714 (177,276) 7,854,438 1,255,880

447,283 (253,534) 193,749 375,319

15,178,801 10,726 15,189,527 3,310,255

15,626,084 $ (242,808) $ 15,383,276 $ 3,685,574
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the State’s operating fund and accounts for financial resources appropriated by the
Genera Assembly that are not required to be accounted for in other funds.

TRANSPORTATION FUND

The Transportation Fund Accounts for activities related to the construction, preservation, and maintenance
of roads.

FEDERAL FUND

The Federal Fund accounts for monies received from the federal government to be spent on specific
programs and operations.

AGENCY REVENUE FUND

The Agency Revenue Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures of restricted taxes, fees, and charges
related to a particular function or activity. The General Assembly usually appropriates this fund.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
The Capita Projects Fund accounts for financial resources appropriated by the General Assembly for the
acquisition, construction, or renovation of major capital facilities, and for the acquisition of major

equipment other than that financed by proprietary funds, certain trust funds, and university and college
funds.

Non-Major Funds

Non-Magjor governmental funds are presented by fund type beginningonpage ..................... 140
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) $

Cash with fiscal agents (Note 5)
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Investments, net of

amortization (Note 5)
Receivables, net (Note 4)
Interfund receivables (Note 7)
Interfund loan receivable
Inventories

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note 4)
Tax refunds payable
Interfunds payable (Note 7)
Obligations under securities
lending (Note 15)
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Statutory obligations
Inventories
Deposit w ith fiscal agents
Loans receivable
Capital outlay
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Debt service fund
Capital projects fund
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

Non-Major Total
Agency Capital Governmental Governmental
General Transportation Federal Revenue Projects Funds Funds

168,689 $ 28,199 % 147 ¢ 18317  $ 95,582 $ 284,696 % 595,630
12,707 12,707

12,116 12,116

342 522,451 227,256 435,063 564,323 1,749,435
558,803 99,559 637,600 69,874 23,409 82,455 1,471,700
57,659 153,649 115,394 198,765 4,147 283,940 813,554
1,000 1,000
15,314 50,158 77 1,276 55 66,880
801,807 $ 854,016 ¢ 753,218 $ 527,604 $ 558,201 $ 1,228,176 3% 4,723,022
289,212 § 110,695 $ 398,920 $ 36,580 $ 26,167 $ 11,260 % 872,834
222,734 222,734
54,581 145,361 255,770 101,609 392 261,878 819,591
25,000 25,000
122,811 23,260 104,162 40,273 20,902 48,170 359,578
714,338 279,316 758,852 178,462 47,461 321,308 2,299,737
107,188 212,191 516,148 835,527
15,314 50,157 77 1,276 55 66,879
12,116 12,707 24,823

1,000 1,000
260,102 260,102

(36,033) (36,033)
312,352 (5,711) 335,750 577,546 1,219,937

316,560 316,560

(265,510) (265,510)

87,469 574,700 (5,634) 349,142 510,740 906,868 2,423,285
801,807 $ 854,016 ¢ 753,218 $ 527,604 $ 558,201 $ 1,228,176 % 4,723,022
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds
Tothe Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2002

(Expressed In Thousands)

Tota Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 2,423,285
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Land and other non-depreciable assets 83,862
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 925,358
Infrastructure 14,014,450
Accumulated depreciation (412,990)
Construction in progress 2,317,660 16,933,340

Certain revenues are earned but not available, and therefore, are deferred in
thefunds. 314,815

Other long-termassets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 18,224

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Heet M anagement,
Computer Services, Central Printing, Prison Industries, Property Management and
Risk Management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 82,104

Long-termliabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Capital lease obligations (19,463)
Compensated absences (236,874)
Long-termaccounts payable 3
Judgements and contingencies (280,832
Net pension obligations (78,016) (615,188)

Long-termbonded debt is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, is not
reported in the funds. Unamortized premiunts, loss on refundings, and interest payable
are not reported in the funds; however, these amounts are included in the Statement of
Net Assets. This is the net effect of these balances on the statement.

Bonds payable (3,405,046)

Notes payable (81,535)

Unamortized premiums and discounts (12,242)

Less deferred amounts on refundings 6,272

Accrued interest payable (37,945) (3,530,496)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 15626084

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Non-Major Total
Agency Capital Governmental Governmental
General Transportation Federal Revenue Projects Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 6,271,045 $ 952,808 $ $ 180,291 $ 70,565 $ 7,474,709
Licenses, fees, and permits 25,197 109,560 3 107,904 65,545 308,209
Intergovernmental 9,370 168 4,739,672 19,000 42,029 11,517 4,821,756
Charges for services 6,662 23,092 651 458,012 18,507 506,924
Fines and forfeits 44,760 (47) 2,971 6,485 54,169
Interest and other
investment income 33,848 33,416 445 6,195 61,461 53,020 188,385
Increase (decrease) in fair
value of investments 674 6,082 126 1,840 2,987 1,839 13,548
Other revenues 118,918 2,238 68,488 203,687 (34,753) 48,291 406,869
Total Revenues 6,510,474 1,127,317 4,809,385 979,900 71,724 275,769 13,774,569
Expenditures
Current:
General government 1,482,785 81,881 97,676 374,456 2,036,798
Legislative and judicial 229,408 3,470 6,516 121 239,515
Commerce 21,732 7,616 29,071 322 58,741
Education and humanities 2,910,511 616,019 45,505 12,377 3,584,412
Human resources 1,417,171 3,419,812 703,548 22,556 5,563,087
Justice 463,093 41,799 59,415 120 564,427
Natural resources and
environmental protection 65,473 48,312 19,679 10,460 143,924
Public protection and regulation 52,702 5,486 64,315 (1,739) 120,764
Transportation 7,748 1,075,283 547,433 52,285 41,312 1,724,061
Debt service:
Principal retirement 227,648 227,648
Interest and fiscal charges 124,625 124,625
Other expenditures (14,727) (14,727)
Capital outlay:
Buildings 483,145 483,145
Total Expenditures 6,650,623 1,075,283 4,771,828 1,078,010 483,145 797,531 14,856,420
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures (140,149) 52,034 37,557 (98,110) (411,421) (521,762) (1,081,851)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 294,389 1,967 10,241 351,421 47,784 992,871 1,698,673
Transfers out (468,035) (181,139) (21,275) (206,081) (74,257) (572,923) (1,523,710)
Capitalized leases 2,354 1,219 1,846 995 6,414
Notes payable 19,135 19,135
Proceeds from the sale of bonds:
New issues 653,696 653,696
Refunding issues 322,659 322,659
Premiums 44,824 44,824
Payments to refunded bond
escrow agent (321,565) (321,565)
Discounts (4,798) (4,798)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (171,292) (177,953) (9,188) 146,335 686,384 421,042 895,328
Net Change in Fund Balances (311,441) (125,919) 28,369 48,225 274,963 (100,720) (186,523)
Fund Balances at July 1,
as Restated (Note 2) 395,929 696,914 (34,017) 300,996 235,777 1,007,588 2,603,187
Increase (decrease) in inventories 2,981 3,705 14 (79) 6,621
Fund Balances at June 30 $ 87,469 $ 574,700 $ (5,634) $ 349,142 $ 510,740 $ 906,868 $ 2,423,285

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Changesin Fund Balances- Gover nmental Funds
Tothe Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

(Expressed In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds $ (186,523)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Assets disposed of, net book value (4,469)
Donated assets, fair market value 6,073
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable assets 2,93
Infrastructure 124,443
Accumulated depreciation (48,323)
Construction in progress 533,241 613,908

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 487,023

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds; however, they increase assets reported
on the Statement of Net A ssets and have been eliminated fromthe Statement of A ctivities
Prepaid Bxpenses 3,447
Inventories 6,621 10,068

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Fleet Management,
Computer Services, Central Printing, Prison Industries, Property Management and
Risk Management to individual funds. The net revenues (expense) of certain activities
of theinternal service funds are reported with governmental activities. (9,805)

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds; however, they either increase or decrease
long-termliabilities reported on the Statement of Net A ssets and have been eliminated
fromthe Statement of Activities.

Long-termaccounts payable 3
Excess contributions to pension funds (285)
Capital lease payments 5,835
Compensated absence payments (401)
Litigation payments 46,551 51,697

Theissuance of long-termdebt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-termdebt and related items.

Bond proceeds and premiums received (1,035,516)

Repayment of bond principal 227,648

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 321,565

Accrued interest (46,023)

Deferred issue costs 13,149

Loss on refundings 92 (519,085)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 447,283

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Funds

STATE PARKSFUND
The State Parks Fund accounts for revenues earned and expenses incurred in the commercial operations of
the Department of Parks.

KENTUCKY LOTTERY CORPORATION

The Kentucky L ottery Corporation, empowered by KRS 154A, administers the Kentucky State L ottery and
is pursuant to amended section 226 of the Constitution of Kentucky as ratified by voters of the
Commonwealth.

KENTUCKY HORSE PARK FUND
The Kentucky Horse Park Fund accounts for revenues earned and expenses incurred in the commercial
operations of the Kentucky Horse Park.

INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION FUND
The Insurance Administration Fund accounts for insurance risk pools operated by the state. These include:

Workers Compensation Fund provides benefits for workers with illnesses, which are not
attributable to one employer.

Coal Workers Pneumoconiosis provides benefits for workers with pneumoconiosis resulting
from exposure to coal dust created in the severance or processing of coal.

Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance Program provides for the cleanup of leaking
underground storage tanks in amounts that exceed the insurance required of the owners and
operators.

Mine Subsidence Insurance Program provides coverage against losses arising out of or due to
mine subsidence within this state.

Bond Pool Program provides coverage to reclaim surface mined land when the permit holder has
forfeited bonds posted for such purpose.

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND
The Unemployment Compensation Fund accounts for assessed employer contributions and related
unemployment compensation payments.

Internal Service Funds

Individual fund statements for the Internal Service Funds, whose combined totals are presented on this
Statement, DEGIN ON PAGE ... ... et e e e e e et e e et e e e e e e e e 152
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COMMONWEALTH OFKENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Cash on depositw ith the Federal
government (Note 5)
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Receivables, net (Note 4)
Interfund receivables (Note 7)
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Receivables, net
Capitalassets (Note 6):
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Easements and other intangibles
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note 4)
Interfund payables (Note 7)
Claims liability
Claims adjustment liability
Capitallease obligations (Note 10)
Notes payable (Note 15)
Prize liability
Compensated absences (Note 15)
Deferred revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims liability (Note 15)
Claims adjustment liabilty (Note 15)
Capitallease obligations (Note 10)
Prize liability
Compensated absences (Note 15)
Other liabilities (Note 15)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capitalassets, netof related debt
Restricted for:
Other purposes (Note 1)
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN

Business-Type Activities -

State
Parks

11,092

514
96
2,663
35

Kentucky
Lottery
Corporation

14,400

23,410

27,665

17,889

519
462

Kentucky
Horse
Park

23,739

13,567
52,499
142,475
13,800
2,321

(91,997)
57,089

69,945

722

363
231
466

189,754

225,498
3,606

423
327
7,143
32,360

(27,094)

1,790

213,493

13,159

1,544

4,453
15,137
15,777

2,668

(22,106)
1,424

227,893

242,263

17,353

6,898
691

62

2,521
3,451

312,208

18,897

13,623

9,416

339
47,802
717

20,687

94

2,909
102

58,274

491

18

284
12

3,105

205,019

805

16,728

205,019

293

189,598

13,223
8,344

263,293

302

211,165

12,820

36,095

1,107

40

48,915

17,326

1,659
595

19,580

INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.



Enterprise Funds

Insurance
Adm inistration

$ 34,434

30,957
237

65,628

344,152

2,424

(1,173)

1,251

345,403

411,031

2,390
367
128,617
7,927

1,003

140,304

1,159,612
69,683

779

1,230,074

1,370,378

1,252

(960,599)

3 (959,347)

Unemployment
Com pensation

$ 2,497
567,093

19,939
8,077

Totals
June 30,
2002

597,606

$ 72,155

567,093
27,665
69,662

8,641
3,648
505

Governm ental

Activities -
Internal
Service
Funds

2,773

749,369

$ 5,488

627
4,785
3,648
5,036

597,706
3,606

18,443
67,963
165,395
51,252
2,321

(142,370)
58,513

19,584

2,773

221,517

37,070

6,316
3,163
200,683
128,447

(181,725)
6,961

600,379

822,829

163,845

149,018
4,029

10,453

1,572,198

200,915

163,500

168,213
5,087
128,617
7,927
80

339
47,802
4,525
13,916

220,499

376,506

7,399
2,693
21,137

2,108

3,416
2,739

1,159,612
69,683
103
205,019
3,981
102

39,492

163,500

1,438,500

92,249

3,143

3,511

436,879

1,815,006

98,903

$ 436,879

220,996

451,761
(915,565)

138,395

3 (242.,808)

158,912

(76,808)

41
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Revenues:

Charges for sales and services:
State parks sales and services
Lottery sales
Horse park admissions and sales
Insurance receipts
Unemployment insurance receipts
Internal Service Fund Receipts
Other services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personnel expenses
Utilities, rental, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortization
Travel
Claims expense
Reinsurance expense
Claims adjustment expense
Prize expense
Other expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets
Interest and other investmentincome
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Interest expense
Other revenues (expenses)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) before Transfers
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated
Net Assets at June 30, as Restated

Business-Type Activities

$

Kentucky
State Lottery
Parks Corporation
47,640 $
638,728
1,027
48,667 638,728
48,250 11,480
12,316
30,861
5,981 2,627
274
384,227
73,918
97,682 472,252
(49,015) 166,476
(350)
(184) 23,449
236
(11) (15,127)
(13) (3,517)
(322) 4,805
(49,337) 171,281
48,320
(413) (169,000)
(1,430) 2,281
212,595 46,634
211,165 $ 48,915

Kentucky
Horse
Park

5,379

501

5,880

3,935
1,425
771

554
24

6,713

(833)

(3)
(19)

(2)

9)

(842)

4,491
(43)

3,606

15,974

3$ 19,580

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.

42



Enterprise Funds

Insurance
Adm inistration

133,749

1,921

Unem ployment
Com pensation

135,670

137,850

273,792

Totals
June 30,2002

18,497
2,724
819

437
384
128,873

1,286

329

411,642

$ 47,640
638,728

5,379

133,749

137,850

277,241

Governm ental

Activities -
Internal
Service
Funds

153,349

1,063

611,013

35

1,240,587

156,281
270

(17,679)

612,111

83,225
16,465
32,451
611,013
9,599
682
128,877

1,286
384,227
74,282

156,551

(17)
17,004
(21,941)

(3,503)

(200,469)

1,342,107

53,123
37,825
18,272
1,421
17,323
508
42,057
1,733

(8,457)

36,033
20

(101,520)

172,262

(26,136)

4,761
(63,954)

36,053

(370)
76,283
(21,670)
(15,140)

(7,033)

(15,711)

(85,329)

(874,018)

(164,416)

2,032
(10,278)

32,070

(1,623)
(188)
286
(497)
(1,194)

$

(959,347)

(172,662)

609,541

(69,450)

59,604
(243,688)

(3,216)

3$ 436,879

(253,534)

10,726

(18,927)

12,992
(3,871)

$ (242,808)

(9,806)

91,909

3$ 82,103
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities -

Kentucky
State Lottery
Parks Corporation
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers - public $ 50,482 $ 642,209
Cash received from customers - state 1,272
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (41,496) (483,837)
Cash payments for employee salaries and benefits (48,433) (11,480)
Cash payments for claims expense
Cash payments from other sources 1,027
Cash payments to other sources
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (37,148) 146,892
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds 48,320
Transfers to other funds (413) (174,145)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 47,907 (174,145)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (18,034) (4,059)
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and equipment contracts (46) (1,358)
Interest paid on revenue bonds and equipment contracts (11) (73)
Proceeds from the sale of capitalassets 9
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (18,091) (5,481)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investment securities 13,626 (1,053)
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities 29,188
Interest and dividends on investments 39 788
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 13,665 28,923
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,333 (3,811)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1 4,759 27,221
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30 $ 11,092 $ 23,410

Reconciliation of Operating Incom e to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (49,015) $ 166,476
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,981 2,627
Interest and other investment income
Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense)
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Receivables, net 548 3,375

Interfund receivables 104

Inventories (57) (179)

Prepaid expenses (25) 226
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,774 (1,787)

Interfund payables 374

Claims liability
Claims adjustment liability

Compensated absences 214

Deferred revenue 3,463

Other liabilities (509) (23,846)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (37,148) $ 146,892

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Change in fair value of investments $ 236 $

Capital assets acquired through leases 191

Accretion of investments held to fund grand prizes, which increased prize liability 15,054
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing A ctivities $ 427 $ 15,054

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Enterprise Funds

Governm ental

Activities -
Kentucky Internal
Horse Insurance Unem ployment Totals Service
Park Adm inistration Com pensation June 30, 2002 Funds
$ 5,145 $ 127,440 $ $ 825,276 $ 7,757
127 180,286 181,685 146,630
(2,465) (3,212) 49,518 (481,492) (58,749)
(3,964) (18,469) (1,063) (83,409) (49,948)
(4) (124,844) (124,848) (29,957)
501 2,429 273,792 277,749 271
(16,895) (607,019) (623,914) (2,357)
(787) (33,424) (104,486) (28,953) 13,647
4,491 4,761 2,032 59,604 13,194
(43) (63,954) (10,278) (248,833) (4,073)
4,448 (59,193) (8,246) (189,229) 9,121
(2,069) (197) (24,359) (22,917)
(17) (1,421) (2,060)
(2) (86) (497)
9 69
(2,088) (197) (25,857) (25,405)
(1,167) (4,831) 1,773 8,348 935
73,392 102,580 1,635
(4) 18,957 36,053 55,833 (299)
(1,171) 87,518 37,826 166,761 2,271
402 (5,296) (74,906) (77,278) (366)
320 39,730 644,496 716,526 5,854
3$ 722 $ 34,434 $ 569,590 $ 639,248 $ 5,488
$ (833) $ (17,679) $ (200,469) $ (101,520) $ (15,710)
554 437 9,599 17,323
(1,093) (1,093)
(3,691) (3,691)
63 (3,444) 40,058 40,600 599
(228) (1,090) (8,075) (9,289) 955
70 (166) 392
(8) 193 (2,608)
(329) (880) 49,517 48,295 (1,188)
(12,093) 4,029 (7,690) 3,826
957 957 10,381
5,124 5,124
(6) 28 236 (24)
(70) 10,454 13,847 (242)
(24,355) (57)
$ (787) $ (33,424) $ (104,486) $ (28,953) $ 13,647
$ 15 $ (21,941) $ 20 $ (21,670) $ 286
191 3,087
15,054
$ 15 $ (21,941) $ 20 $ (6,425) $ 3,373
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) trust funds account for monies received for and expenses
incurred by the various public employee retirement systems administered by the State. Kentucky uses the
following pension trust funds:

KENTUCKY EMPLOYEESRETIREMENT SYSTEM
COUNTY EMPLOYEESRETIREMENT SYSTEM
JUDICIAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

STATE POLICE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
KENTUCKY TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LEGISLATORS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
DEFERRED COMPENSATION SYSTEM

Agency funds account for monies held by the Commonwealth for custodial purposes only. Kentucky uses
the following agency funds:

COMMONWEALTH CHOICE
SPECIAL DEPOSIT TRUST FUND
COUNTY SINKING FUND

Private-purpose trust funds are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and interest
benefit individuas, private organizations or other goverments. Kentucky uses the following private-purpose
trust funds:

KENTUCKY EDUCATIONAL SAVINGSPLAN TRUST
KENTUCKY'SAFFORDABLE PREPAID TUITION PLAN TRUST
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Cash with fiscal agents (Note 5)

Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)

Receivables, net
Interfund receivables (Note 7)
Prepaid expenses
Buildings
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Interfund payables (Note 7)
Amounts held in custody for others
Interfund loans payable
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Held in trust for:
Employee retirement systems
Retiree's health insurance
Other purposes
Total Net Assets

Private -
Pension Agency Purpose Totals
Trust Funds Funds Trust Funds June 30, 2002
$ 1,757,083 $ 85,900 5,051 $ 1,848,034
22,864 22,864
26,656,908 113,926 40,260 26,811,094
274,787 4,962 27,037 306,786
2,705 2,705
155 155
3,802 3,802
28,692,735 230,357 72,348 28,995,440
26,970 143,023 138 170,131
2,314 2,314
85,020 85,020
1,000 1,000
3,507,959 52,200 3,560,159
3,534,929 230,357 53,338 3,818,624
23,815,386 23,815,386
1,342,420 1,342,420
19,010 19,010
$ 25,157,806 $ 19,010 $ 25,176,816

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions
Contributions:
Employer
Member
Total Contributions

Investment income:

Net increase (decrease) in fair value
of investments

Interest

Dividends

Real estate operating income, net

Securities income
Total Investment Income

Less: Investment expense

Less: Securities lending expense
Net Investment Income

Other additions
Total Additions

Deductions

Benefit payments

Refunds

Administrative expenses

Other deductions, net
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets Held In Trust

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated
Net Assets at June 30

Private-
Pension Purpose Trust Totals
Trust Funds Funds June 30, 2002
697,637 $ 697,637
678,416 34,841 713,257
1,376,053 34,841 1,410,894
(1,963,141) (3,025) (1,966,166)
695,423 155 695,578
95,029 716 95,745
29,207 29,207
79,914 79,914
(1,063,568) (2,154) (1,065,722)
11,979 186 12,165
68,047 68,047
(1,143,594) (2,340) (1,145,934)
85 85
232,459 32,586 265,045
1,487,371 1,730 1,489,101
27,100 10 27,110
195,349 1,265 196,614
3,495 25,319 28,814
1,713,315 28,324 1,741,639
(1,480,856) 4,262 (1,476,594)
26,638,662 14,748 26,653,410
25,157,806 19,010 $ 25,176,816

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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COMPONENT UNITS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major Component Units

KENTUCKY HOUSING CORPORATION

The Kentucky Housing Corporation was authorized under KRS Chapter 198A in 1972 to increase the
supply of housing for persons of lower income by making and participating in insured construction loans.
The Corporation also makes and participates in insured mortgage loans when financing is not available
from private lenders under reasonable equivalent terms and conditions.

KENTUCKY HIGHER EDUCATION STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION
The Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corporation was empowered by KRS Chapter 164A to
finance state and federally insured loans to students attending eligible post secondary ingtitutions through
direct loans to students and the purchase of student loans from lenders.
UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE FUNDS
The University and College Funds account for al transactions relating to the nine State-supported
universities and the community colleges and technical schools. These institutions maintain their own
financial records and are not part of the central accounting system operated by the Finance and
Administration Cabinet. The major component units-universities are:

UNIVERSITY OF KENTUCKY

UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE
KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM

Non-Major Component Units

The non-major component units are presented beginniNng ON Page «.........veeeiiieie i 176
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Investments, net of amortization (Note 5)
Accounts receivable, net
Interestreceivable
Due from component units
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash (Note 5)
Long-term investments (Note 5)
Long-term receivables, net
Deferred charges
Capital assets (Note 6):
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Other fixed assets
Easements and other intangibles
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Other assets
Total Noncurrent Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable (Note 15)
Bonds payable (Note 15)
Capitallease obligations (Note 10)
Compensated absences (Note 17)
Claims liability
Deferred revenues
Payable from restricted assets
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable (Note 15)
Bonds payable (Note 15)
Capitallease obligations (Note 10)
Compensated absences (Note 17)
Other long-term liabilities
TotalNoncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capitalassets, netofrelated debt
Restricted for:
Debtservice
Other purposes (Note 1)
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN

AUTHORITIES

Kentucky
Housing
Corporation

Kentucky
Higher
Education
Student Loan
Corporation

Non-M ajor
Component
Units
Authorities

50,630 37,659 194,435
3,603
148,296 43,511 66,537
36,637 754 45,428
19,919 4,125
62
579
171 903
9,287
235,563 102,014 324,959
68,332 9,129
179,312 175,047
1,079,690 716,069 390,814
16,848 11,525 3,381
942 14,719
83
4,409 282,054
6,164 4,521 67,858
12,880
(5.956) (3,011) (153,448)
364 9,271
5,923 1,510 233,417
4,657
1,281,773 797,436 816,445
1,517,336 899,450 1,141,404
30,912 3,825 19,211
3,925
2,525 99
27,060 30,540 64,294
269 1,709
5,531
8,794 6,453
22,368 2,695
91,659 34, 634 103,917
1,160,713 758,230 801,398
109
1,359 27,986
1,162,072 786,216 801,507
1,253,731 820,850 905,424
5,923 1,510 231,483
200,248 64,520
23,723 67,323
33,711 12,570 (62,826)
763,605 78,600 235,980
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UNIVERSITIES and COLLEGES

All
Kentucky Non-M ajor Component
University University Com m unity Component Units
of of and Technical Units Total
Kentucky Louisville College System Universities June 30.2002

245,567 31,772 54,936 126,235 741,234
4,305 7,908
64,615 26 27,325 350,310
124,485 42,723 18,787 41,738 310,552
10,299 2,406 36,749
62
14,689 1,659 3,718 5,987 26,632
1,852 2,926
16,551 1,959 27,797
395,040 157,320 77,467 211,807 1,504,170
110,776 45,318 105,307 110,070 448,932
615,881 29,035 26,178 69,085 1,094,538
25,143 23,309 6,486 14,207 2,255,718
4,687 36,441
30,936 37,052 16,358 29,029 129,036
45,552 6,863 12,911 34,706 100,115
902,384 482,934 285,541 802,105 2,759,427
437,604 209,091 68,661 199,486 993,385
30,684 43,564
500 5,777 6,277
(721,622) (304,266) (182,842) (625,858) (1,997,003)
140,750 29,739 80,206 114,108 374,438
835,604 461,913 286,612 584,260 2,409,239
6,998 81,438 93,093
1,587,404 571,260 424,583 859,060 6,337,961
1,982,444 728,580 502,050 1,070,867 7,842,131
95,210 35,539 6,154 32,450 223,301
3,925
229 1,278 4,131
17,515 10,926 8,020 19,055 177,410
5,940 1,535 1,410 3,266 12,151
380 1,161 7,087 9,742 20,348
2,052 7,583
42,624 27,959 15,115 30,320 131,265
2,465 2,465
12,433 7,728 4,368 49,592
174,102 77,349 45,514 104,996 632,171
1,425 8,329 4,723 14,477
193,751 119,264 59,675 157,092 3,250,123
42,866 1,464 40,082 84,412
1,870 8,613 415 11,007
61,004 19,579 3,164 51,275 164,367
300,916 157,249 62,839 253,587 3,524,386
475,018 234,598 108,353 358,583 4,156,557
607,663 328,326 217,507 372,922 1,765,334
14,132 21,811 2,409 15,644 318,764
498,747 68,389 144,656 247,546 1,050,384
386,884 75,456 29,125 76,172 551,092
1,507,426 493,982 393,697 712,284 3,685,574
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Program s Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Authorities
Kentucky Housing Corporation $ 226,426 $ 98,394 $ 136,962 $ $ 8,930
Kentucky Higher Education
Student Loan Corporation 43,721 56,101 12,380
Other authorities 291,656 175,407 171,193 3,375 58,319
Universities and Colleges
University of Kentucky 1,181,743 538,954 309,153 12,628 (321,008)
University of Louisville 489,511 244,945 86,348 2,514 (155,704)
Kentucky Community and
Technical College System 355,864 36,657 147,367 (171,840)
Other universities and colleges 697,154 232,229 129,640 23,647 (311,638)
Total Component Units $ 3,286,075 $ 1,382,687 $ 980,663 $ 42,164 (880,561)
General Revenues:
Unrestricted grants and contributions 171,629
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,747
Gain on sale of capital assets 3,080
Miscellaneous general 900,021
Special items 178,668
Extraordinary items (1,194)
Transfers 1,929
Total General Revenues and Transfers 1,255,880
Change in Net Assets 375,319
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 3,310,255

Net Assets at June 30

$ 3,685,574

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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COMMONWEALTH OFKENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Note 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

A. Basisof Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Statesof Americafor stategovernmentsasprescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Thefinancial
statementsfor theUniversity and College Fundshavebeen prepared
according to standards established by GASB Statement 35.

B. Financial ReportingEntity

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Kentucky
includes all fund types, departments, and agencies of the
Commonwealth, as well as boards, commissions, authorities,
corporations, colleges, and universities. These organizational
entitiescomprisethereporting entity of the Commonwealthand are
reportedinaccordancewith GASB 14. Conseguently, thereporting
entity includes organizationsthat are not legally separate from the
primary government and those which are legally separate.
Organizationsnot legally separatearereported aspart of theprimary
government. Legally separate organizations are reported as
component units if either the Commonwealth is financially
accountable or whose exclusion woul d causethe Commonwealth’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component
units may be blended or discretely presented. Blended component
units either provide their services exclusively or almost entirely to
theprimary government, or their governing bodiesaresubstantively
the same asthat of the primary government. All other component
units are discretely presented.

Auditedfinancial statementsareavailablefor thefoll owing blended
component units: Kentucky Lottery Corporation, Kentucky
Retirement System, Kentucky Teachers Retirement System, Judicial
Form Retirement System, and the Turnpike A uthority of Kentucky.
Auditedfinancial statementsareavailablefor all discretely presented
component units except the Kentucky Agricultural Finance
Authority, the Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation and the
Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission. (See pages
110 and 111 for acompletelist of component units' addresses.)

Blended Component Units

Thefollowinglegally separateorganizationsprovideservicesentirely,
or amost entirely to the State or otherwise exclusively, or almost
exclusively, that benefit the State, and theref ore, these organi zations
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bal ancesand transactionsarereported asthough they are part of the
State’ s primary government using the blending method.

Kentucky L ottery Corporation (KRS 154A.020)

TheKentucky L ottery Corporationisempowered by thel egislature
to administer the Kentucky state lottery games. The board of
directorsiscomprised of seven membersappointed by the Governor
with the advice and consent of the Senate.

TurnpikeAuthority of Kentucky (KRS 175.430)

The Turnpike Authority is a body corporate and politic created
solely to perform essential governmental functionsandto servethe
public purposesof constructing, acquiring, financing, and operating
turnpikeand other road projectsfor theuse, saf ety, convenienceand
general welfare of the traveling public, by leasing such projectsto
theTransportation Cabinet. Thesevenmembersof theauthority are
all ex officiomembers, includingthe Governor.

Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System (KRS161.220)

The Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System is an independent
agency andinstrumentality of the Commonwealth createdto provide
pension benefit plan coverage for local school districts and
educational agenciesof thestate. Theboardincludestwo ex officio
members and seven el ected members.

Kentucky Retirement System (KRS61.645)

The Kentucky Retirement System administers the Kentucky
Employees Retirement System, the County Empl oyees Retirement
System, andthe State Police Retirement System. Theboard consists
of the Secretary of the Personnel Cabinet, five memberselected by
theretirement systemsand threemembersappoi nted by theGovernor.

Judicial FormRetirement System (KRS21.530)

The Judicia Form Retirement System accounts for monies and
securities, including contributionsand earnings, that will beusedto
pay benefitstothemembersof thelL egislators' Retirement Planand
theJudicial Retirement Plan. Theboard consistsof eight members:
three of whom are appointed by the Supreme Court, two by the
Governor, oneby the President of the Senate, one by the Speaker of
theHouse of Representatives, and oneby the President and Speaker
jointly.

AdministrativeEntities

The State Property and Buildings Commission, Kentucky Asset/
Liabilities Commission, Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust
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Corporation, Kentucky Savings Bond Authority, and the Board of
Agriculturearelegally separateentitiesof anadministrative nature.
They are comprised of el ected and appointed official sfrom various
state agencies, and have no cost associated with them. Therefore,
there is no separate presentation for these entities.

State Property and Buildings Commission (KRS56.450)

This commission is a public body corporate created to issue all
revenue bonds for state agencies, unless those agencies are
specifically authorized by other provisionsof theK entucky Revised
Statutes to issue bonds. The commission is composed of six ex
officiomembers.

Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission(KRS56.861)

The commission is a public body corporate, created to take a
comprehensiveview of the Commonwealth’ sfinancesand devel op
policiesand strategiesto minimizetheimpact of fluctuating revenue
recei ptsandinterest ratesonthe Commonweal th’ sinterest-sensitive
assets and liabilities. The commission consists of five ex officio
members.

Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust Corporation (KRS 248.480)

The Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust Corporation is a public
body corporate created to perform essential governmental and
public functions by assisting in the implementation of the national
tobacco grower settlement trust agreement. Theboard of directors
is comprised of nine members appointed by the Governor with the
advice and consent of the Senate and House of Representatives.

Kentucky SavingsBond Authority (KRS 293.030)

The authority is a body corporate and politic created to promote
investment by thegeneral publicinbondsof theCommonwealthand
to reduce interest costs to the Commonwealth or its agencies. The
authority consistsof seven commissioners, threeex officiomembers
and four members appointed by the Governor.

Board of Agriculture(KRS246.120)

The board is abody corporate created to act as an advisory board
to the Commissioner of Agriculture and to aid in the collection of
information concerning cropsand in the promulgation of industrial
informationand act asanimmigrationcommittee. Theboard consists
of ninemembers, two ex officio membersand seven citizens of the
Commonweal th appointed by the Governor.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Thecomponent units’ columnsinthecombinedfinancial statements
include the data of the following organizations. They are reported
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in a separate column that is labeled as “Component Units’ to
emphasize these organizations’ separateness from the
Commonwealth’ sprimary government.

Kentucky River Authority (KRS151.710)

TheKentucky River Authority possessesthe corporate powersthat
woulddigtinguishit asbeinglegally separatefromthe Commonwesl th.
Thisauthority’ spurposeisthemaintenanceof theCommonwealth’s
locksand damsontheKentucky River. The Governor appointsthe
twelve members of thisauthority.

Kentucky Housing Corporation (KRS 198A.030)

TheHousing Corporationisabody corporate and politic created to
perform essential governmental and public functionsin improving
and promoting the health and welfare of the citizens of the
Commonweslth by theproductionof residential housinginKentucky.
Theboard of directors consists of six ex officio membersand eight
members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Corporation (KHESL C)
(KRS164A.050)

KHESL Cisabody corporateand politic createdto performessential
governmental and public functions and purposesinimproving and
promoting the educational opportunities of the citizens of the
Commonwealth. Theboard of directorsconsi stsof seven members,
threeex officiomembersandfour membersappointed by theGovernor.

Bluegrass State SkillsCorporation (KRS 154.12-205)

This corporation was created and established to improve and
promote the employment opportunities of the citizens of the
Commonweal th by assi sting the Economic Devel opment Cabinetin
creating and expanding programs of skills, training and education.
Theboard of directorsconsistsof eighteen members, fiveex officio
members and thirteen members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky School FacilitiesConstruction Commission (KRS157.617)

The commission is an independent corporate agency and
instrumentality of the Commonwealth. The purpose of the
commission isto assist local school districtsin meeting the school
construction needs of the Commonwealth in a manner that will
ensure an equitable distribution of funds based upon unmet needs.
Oneex officiomember and el ght membersappointed by the Governor
comprisetheCommission.

Kentucky StateFair Board (KRS247.090)

This board is a body corporate created to account for revenues
earned and expensesincurred in the commercial operations of the



COMMONWEALTH OFKENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

StateFair Board. Twelvememberscomposetheboard. Threeareex
officio members and the Governor appoints the other nine.

Kentucky Center for the ArtsCorporation (KRS 153.410)

The Center for the Artsisabody corporate created by the General
Assembly to promote the growth and development of the arts,
convention trade, tourism and hotel industries within Jefferson
County and the Commonwealth. The board consists of fifteen
members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky Educational Television Authority (KET) (KRS 168.030)

KET isapublic body corporate and politic created to prescribe and
enforce regul ationsgoverning the use of educational television and
television facilities and related functions. KET also produces and
transmits educational television programs. The authority consists
of ninemembers. TheGovernor appointsfiveof thesemembers. The
board el ects aliaison between the authority and the department on
matters of curriculum. The Council on Postsecondary Education
elects a representative of the University of Kentucky and a
representative of the state universities. The authority’s members
elect a chairman. A component unit of KET is the Kentucky
Educational Television Foundation. Thefoundationisanon-profit
Kentucky corporation, which receives, holds and administers gifts
and grants in the name of and with the approval of the authority.

Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority (KEDFA)
(KRS154.20-010)

KEDFA possesses the corporate powers necessary to distinguish
it aslegally separatefromthe Commonwealth. It wasestablishedto
assist business enterprisesin abtaining financial resourcesin order
to promotethe Commonwealth’ slong-term economic growth. The
Kentucky Economic Development Partnership board appoints the
fivemembersof thisauthority. Additionally, other component units
of the authority include The Kentucky Industrial Development
Authority, the Kentucky Industrial Revitalization Authority, the
Kentucky JOBSDevelopment Authority, andtheK entucky Mortgage
Insurance and Guarantee Corporation. Thefinancia statements of
the component units are combined with those of the authority.

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority (KRS 164.742)

Thisauthority isabody corporateand politic created toimprovethe
higher education opportunities of persons who are attending or
planning to attend eligible institutions by insuring eligible student
loans.

Kentucky Educational SavingsPlan Trust (KRS 164A.310)
Thistrust was established to encourage citizensto invest fundsfor

futureeducational use, andto createan endowment fund, theincome
fromwhich will beavailableto participants' savings.
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Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KRS224A.030)

The authority is a body corporate and politic created to perform
essential governmental functions and to serve the local public
agenciesinthe Commonwealthwith respect to the constructionand
acquisition of infrastructure projects. Theboard consistsof fiveex
officio members and three members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky Agricultural FinanceCorporation (KAFC) (KRS247.944)

KAFC isacorporation created to improve and promote the health
and general welfareof thepeoplethroughthepromotionof agriculture.
Theboard of directorsconsistsof threeex officiomembersand nine
members appointed by the Governor.

Kentucky GrainInsuranceCorporation (KGIC) (KRS251.620)

KGIC is abody politic created to promote the Commonwealth’s
welfare by improving the economic stability of agriculture and
protectinggrain producersintheevent of afinancial failureof agrain
dealer or warehousemen. Theboard of directorsconsistsof four ex
officiomembersand six membersappoi nted by the Commi ssioner of
the Department of Agriculture.

Kentucky Healthcare Improvement Authority (Kentucky Access)
(KRS304.17B-003)

The Kentucky Health Care Improvement Authority was created as
a body corporate and politic funded by assessments on insurers,
enrollment fees and Tobacco Settlement Trust Funds. Consisting
of 15board members, thisauthority existsfor administrativepurposes
in the Department of Insurance and administers the Kentucky
Access program.

Kentucky Local Correctional FacilitiesConstruction Authority (KRS
441615)

Thisauthority isabody corporate and politic created to provide an
additional and alternative method of constructing, reconstructing,
improvingor repairing andfinancingjailsand appurtenant facilities
for any local government inthe Commonwealth. The membership
consists of six ex officio members and four members appointed by
the Governor.

C. Government-WideFinancial Statements

Government-WideFinancial Statements- The Statement of Net
Assets and Statement of Activities report information on all
governmental and busi ness-typeactivitiesof theprimary government
anditsnon-fiduciary component units. Governmental activitiesare
generally characterized by their use of taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange revenues as funding sources.
Business-type revenues come mostly from fees charged to external
parties for goods or services. Fiduciary funds and fiduciary
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component units are not included in these financial statements due
to the unavailability of fiduciary funds to aid in the support of
government programs.

The government-wide statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
as do the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when aliability isincurred, regardless of thetiming of cash flows.
Therefore, deferred revenues are only reported for receipts of
prepaymentsor revenuescollectedinadvance (unearned revenues).
Property taxesarerecognized asrevenuesintheyear for whichthey
arelevied. Grantsand similar itemsarerecognized asrevenuesonce
provider-imposed eligibility requirementshave been met.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the reporting entity’s non-
fiduciary assetsand liabilities, thedifference betweenthetwobeing
reported as net assets. Net assets are reported in three categories:

(1) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consisting of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding balances for debt related to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

(2) Restricted net assets, resulting from constraints placed on net
assets by creditors, grantors, contributors, and other external
parties, including those constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

(3) Unrestricted net assetsarethosenet assetsthat do not meet the
definition of restricted net assets or invested in capital assets.

When restricted assetsand unrestricted assetsare both avail ablefor
aparticular purpose, the Commonwealth’ s objectiveisto use any
restricted fundsfirst, since unrestricted funds are available for any
purpose and provide for greater financial flexibility. If the rules
governing therestricted assets are met, restricted assets may bethe
only funds used. However, there may be instances in which
restricted funds can only be spent in proportion to unrestricted
funds spent. Assets restricted for other purposes for the Primary
Government and Component Unitsare asfollows:

Primary Government

Governmental Business Total
Restricted for Type Type Primary Component
Other Purposes: Activities Activities Government Units-Major
Capital projects $ 510,740 $ 14,882 $ 525,622 $ 211,949
Turnpike Authority special revenue 110,219 110,219
Transportation 574,700 574,700
Unemployment benefits 436,879 436,879
Loans 22,798
Education 283,106
Research 166,119
Operation and maintenance of plant 75
Other 51,468
Totals $ 1,195,659 $ 451,761 $ 1,647,420 $ 735515

A significant featureof thegovernment-wide Statement of Activities
isthe presentation of each program’snet cost. GAAPrequirethe
reporting of aprogram’ snet cost toindicate how self-sustaining the
programisandtoreveal theextent of relianceon other governmental
units. Net cost is obtained by subtracting program expenses from
program revenues. Program expenses are those costs attributable
to a particular function including certain indirect costs. GAAP
permit both direct andindirect expensesto be presented together in
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an “Expenses’ column. Therefore, indirect expenses are not
specifically identified with individual functionsand activities.

Program revenuesareresourcesoriginating outsidethegovernment
that are solely available for use by a particular program. The
Statement of Activities categorizes program revenues into three
groups: charges for goods, services, and other benefits; operating
grants and contributions; and capital grants and contributions.
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Revenuesnot considered programrevenuesarecl assified asgeneral
revenues. General revenuesinclude all taxes regardless of type.

D. FundFinancial Statements

Primary Gover nment - Theaccompanyingfinancial statementsare
structured into threefund categoriesincluding governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. Funds are characterized as
either major or non-major. Major funds are those funds whose
assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expensesareat least ten
percent of the corresponding total (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all
funds of that category or type (governmental or enterprise funds),
and whose total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/
expenses are at least five percent of the corresponding total for all
governmental and enterprisefundscombined. TheCommonwealth’s
major fundsareidentified herein.

Governmental Funds

All governmental fund statementsareaccounted for onthemodified
accrual basisof accountingandfocusontheflow of current financial
resources. In accordance with the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recoghnized when they become both
measurableand availableto financeexpendituresof thefiscal period.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are either
collected within the current period or their collection is expected
shortly after the end of the current period in time to meet current
liabilities. The State generally includes those revenues to be
received up to 30 daysfollowing the end of the accounting period.
Revenues expected to be collected after 30 days beyond the end of
the accounting period are considered unavailable and are reported
as deferred revenues. Deferred revenues also include amounts
received but unearned as of June 30.

Principal revenue sources accounted for on the modified accrual
basisinclude federal grants, sales and use tax, coal severancetax,
property tax, departmental fees, incometaxes, and interest income.
Motor vehicleregistrationfeesandfinesandforfeituresareaccounted
for on the cash basis. Generally and except as otherwise provided
by law, property taxes are assessed as of January 1, levied (mailed)
September 15, due at discount November 1, due at face value
December 31, delinquent January 1 following the assessment, and
subject to lien and sale February 1 following the delinquency date.

In governmental funds, where the focus is on the flow of current
resources, expendituresarerecorded at thetimeliabilitiesareincurred.
Exceptionsare: inventories, prepayments, and acquisition of capital
assets which are recorded at the time of acquisition; and principal
and interest on long-term debt, as well as compensated absences
which are recorded as expendituresin the period payment is made.
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A description of significant governmental funds follows:

General Fund - amgjor fund that accountsfor financial resources
appropriated by the General Assembly which arenot requiredto be
accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - a category of governmental funds that
accounts for specific revenue sources, other than for major capital
projects, dedicated to specific operations. Includes funds such as
the transportation fund, federal fund, and agency revenue fund.

Transportation Fund - amajor fund that accounts for activities
related to the preservation and maintenance of roads.

Feder al Fund - amajor fund that accountsfor moniesreceivedfrom
the federal government to be spent on specific programs and
operations.

Agency RevenueFund- amajor fundthat accountsfor revenuesand
expenditures of restricted taxes, fees, and charges related to a
particular function or activity.

The Special Revenuefund includesthese non-major governmental
funds:
Special Benefits- accounts for monies designated to be
distributed for specific operations.

Other Specia Revenue Fund- accounts for the revenues
and expenses of restricted taxes, fees and charges related
to a certain function and is not appropriated.

Capital Projects Fund - amajor fund that accounts for financial
resourcesappropriated by theGeneral Assembly for theacquisition,
construction, or renovation of major capital facilities, and for the
acquisition of maor equipment, other than those financed by
proprietary funds and certain trust funds.

Debt Service Fund - a non-mgjor fund that accounts for the

accumul ation of resourcesfor, and thepayment of, general long-term
obligation principal, interest, and related administrative costs.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fundsusethefull accrual basi sof accounting, recognizing
revenuesand expenseswhen they occur, regardless of thetiming of
the cash flows. On the statement of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net assets, “expenses’ (not “expenditures’ as in
governmental fundsonamodifiedaccrua basis) describesdecreases
ineconomic benefitsand emphasi zestheaccrual basisof accounting.
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Proprietary funds' revenuesand expensesaredividedinto operating
and nonoperating revenuesand expenses. Although not specifically
defined by GA AP, operating revenuesand expensesareconsidered
to be those resources gained and consumed to produce and deliver
goodsand servicesthat arecentral tothat fund’ sparticular purpose.
Other revenues and expenses are classified as nonoperating.
Operating and nonoperating expenses are further characterized by
object (persona services, depreciation expense, travel expense,
etc.).

Furthermore, the Statehasadoptedtheprovisionsof GASB Statement
No. 20, “ Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Proprietary Funds
and Other Governmental Funds that use Proprietary Fund
Accounting.” Aspermitted by GA SB Statement No. 20, theprimary
government’s proprietary funds have elected not to adopt FASB
Statements or Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989,
unless the GASB specifically adopts such FASB Statements or
Interpretations. Each proprietary component unit hasindividually
made this election as disclosed in their separate audit reports.

Enter priseFunds- acategory of proprietary fundsused to account
for those public corporationsempowered by the Kentucky Revised
Statutes (KRS) to provide certain services to the citizens of the
Commonwealth and the operations of State agencies that provide
goodsor servicesto the general public onauser chargebasis. Also
included are the operations of the State' s risk management pools.

StateParksFund - amajor fund that accountsfor revenuesearned
andexpensesincurredinthecommercial operationsof theDepartment
of Parks.

Kentucky L ottery Cor por ation—ablended component unit presented
asamajor fund, empowered by KRS154A toadminister theK entucky
state lottery created pursuant to amended Section 226 of the
Constitution of Kentucky as ratified by the voters of the
Commonwealth.

Kentucky Horse Park Fund - a magjor fund that accounts for
revenuesearned and expensesincurredinthecommercial operations
of the Kentucky Horse Park.

I nsurance Administration Fund - amajor fund that accountsfor
insurancerisk pools operated by the State, including the Workers
Compensation Specia Fund, Coal WorkersPneumoconiosisFund,
Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance Program, Mine
Subsidence I nsurance Program, and Bond Pool Program.

Unemployment Compensation Fund—amajor fundthat accountsfor
assessed employer contributions and related unemployment
compensation payments.

Internal Service Funds - a category of proprietary funds that
accountsfor financing goods and services provided by one agency
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of theCommonweal th primarily to other agenciesor governmentson
acost reimbursement basis. All of the proprietary funds (where the
measurement focus is on the flow of economic resources) are
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly,
revenues are recognized when they are earned and become
measurable. Expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are
incurred.

Sinceinternal service funds usually exist to support governmental
activities, they are normally included as part of the governmental
activities reported in the government-wide statements, rather than
being presented separately.

Specific activities reported under Internal Service Fundsare:
Management/maintenance of State motor vehiclefleet
Industrial prison operations

Rental and maintenance operations for buildings

Computer and related data processing services

Printing services

Fire and tornado insurance programs

State worker’ s compensation program

Transportation Cabinet self insured worker’'s compensation
trust program

ONo O~ WDNE

Fiduciary Funds

Private-Purpose Trust Funds—account for monies(principal and
interest) held for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments, that would not be properly reported in a pension or
investment trust fund.

Specific activities reported under the Commonwealth’s Private-
Purpose Trust Funds are:

1 Prepaidtuition

2 Investment for education and endowments

Pension Trust Fundsand Other Employee Benefit - account for
moniesreceived for, expensesincurred by, and net assetsavailable
for plan benefitsof thevariouspublic employeeretirement systems.
Thisfundtypeal soaccountsfor moniesheldindeferred compensation
plans. Pension Trust Funds are accounted for on the accrual basis
of accounting and reported in the same manner as proprietary fund

types.

Agency Funds - account for monieshel d by the Commonweal thfor
custodial purposes only. Unlike other funds, the agency fund
reportsassetsand liabilities only; therefore, it has no measurement
focus. However, theagency fund usestheaccrual basi sof accounting
when recognizing payables and receivables.
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Specificactivitieslisted under the Commonwealth’ sAgency Funds
are

1 Commonwealth Choice benefit spending accounts

2. Specia Deposit Trusts holding monies for specific purposes
3. County Sinking Fund monies from the sale of bonds

Asdiscussed in Note 1 C, because thefiduciary fund resources are
not availableto support government programs, fiduciary funds(and
component unitsthat arefiduciary in nature) are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Inclusion of these funds
would create a misleading view of the government’s position and
results of activities.

E Presentation of Component Units

Presentation of theunderlying fund typesof theindividual component
units (described previously) reported in the discrete column is
available from each respective component unit’ s separately issued
financial statements.

TheMajor Discretely Presented Component Units, including Colleges
and Universitiesare:
Kentucky Community and Technical College System
Kentucky Housing Corporation
Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Corporation
University of Kentucky
University of Louisville

The Non-Major Discretely Presented Component Unitsincluding
Collegesand Universitiesare:
Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation
Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation
Kentucky Economic Devel opment Finance Authority
Kentucky Educational Television Authority
Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
Kentucky L ocal Correctional FacilitiesConstruction
Authority
Kentucky River Authority
Kentucky State Fair Board
Bluegrass State SkillsCorporation
Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission
Kentucky Access
Eastern Kentucky University
Kentucky State University
Morehead State University
Murray State University
Northern Kentucky University
Western Kentucky University
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For the Collegesand Universities, each board of regentsor board of
trustees is appointed by the Governor, and constitute a body
corporate with the power to receive and administer revenue and
property (KRS164.350).

Kentucky Educational SavingsPlan Trust ispresented asaPrivate
-Purpose Trust Fund with the fiduciary type funds.

TheCommonweal th hassignificant transactionswithitscomponent
units, primarily in providing operating funds to the universities.
During fiscal year 2002, the primary government provided
$1,005,736,628 tothe University of Kentucky, $198,466,584 tothe
University of Louisville, and $265,259,882 totheK entucky Community
and Technical College System. In addition, the State received
$169,000,000in proceedsfromtheKentucky L ottery Corporation.

F.  CashandCashEquivalents

In addition to bank accounts, cash on hand, and imprest cash, this
classificationincludesshort-terminvestmentswith amaturity of 90
daysor less, from date of purchase. Cash equivalentsare generally
stated at cost, which approximatesmarket. Deferred Compensation
amountsarereportedat fair value. Short-terminvestmentsclassified
ascash equivalentsat June 30, 2002 are $1,773,608,158.

G. Investments
Thisclassificationincludeslong-terminvestmentsthat arestated at

fair value. Investments of the Deferred Compensation Plan are
reported at fair value. See Note 5 for investment details.

H. Recevables

Receivables in the Commonwealth’s governmental and fiduciary
funds primarily consist of Federal revenues, taxes, and interest on
investments. Somegovernmental fund revenuesarenot susceptible
to accrual prior to receipt, including licenses, fees, permits, and
similar revenuesthat are recognized on the cash basis. Receivables
in all other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
Receivablesinthegovernmental fundsarereported net of allowances
for uncollectibles. Disaggregation of current accounts receivable
and current taxes receivable are shown in Note 4.

I. Interfund Transactions

TheCommonwealth hasthefoll owingtypesof interfundtransactions:
Quasi-External Transactions- Chargesfor servicesrendered by one

fundto another that aretreated asrevenuesof therecipient fund and
expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.
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Reimbursements- Reimbursement of expendituresmadeby onefund
for another arerecorded asexpendituresinthereimbursing fund and
as areduction of expendituresin the reimbursed fund.

Transfers presented in the fund financial statements represent the
flow of assets (such as goods or cash) without equivalent flow of
assetsin return or requirement of repayment. In addition, transfers
arerecorded when afund receiving revenue providesit to the fund
which expends the resources.

The composition of theinterfund transactionsis presented in Note
7. Notethat at theentity-widelevel, themajority of interfund activity
has been eliminated. Thisisto avoid the “doubling up” of such
transactionssothat revenuesand expenseswill not bereported more
than once.

Transfers and receivables and payables between governmental
activities and business-type activities have not been eliminated.
Alsoremaining aretheresultsof activitiesbetween different functional
categories. For example, servicesprovidedandused arenot eliminated
because doing so would misstate the expenses of purchasing
function and the program revenues of the selling function.

J. Inventoriesand Prepaid Expenses

Inventories in the governmental funds and similar trust funds
consist of expendable supplies held for consumption, the costs of
which are recorded as an expenditure at the time of purchase.

Prepaid expenses, including the prepayment of servicesto vendors
(e.g., prepaidinsurance), arerecorded similarly inthegovernmental
fund statements.

Reserves of fund balance have been established for the inventory
balances for governmental funds. Inventories in the proprietary
funds and similar trust funds consist of both expendable supplies

Cost by Asset type

held for consumption and the cost of goodsheld for resale, the costs
of which are recorded as an expense as they are used.

Inventoriesarevalued at cost (first-in, first-out, or averagecost). In
the Governmental Activities column of the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets, inventory and prepaid expenses are
reported asan asset at cost when purchased, then expensed as used.

K. Capital Assetsand Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, intangiblesand
infrastructure (e.g. roads, bridges, ramps, and similar items), are
reported in the governmental activities or business-type activities
column of thegovernment-widefinancial statements. Fundfinancial
statementsfor governmental and similar trust fundsexpense capital
assets when purchased.

Thepolicy of theprimary governmentisto capitalizeassetswhenthe
useful lifeisgreater than oneyear and the acquisition cost meetsthe
capitalizationthreshold. Theprimary government capitalizesall land
andinfrastructure. Buildings,improvementstoland, and equi pment
arecapitalizedwhentheacquisitioncostis$5,0000r grester. Intangible
fixed assets are capitalized when the cost is $100,000 or more.
Component units establish their own capitalization policy and that
policy may vary from that of the primary government.

TheKentucky Historica Society, K entucky HorsePark and K entucky
Department of Parksholdand carefor the State’ shistorical treasures.
Among these are historical clothing; china; furniture and other
furnishings; avariety of art and decorativeart; political memorabilia;
pioneer tools and equipment; guns and similar military artifacts;
books, manuscripts, and photographs; musical instruments from
Kentucky’ smusical legends; Native American artifacts; fossilized
bones and prehistory artifacts. These assets are not capitalized or
depreciated astheassetscould not bevalued and haveinexhaustible
useful lives.

(Expressed in Thousands) Donated

Governmental Activities: Historical Cost Fair Market Value Estimated Cost Totals

Land $ 41,618 $ 26,512 $ 27,048 95,178

Improvements other than buildings 7,091 25 7,116

Buildings 436,109 54,532 264,815 755,456

Equipment 436,791 1,945 42,774 481,510

Infrastructure 14,014,450 14,014,450

Totals $ 14,936,059 $ 83,014 $ 334,637 15,353,710
Donated

Business-Type Activties: Historical Cost Fair Market Value Estimated Cost Totals

Land $ 5,409 $ 831 $ 12,203 18,443

Improvements other than buildings 67,963 67,963

Buildings 115,329 834 49,232 165,395

Equipment 50,963 289 51,252

Totals $ 239,664 $ 1,954 $ 61,435 303,053
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The primary government values fixed assets at historical cost,
estimated historical cost or fair market valueat thetimeof donation.
At June 30, 2002, the table, on the preceeding page, shows cost by
assettype. Theestimateof historical cost for theprimary government
wasbased on apprai sed val ueasof June 301986, indexed tothedate
of acquisition.

Useful Life
Asset (Expressed in Years)
Land improvements 10-60
Buildings 10-75
Machinery and equipment 3-25
Infrastructure 20-40
Intangibles 2-40

Assetsaredepreciated onthestraight-linebasisover their estimated
useful lives. Thetable above showsthe useful life by asset typefor
the primary government. Infrastructure assets are not being
depreciated, asthe Commonwealth has el ected to use the modified
approach, as defined by GASB statement 34. As aresult, certain
maintenance and preservation costs are expensed when incurred.
Additionsandimprovementstoinfrastructureassetsarecapitalized
when capacity and efficiency has increased.

It is the Commonwealth’s policy to capitalize interest expense
incurred on significant assets in proprietary funds during their
construction in accordance with FASB 62.

TheKentucky Center for the Arts' discretely presented component
unit financial statements for Fiscal Y ear 2002, do not contain the
Center’s fixed assets. The Finance and Administration Cabinet,
Division of Statewide Accounting, Financial Reporting Branch
adjusted the Commonwesl th of Kentucky’ sComprehensiveAnnual
Financial Report for fiscal year 2002 toincludethefixed assetsand
depreciation of the Center in order to satisfy GAAP requirements.

L. FundEquity Reservesand Designations

TheCommonwealth’ sfund bal ancereservesrepresent thoseportions
of fund balance (1) not appropriable for expenditure, or (2) legally
segregated for a specific future use. Designated portions of fund
bal ance represent tentative managerial plansfor financial resource
utilizationin afuture period. Amounts of the fund balancethat are
reserved for specific purposes are shown below.

Reserved Fund Balance for Other Specific Purposes
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

Special Debt Capital

General Revenue Service Projects
Inventories $ 15,314 $ 51,565 $ $
Statutory obligations 107,188 212,191 516,148
Deposits with fiscal agents 12,116 12,707
Loans receivable 1,000
Capital outlay 260,102
Totals $ 123,502 $ 275,872 $ 12,707 $ 776,250

M. Deferred Revenue

Deferredrevenuesaretreated asliabilitiesinthegovernmental funds
until al requirementsfor revenue recognition are met.

N. Long-TermObligations

Long-termliabilitiesthat will befinanced fromgovernmental funds
are presented in the Governmental Activities column of the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets. This total reported
amount of long-termliabilitiesincludesthefollowing:

1 Paymentsof principal on revenuebondswhich arerecorded as
expendituresin the Debt Service Fund.

2 Compensated absencesincluding accumul ated unpaidvacation
and compensatory timeaccruals. Theamount accruingto proprietary
funds and pension trust funds has been included in the respective

fundswhenmaterial. Thepolicy of the Commonwealthistorecord
the cost of annual and compensatory leave. Annual leave is
accumulated at amountsranging from 7.5 to 15.0 hours per month,
determined by length of service, with maximum accumulations
ranging from 30to 60 days. The calendar year isthe period used for
determining accumulated leave. Compensatory leaveis granted to
authorized employees onanhour-for-hour basis. June30 estimated
liabilities for both annual leave and compensatory leave are
summarizedinNote17.

Sick leavefor the Primary Government isearned oneday per month
withunlimitedaccumulation. All of thequalifyingretiringemployees
sick leave balances, expressed in months, shall be added to their
servicecredit for thepurposeof determiningtheir annual retirement.

Thereisno liability in the accompanying financial statements for
unpaid accumulated sick leave, since it is the Commonwealth’s
policy to record the cost of sick leave only when paid. SeeNote17
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for disclosure of the amount of this contingency. The component
unitshavevarying policiesfor compensated absences. |nformation
regardingthesepoliciesisavailableintheauditedfinancial statement
of each component unit.

3. Outstanding capital lease obligationsfor governmental funds.

4. Judgements and contingent liabilities of governmental
funds that will be paid with noncurrent resources.

5 Long-termliabilitiesof internal servicefunds.

L ong-term obligationsgenerally excludethoseamountsreported as
expendituresfor compensated absences, judgements, contingencies,
and employer pension contributions in the governmental funds
sincetheseamountswoul d normally beliquidated with expendable
availablefinancial resources.

Long-term liabilities of all proprietary and pension trust funds are
reported in respective fund statements. Long-term liabilities of
proprietary funds are also presented in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assetsin the Business-type Activities column as
asingletotal. Fiduciary funds' long-termliabilitiesarenot displayed
on the government-wide Statement of Activities.

O. ConduitDebt

This debt may take the form of certain types of limited-obligation
revenue bonds, certificates of participation, or similar debt
instruments issued to benefit athird party that is not a part of the
reporting entity. Although conduit debt obligations bear the
Commonwesalth’s name as issuer, the Commonwealth has no
obligation for such debt beyond the resources provided by alease
orloanwiththethird party onwhosebehalf itisissued. GAAPallow
the State to refrain from reporting the conduit debt and the related
asset. Since the State is not legally, morally, or in any other way
responsible for the repayment of conduit debt, these items are not
includedinthefinancial statements. TheStatehas$1,816,730,395.47
of conduit debt, theproceedsof whichareusedto promoteeconomic
development inthe Commonwealth.
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Note 2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES,
REPORTING PRACTICES,AND PRIOR-PERIOD
ADJUSTMENTS

During fiscal year 2001-2002, the State implemented several new
accounting standards issued by GASB:

Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-
exchange Transactions,

No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments,

No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-for Public Colleges and Universities,

No. 36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Non-exchange
Revenues,

No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Anaysisfor State and Local Governments:
Omnibus, and

No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

The provisions of these new standards have been incorporated into
theCommonwealth’ sfinancial statementsand notes. Thefollowing
paragraphs summarize the changes to fund equities as previously
reported on the Combined Balance Sheet. The changes resulted
primarily from theimplementation of the above mentioned GASB
Statements.

The fund balances/net assets as previously reported have been
restated or reclassified to conformto generally accepted accounting
principles and to correct balances for erroneously recorded
transactions.

General Fund—TheGenera Fundwasrestatedtoinclude$142,000
removedinerrorlastyear. Transfer of start upfundsof $600,000from
the General Fund to Kentucky's Affordable Prepaid Tuition Plan
Trust (KAPT) have been reclassified to an interfund loan. (See
discussion under Special Revenue Funds). The net effect of these
adjustmentsto fund balance is an increase of $742,000.

Capital ProjectsFund —The Capital ProjectsFundwasrestatedin
order to correct prior period errorsandto removecontributed capital
cash balancesin accordancewith GASB 34. Thecash balancesare
now reflectedintheappropriateproprietary fund. Theeffect of these
transactions on fund balance is a net decrease of $74,952,000.
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Debt ServiceFund—TheDebt Service Fund wasrestated toinclude
amounts that were removed in error last year. The effect on fund
bal anceisanincrease of $69,000.

Special Revenue Fund — The Agency Revenue Fund and the Other
Special Revenue Fund within the Special Revenue Fund were
restated for prior period errors. The restatements decreased fund
balancesby $79,479,000 and $1,400,000 respectively. The Special
Benefits Fund within the Special Revenue Fund was restated by
$321,352,000, anincreaseresulting fromtheimplementationof GASB
34. The net effect of all restatements on the Special Revenue fund
balanceisanincreaseof $240,473,000.

Enter priseFunds—Thelnsurance Administration Fundwithinthe
Enterprise Funds was restated. Kentucky KARE is not being
reported thisyear, asthefund hasbeen dissolved. Theeffect on net
assetsisadecreaseof $613,000. TheUnemployment Compensation
Fund within the Enterprise Funds was restated as a result of
implementation of GASB 34. This change increased net assets by
$43,695,000. The StateParksand theKentucky Horse Park within
the Enterprise Funds were restated to include contributed capital
bal ancesin accordancewith GA SB 34. Correctionstotheprior year
werealsomade. Theeffect onnet assetsisanincreaseof $35,264,000
and $331,000 respectively. The net effect of these restatements on
the Enterprise Funds net assetsis an increase of $78,677,000.

Internal Service Funds—The Fleet Management Fund within the
Internal Service Fundswas restated to include amounts omitted in
theprior year. Theeffect on net assetsisanincrease of $4,556,000.
TheComputer ServicesFundwithinthelnternal Service Fundswas
restated toinclude amounts previously omitted inerror. Theeffect
onnet assetsisanincreaseof $11,801,000. TheProperty Management
Fundwithinthelnternal Service Fundswasrestatedto correct aprior
year error. The effect on net assetsis an increase of $20,000. The
Risk Management Fund within the Internal Service Funds was
restated. The effect on net assetsis a decrease of $26,000.

ExpendableTrust Funds—Thistypeof fundwasremoved fromthe
financial statements. Therefore, to properly account for items
previously included in this category, the Unemployment
Compensation Fund hasbeen recl assified asan Enterprise Fund and
the Special BenefitsFund hasbeenreclassified asaSpecial Revenue
Fund, with therelated Deferred Compensation portion reclassified
as aPension (And Other Employee Benefit) Trust Fund.

Fiduciary Funds- Pension Trust Funds-Deferred Compensation
was reclassified from a Special Benefits Fund under Expendable
Trust Fundsper GA SB 34. Thisresultedinanincreaseof $860,614,000
to net assets of the Pension (And Other Employee Benefit) Trust
Funds. (See Expendable Trust Funds restatement.)
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Account Groups—TheGeneral Fixed AssetsAccount Group, which
accounted for fixed assets acquired or constructed for general
governmental purposes other than those of the proprietary and
fiduciary fundtypes, hasbeenremoved fromthefinancial statements.
These assets are now included in the government-wide Statement
of Net AssetsintheGovernmental Activitiescolumn. Similarly, the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, which accounted
for unmatured general long-term liabilities of the Commonwealth
other than those of the proprietary and fiduciary fund types, has
beenremovedfromthefinancial statements. Theseliabilitiesarenow
includedinthe Governmental Activitiescolumn of thegovernment-
wide Statement of Net Assets.

Component Units—Authorities:

Kentucky EconomicDevelopment FinanceAuthority (KEDFA)—
KEDFA restated net assetsto account for cash and cash equivalents
and accrued interest receivable, which wasincorrectly included in
financial statementslast year. The effect on net assetsisadecrease
of $2,680,000.

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority (KHEAA)—
KHEAA' sgovernmental activitiesnet assetswererestated toreflect
implementation of GASB 33and GASB 34. Theeffect onnet assets
isanincrease of $3,383,000. Net assetswerealso restated to reflect
the reclassification of certain activities from governmental to
fiduciary. Theeffect onnet assetsisadecreaseof $37,623,000. The
effect of these adjustments to net assets is a net decrease of
$34,240,000.

Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission — The
Commission restated net assetsto reflect implementation of GASB
33andGA SB 34. Theeffect onnet assetsisadecreaseof $648,999,000.

Bluegrass State Skills Cor poration (BSSC) — BSSC restated net
assetsto account for amountsincludedinerror last year. Theeffect
on net assetsis an increase of $389,000.

KentuckyHousing Cor poration (KHC)—-KHC restated net assets
toreflectimplementation of GASB 33 and GASB 34. Theeffecton
net assetsisan increase of $17,430,000.

Kentucky Grain Insurance Cor por ation — The Kentucky Grain
Insurance Corporationrestated net assetstoincludeinterestincome
omitted in error last year. The effect on net assetsisan increase of
$132,000.

Kentucky State Fair Board — The Kentucky State Fair Board
restated net assetstoreflect implementation of GASB 33and GASB
34. Theeffect on net assetsisan increase of $126,823,000.

Kentucky Center for theArtsCor por ation—TheKentucky Center
for the Artsrestated net assets to reflect implementation of GASB
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33 and GASB 34. The effect on net assets is an increase of
$14,338,000.

Kentucky Access — Kentucky Access was reported within the
Expendable Trust Funds last year. The effect of inclusion in
Component Units-Authorities is an increase in net assets of
$40,733,000.

Kentucky River Authority — Kentucky River Authority was a
Blended Component Unitlast year. Now reported under Component
Units-Authorities, Kentucky River Authority restated net assets.
The effect on net assets for this individual component unit is a
decreaseof $2,318,000. Theeffect of inclusionin Component Units-
Authoritiesisan increase in net assets of $16,095,000.

Restatement of all Component Units-Authoritiesresultsinanoverall
decreasein net assets of $469,979,000.

Component Units—Univer sitiesand Colleges:

Univer sity of Kentucky—Toreflectimplementation of GASB 35, net
assetsfor the University of Kentucky wererestated. The effect on
net assetsisadecrease of $738,516,000.

University of L ouisville—Toreflectimplementation of GASB 35, net
assetsfor the University of Louisvillewererestated. The effect on
net assetsis adecrease of $295,891,000.

Easter n Kentucky Univer sity—Toreflectimplementation of GASB
35, net assets for Eastern Kentucky University wererestated. The
effect on net assetsis adecrease of $182,069,000.

Wester n Kentucky Univer sity—Toreflectimplementation of GASB
35, net assetsfor Western Kentucky University wererestated. The
effect on net assetsis adecrease of $136,090,000.

M or ehead StateUniver sity—Toreflectimplementationof GASB 35,
net assetsfor Morehead State University wererestated. The effect
on net assetsis adecrease of $101,008,000.

Murray StateUniver sity—Toreflectimplementationof GASB 35,
net assetsfor Murray State University wererestated. The effect on
net assetsisadecrease of $128,276,000.

NorthernKentucky Univer sity — Toreflect theimplementation of
GASB 35andthechangeintheUniversity’ scapitalizationpolicy, net
assetswererestated for Northern Kentucky University. The effect
on net assetsis adecrease of $93,982,000.

Kentucky StateUniver sity—Toreflectimplementation of GASB 35,
net assets for Kentucky State University wererestated. The effect
on net assetsis adecrease of $91,894,000.

Kentucky Community and Technical CollegeSystem (KCTCS)—
Toreflectimplementation of GASB 35, net assetsfor KCTCSwere
restated. The effect on net assetsis a decrease of $201,635,000.

Restatement of all Component Units-Universities and Colleges
resultsin an overall decreasein net assets of $1,969,361,000.

Note 3

STEWARDSHIP,COMPLIANCE,AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Federal Fund —TheFederal Fund hasafund balancedeficit of
$5,634,000. Thedeficitisaresult of expenditureaccruals, which
will be funded in future periods.

B. EnterpriseFunds —Thelnsurance Administration Fund hasa
net assets deficit of $959,347,000. The accumulated claims
liability is estimated by actuarial methods for the risk pools,
which will befunded in future periods.

C. Internal ServiceFunds—TheRisk Management Fund hasanet
assets deficit of $94,343,000. The deficit is the result of
accumulated claims liabilities of the Commonwealth’s self-
insured worker’ s compensation programs, and is to be funded
in future periods.

D. Private-PurposeTrust Funds—Kentucky’ sAffordablePrepaid
Tuition Plan Trust has a fund balance deficit of $6,433,000
resulting fromliabilitieswhichwill befundedinfutureperiods.

E Component Units—Authorities—TheKentucky School Facilities
Construction Commission hasanet assetsdeficit of $591,261,000.
The Commission finances local school district projects, and
carries the liabilities but not the assets. The Kentucky L ocal
Correctional Facilities Construction Authority has anet assets
deficit of $5,491,000 resulting from the recognition of loan
commitmentsbeforefinancingwasarranged. TheAuthority will
issue bonds to satisfy these commitments in the future.
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Note 4 Accountspayabl efor the Commonwealth of Kentucky areamounts
owed by the State asof June 30, 2002. Thoseliabilitiesthat must be
DISAGGREGATION OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE  paidwithinoneyear areconsidered current. Amountsdueafter one
ANDACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE year aredeemed noncurrent accountspayable. Accountsreceivable

Disaggregation of Payables
(Expressed in Thousands)

Utilities,
Rentals and
Personal Other Commodities
___Services ___Services _and Supplies
Governmental activities:
Major funds $ 7,309 $ 1,718 $ 2,680
Non-major funds 49 370 5
Internal service funds 54 1
Total Governmental Activities 7,412 2,089 2,685
Business-Type activities:
Major funds 13 188 356
Total Business-Type Activities 13 188 356
Total Primary Government $ 7,425 $ 2,277 $ 3,041
Disaggregation of Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)
Charges for Taxes
Services Receivable
Governmental activities:
Major funds $ 4,015 $ 492,380
Non-major funds 3,942 1,164
Internal service funds 426
Total Governmental Activities 8,383 493,544
Business-Type activities:
Major funds 340
Total Business-Type Activities 340
Total Primary Government $ 8,723 $ 493,544
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are amounts owed to the State. Similar to accounts payable, any Business-Type Activities, the line indicating “ Accounts Payable”

amountsto bereceivedwithinoneyear areclassified ascurrent. All

other receivablesare noncurrent. For Governmental Activitiesand

$

$

Grants and
Subsidies

414,637

1,705

416,342

416,342

Investment
Receivable

35,972
18,148
200

Capital Outlay

$ 126,909
126,909
$ 126,909
Intergovernmental
Revenue

54,320

4,236

375,334

Travel
$ 630

639

$ 640

Allow ances For
Uncollectables

4,236

375,334

$ (650,150)
(3,750)

and “Net Receivables’ consist of the following:

Other

277,364
9,124
7,342

293,830

167,638

167,638
461,468

Other

58,556

(653,900)

(5,071)

1,131,694
62,951
1

$

$

Total Payables

831,247
11,260
7,399
849,906

168,196
168,196
1,018,102

Total
Receivables

375,334

(5,071)

1,194,646

73,763

1,389,245
82,455
627

$ (658,971)

73,763

1,472,327

73,268
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Amountsreportedas” TaxesReceivable” aresignificanttothe State.
Taxes receivable report those tax amounts owed to the
Commonwealth of Kentucky that remain uncollected as of June 30,
2002. All receivables are reported net of an Allowance for
Uncollectibles to reflect the true value of receivables. Fines,
forfeitures, andlicensefeesarerecognized asrevenuewhenreceived
and, therefore, do not requiretherecognition of accountsreceivable.
The“Current Taxes Receivable” for Governmental Activitiesand
Business-Type Activities are as follows:

Taxes Receivable
(Expressed in Thousands)

Under themadified accrual basisof accounting, asused inthefund
statements, amounts outstanding but owed at the end of the year
may berecordedinoneof twoways. If thereceivableismeasurable
and expected to be collected within 30 days, revenueisrecogni zed.
However, if thereceivableisnot expected to be collected within 30
days, itisnot considered to beavailabletoliquidatetheliabilitiesof
the current period and will be reported as deferred revenue.
Furthermore, unearned revenue is always reported as deferred
revenue. Deferredrevenueisreported asaliability until meetingthe
criteriafor revenue recognition.

Sales Individual Coal License
and Gross Income Severance and Privileges Taxes
Receipts Tax Tax Tax Receiveable
Governmental activities:
Major funds $ 286,536 $ 186,882 $ 11,501 $ 7,461 $ 492,380
Non-major funds 1,164 1,164
Total Governmental Activities 286,536 186,882 11,501 8,625 493,544
Total Primary Government $ 286,536 $ 186,882 $ 11,501 $ 8,625 $ 493,544
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[Note 5 |

EQUITY INPOOLED CASHANDINVESTMENTS,
CASH,ANDINVESTMENTS

The Commonwealth maintains a cash and investment pool that is
available for use by all funds under the auspices of the State
Investment Commission as authorized under KRS42.500 et a. In
addition, investments are separately held by several of the State's
funds and Component Units. Legally authorized investmentsvary
by fund but generally include: obligations of or guaranteed by the
United States; obligations of any corporation of the United States
Government; asset backed securities; U.S. dollar denominated
corporatesecurities; collateralized certificatesof deposit; bankers
acceptances; commercial paper; and repurchase agreements. In
addition to these, pension plans and certain Component Units are
permitted to purchase common stocks, corporate bonds and real

Cash - Primary Government

property and mineral rights. The Commonwealthisalsoeligibleto
invest in reverse repurchase agreements.

Deposits- Atyear end, thecarrying amount of the Commonwealth’s
deposits for the Primary Government was $2,086,473,311 and
$1,052,271,987 for the Component Units. At year end, the bank
balance was $2,085,598,026 and $1,054,342,868 for the Primary
Government and Component Units, respectively. Thebank balance
of thePrimary Government administered by the State Treasurer was
covered by Federal depository insuranceor by collateral held by the
Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s agent in the
Commonweslth’ sname. ThefollowingtablecategorizesthePrimary
Government’s and Component Units' deposits as: (1) insured or
collateralized with securities by the entity or by its agent in the
entity’ sname; (2) collateralized with securitiesheld by thepledging
ingtitution’ s trust department or agent in the entity’ s name; or (3)
uncollateralized wheresecuritiesarehel d by thepledginginstitution
but not in the entity’ s name.

Categories Total Carrying
1 2 3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash $ 604,442,381 604,292,701 604,442,381
Cash with fiscal agents 35,571,073 36,035,460 35,571,073
Imprest & change 7,379,510 7,379,510 7,379,510
Money market 721,764,249 150,223,242 870,797,499 871,987,491
Total $ 1,369,157,213 150,223,242 1,518,505,170 1,519,380,455
Cash on deposit with federal
government 567,092,856 567,092,856
Total Cash 2,085,598,026 2,086,473,311
Cash - Component Units
Categories Total Carrying
1 2 3 Bank Balance Amount
Cash $ 872,932,945 42,363,026 21,972,482 939,339,334 937,268,453
Money market 8,116,517 78,238,560 28,148,457 114,503,534 114,503,534
Nonnegotiable certificates of
deposit 500,000 500,000 500,000
Total Cash $ 881,549,462 120,601,586 50,120,939 1,054,342,868 1,052,271,987

I nvestments - The Commonwealth holdsinvestments both for its
own benefit and as an agent for other related parties. The major
investment programs conducted for the direct benefit of the
Commonwealth are administered by the Office of Financial
Management. The credit risk of those investments held in the
Commonwealth’sinvestment pool isall Category (1). Thecreditrisk
mix of the retirement systems, component units, and other
Commonwealth agencies is disclosed in the financial statement
footnotesof theindividual entities. Thefollowingtablescategorize
the Primary Government’ s and Component Units' investments as:
Category (1) those investments which are insured or registered, or
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held by the Commonwealth of Kentucky or its agent in the
Commonwealth’ sname; Category (2) thoseinvestmentswhich are
uninsured and unregistered with securitieshel d by thecounterparty’ s
trust department or agentintheCommonwesalth’ sname; and Category
(3) those investments which are uninsured and unregistered for
which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust
department or agent but not in the Commonwealth’ s name.

Statutes require that securities underlying repurchase agreements
must have a market value of at least 102 percent of the cost of the
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Investments - Primary Government

Categories Net
1 2 3 Investment Fair Value
Collaterized mortgage obligations ~ $ 131,513,213  $ 130,217,287 $ 131,513,213
Commercial paper 6,189,038 58,707,864 64,835,916 64,896,902
Common stocks 11,861,214,958 106,975,862 254 11,920,403,136 11,968,191,074
Corporate bonds 3,247,611,224 61,471,710 3,308,132,746 3,309,082,934
Government securities 3,979,095,832 54,434,036 137,437,422 4,160,512,787 4,170,967,290
Negotiable certificates of deposit 620,477 614,362 620,477
Open-end mutual funds 849,459,162 1,087,319 850,533,822 850,546,481
Repurchase agreements 1,042,230,744 1,041,806,719 1,042,230,744
Securities lending collateral 593,934,649 593,934,649 593,934,649
State and municipal obligations 507,957,574 2,960,429 506,179,187 510,918,003
Totals $ 21,625,892,222 $ 226,929,356 790,080,189 22,577,170,611 22,642,901,767
Government securities 48,661,174 48,661,174
Securities lending collateral 2,709,530,436 2,709,530,436
Mortgages 762,184,532 762,184,532
Real estate 359,829,377 359,829,377
State investment pool 228,996,581 229,948,449
Held by brokers/dealers
under securities loaned:

Common stocks 834,693,583 834,693,583

Corporate bonds 236,261,134 236,261,134

Government securities 2,423,074,577 2,423,074,577
Total Investments 30,180,402,005 $ 30,247,085,029
Investments - Component Units

Categories Net
1 2 3 Investment Fair Value

Collaterized mortgage obligations ~ $ 1,736,140 $ 1,736,140 $ 1,736,140
Commercial paper 8,342,574 8,342,574 8,342,574
Common stocks 173,964,815 190,592,810 173,964,815
Corporate bonds 71,925,488 58,765,000 128,927,720 130,690,488
Equity in Health Care Corps 31,082,111 31,082,000 31,082,111
Government securities 263,748,507 260,637,236 521,761,523 524,385,743
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,799,850 2,799,850 2,799,850
Mutual funds 17,863,143 226,083 18,080,093 18,089,226
Repurchase agreements 243,988,296 2,835,000 246,823,296 246,823,296
Other 132,165,416 29,035,000 151,736,820 161,200,416
Totals $ 939,273,766  $ 330,579,810 29,261,083 1,301,882,826 1,299,114,659
Guaranteed investment contracts 141,976 141,976
Mortgages 45,909,000 45,909,000
Mutual funds 147,514,115 146,115,402
State investment pool 124,020,186 124,870,135
Total Investments 1,619,468,103 $  1,616,151,172
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repurchase agreement. The fair value of securities underlying
repurchase agreements fell below this required level on a few
occasions during theyear; however, no losses were sustained due
tothefallincollateralizationlevels. Thecollateralizationismonitored
on aweekly basis (as specified within 200 KAR 14.081) and at any
point wherethe collateralization fallsbel ow 102 percent of the cost
of the repurchase agreement, the seller/borrower is contacted and
the situation is normally rectified within two business days.

Securities Lending Program - State statutes authorize the
Commonwealthtoenterintosecuritieslendingagreements. Collateral
received inthetransfer are of thetypewhichthe Commonwealthis
legally authorized to hold. The Commonwealth does not have the
ability to pledge or sell collateral securities without a borrower
default. Thefair value of the securitiesreceived in the agreement
is 102 percent of the value of the securities transferred. The
securities transferred are a part of the total investments reported
above. Thesecuritiesbeing held arenot reported asapart of thetotal
investments. TheCommonweal thretainstheinterestincomeonthe
securities being transferred and receives 75 percent of the profit
earned by the agent with afloor of 10.0 basis points. During the
year, the Commonwealth earned $5,443,124 in securities lending
income. OnJune 30, 2002, thefair valueof thesecuritiestransferred
was $1,618,771,059 and the fair value of the securities the
Commonwed thwasholdingwas$1,652,073,981. Thecollateralization

Cash and Investment Summary

reguirements and monitoring procedures in the securities lending
program arethe sameasthoserequirementsinregard to repurchase
agreements. At year end, the Commonwealth had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amounts the Commonwealth
owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the
Commonwealth.

Options - The Commonwealth’ s investment strategy includes the
use of derivatives asatool in managing market risk and providing
anopportunity for enhancedreturn. TheCommonwealth selectively
utilizes put and call options on United States Treasury securities.
These options are on a covered basis, where the Commonwealth
holds either cash or securities sufficient to meet the obligation,
should the option beexercised. On June 30, 2002, the portfolio had
no obligations under option. The Commonwealth also purchases
securitiesthat havebuiltincovered calls(callableagency securities).
Therisk in holding these securitiesisthe risk that the security can
becalled (bought back) by theissuing agency at par either onor after
aspecific date.

The following chart shows current and noncurrent cash and
investments for the governmental, business type, and fiduciary
activities. Discretely presented component units are not included
in this chart.

As reported in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Current Cash
And Investments

613,825,480
72,154,755
1,870,898,358

Governmental activities $
Business-type activities
Fiduciary activities

$  2,556,878,593
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Noncurrent
Investments Total
$ 1,798,621,307 $ 2,412,446,787
1,192,464,555 1,264,619,310
26,811,093,830 28,681,992,188
$ 29,802,179,692 $ 32,359,058,285
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Note 6

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands):

Primary Government

Beginning Ending

Primary Government: Balance Additions Decreases Balance
Governm ental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 90,953 $ 4,583 $ (358) $ 95,178

Construction in progress 3,062,505 638,128 (1,376,012) 2,324,621

Infrastructure 12,687,653 1,326,797 14,014,450
Total capital assets not being depreciated 15,841,111 1,969,508 (1,376,370) 16,434,249
Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Improvements other than buildings 7,172 (56) 7,116

Buildings 710,923 46,562 (2,029) 755,456

Machinery and Equipment 457,082 56,075 (31,647) 481,510

Easements and Other Intangibles 10,626 2,943 13,569
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 1,185,803 105,580 (33,732) 1,257,651
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:

Improvements other than buildings (3,674) (499) 29 (4,144)

Buildings (282,198) (17,120) 2,029 (297,289)

Machinery and Equipment (270,297) (46,620) 24,385 (292,532)

Easements and Other Intangibles (441) (309) (750)
Total accumulated depreciation (556,610) (64,548) 26,443 (594,715)
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net 629,193 41,032 (7,289) 662,936
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 16,470,304 $ 2,010,540 $ (1,383,659) $ 17,097,185
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 15,344 $ 3,099 $ $ 18,443

Construction in progress 68,506 12,078 (22,071) 58,513
Total Assets, not being depreciated 83,850 15,177 (22,071) 76,956
Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Improvements other than buildings 63,864 4,099 67,963

Buildings 145,773 20,121 (499) 165,395

Machinery and Equipment 46,729 5,251 (728) 51,252

Easements and Other Intangibles 2,321 2,321
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized 256,366 31,792 (1,227) 286,931
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Improvements other than buildings (42,491) (1,381) (43,872)

Buildings (55,404) (4,528) 294 (59,638)

Machinery and Equipment (35,837) (3,628) 667 (38,798)

Easements and Other Intangibles (62) (62)
Total accumulated depreciation (133,732) (9,599) 961 (142,370)
Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net 122,634 22,193 (266) 144,561
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 206,484 $ 37,370 $ (22,337) $ 221,517
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Depreciation expense, charged to functions/programs
of the primary government as foll ows:

General Government

Legislative and Judicial

Commerce

Education and Humanities

Human Resources

Justice

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation

Capital assets held by government's internal service
funds are charged to the various functions based on
usage of the assets

State Parks

Lottery Corporation

Horse Park

Insurance Administration

Unemployment Insurance

Total depreciation expense by activities

Discretely presented major component units
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2002
(Expressed in T housands):

Governmental Business-type
activities activities
$ 4,873 $

1,232
2,851
3,946
3,288
16,023
3,262
652
11,098
17,323

5,981

2,627

554

437

$ 64,548 $ 9,599

Component Units

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $
Construction in progress

Totals, capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Easements and Other Intangibles

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Easements and Other Intangibles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated/amortized, net

Component units capital assets, net $

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance
77,843 $ 7,445 $ 85,288
151,609 119,112 (19,662) 251,059
229,452 126,557 (19,662) 336,347
57,872 7,551 (97) 65,326
1,617,571 67,941 (10,244) 1,675,268
728,101 66,938 (68,998) 726,041
6,277 6,277
2,409,821 142,430 (79,339) 2,472,912
(38,945) (2,013) 5 (40,953)
(672,390) (43,279) 4,356 (711,313)
(418,543) (58,956) 17,938 (459,561)
(5,849) (21) (5,870)
(1,135,727) (104,269) 22,299 (1,217,697)
1,274,094 38,161 (57,040) 1,255,215
1,503,546 $ 164,718 $ (76,702) 1,591,562
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Depreciation expense, charged to functions/programs
of discretely presented major component units as follows:

Kentucky Housing Corporation $ 1,362
Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corporation 631
University of Kentucky 64,688
University of Louisville 26,781
Kentucky Community and Technical College System 10,807
Total depreciation expense by activities $ 104,269
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Note 7

Interfund Transactions
The table below shows the interfund operating transfers for the fiscal year 2002

(Expressed in Thousands): Transfers Out
Agency Capital
General Transportation Federal Revenue Projects
Transfers In Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
General Fund $ $ $ 688 $ 23126 % 11,562
Transportation Fund 543 286
Federal Fund 4,073
Agency Revenue Fund 32,725 333 13,668 1,898
Capital Projects 6,254 3,368 9,344
Non-Major Governmental Funds 399,495 174,552 3,336 168,374 26,635
State Parks Fund 27,917 578 19,779
Kentucky Horse Park Fund 1,893 2,508
Insurance Administration Fund 4,750 11
Unemployment Compensation Fund 9
Internal Service Funds 1,255 204 34 11,499
Total $ 468,035 $ 181,139 $ 21,275 $ 206,081 $ 74,257

Reasons for transfers:

1) to move resources from the General Fund, for budgetary purposes, to the fund that will expend them; 2) to move resources from funds recording

the revenue to the Debt Service Fund, for debt service payments ; 3) to move resources from the funds recording the revenue to the Capital

Projects Fund to finance acquisition of capital assets; and 4) to move resources from the Kentucky Lottery Corporation to the General Fund.

Interfund Receivables and Payables
The table below shows the interfund receivables and payables for the fiscal year 2002 (Expressed in Thousands):

Interfund Payables

Agency
General Transportation Federal Revenue
Interfund Receivables Fund Fund Fund Fund
General Fund $ $ 1 $ 3,372 $ 13,015
Transportation Fund 2,749 85,782 65,077
Federal Fund 5,673 86,758 19,094
Agency Revenue Fund 26,706 57,582 18,304
Capital Projects Fund 125 1,419 1,054
Non-Major Governmental Funds 16,998 16 146,513 2,684
State Parks Fund 26 6 15 22
Kentucky Horse Park Fund
Insurance Administration Fund 5 1 28
Unenployment Compensation Fund 20
Internal Service Funds 2,113 965 364 615
Fiduciary Funds 186 33
Totals $ 54,581 $ 145,361 $ 255,770 $ 101,609

Reasons for interfund payables and receivables:
1) torecord sales by proprietary funds to other funds; 2) to record reimbursements of expenditures made in one fund for another fund;
and 3) to distribute program cost among funds.
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Transfers Out

Non-Major State Kentucky Kentucky Insurance Unemployment Internal
Governmental Parks Lottery Horse Park Administration Compensation Service
Funds Fund Corporation Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 27919 $ 23 169,000 $ $ 58,400 $ $ 3671 $ 294,389
1,138 1,967
4,150 2,018 10,241
297,255 5,542 351,421
28,705 43 70 47,784
211,687 347 43 12 8,260 130 992,871
46 48,320
4,491
4,761
2,023 2,032
12,992
$ 572,923 $ 413  $ 169,000 $ 43 3 63,954 $ 10,278  $ 3871 $ 1,771,269
Interfund Payables
Capital Non-Major State Insurance Unemployment Internal
Projects Governmental Parks Administration Compensation Service Fiduciary
Fund Funds Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Total
$ 21 $ 39,353 $ 364 $ $ $ 1,447 $ 86 $ 57,659
8 33 153,649
44 3,501 34 290 115,394
138 94,121 12 45 86 1,771 198,765
873 4 672 4,147
126 112,815 289 222 4,029 157 91 283,940
19 7 1 96
231 231
163 40 237
8,057 8,077
36 502 22 66 99 3 4,785
2,486 2,705
$ 392 $ 261,878 $ 691 $ 367 $ 4,029 $ 2,693 $ 2,314 $ 829,685
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Note 8
PENSIONPLANS

Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS) 61.645,
the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems
administersthe Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS),
County Employees Retirement System (CERS), and State Police
Retirement System (SPRS).

The Commonwealth contributesto the KERS, amultiple-employer
cost sharing defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially
al regular full-time members employed in non-hazardous and
hazardous duty positions of any state department, board, or any
agency directed by ExecutiveOrder to participateinthe System. The
plan provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
members. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of
theplan membersunder certain circumstances. Per KRS61.565(3),
normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall be
determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation last
preceding the July 1 of anew biennium. The Board may amend the
contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a
biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial
valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy
requirementsdeterminedinaccordancewith actuarial basesadopted
by the Board. However, forma commitment to provide the
contributions by the employer ismadethrough the biennial budget.
The System’s administrative budget and employer contribution
ratesaresubject totheapproval of theK entucky General Assembly.
Employee contribution rates are set by the statute and may be
changed only by the Kentucky General Assembly.

TheCommonwealthisthe predominant employer for KERSand for
note disclosure purposes will be considered as a single employer
plan.

CERS, amultipleemployer cost sharing defined benefit pensionplan,
providesfor retirement, disability, and death benefitstoplanmembers.

SPRSisasingle-employer defined benefit plan that coversall full-
time State Troopers employed in a hazardous duty position by the
Kentucky State Police. Theplan providesfor retirement, disability,
and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be
extended to beneficiaries of the plan members under certain
circumstances. Per KRS 61.565(3), normal contribution and past
service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the
basis of an annual valuation last preceding the July 1 of a new
biennium. TheBoard may amendthecontributionratesasof thefirst
day of July of the second year of abiennium, if it isdetermined on
the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended
contribution ratesare necessary to satisfy requirementsdetermined
inaccordancewith actuarial basesadopted by theBoard. However,
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formal commitment to providethe contributionsby theemployeris
made through the biennial budget. The financial statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributionsarerecognizedintheperiodinwhich contributionsare
due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due
and the employer has made a forma commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with terms of the plan.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investmentsare
reported at cost, which approximatesfair value. Securitiestradedon
a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at
current exchange rates. The fair value of real estate is based on
appraisals. Investmentsthat do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair value.

Cost-of -living adjustments(COL A) areprovided at thediscretion of
the State L egislature.

Theall ocation of insurance premiumspaid by the Fund and amounts
withheld from members' benefitsis based on years of servicewith
the Systems, asfollows:

Percent Paid by

Member Through
Payroll Deduction

Percent Paid by

Years of Service Insurance Fund

100%
75%
50%
25%

0%

0%
25%
50%
75%

100%

20 or more
15-19
10-14

4-9

Less than 4

TheKentucky Retirement Systemissuesapublicly availablefinancial
report that includesfinancial statementsand required supplementary
informationfor theabovementionedretirement systems. That report
may be obtained by writing the Kentucky Retirement System, 1260
LouisvilleRoad, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-6124, or by tel ephoneat
(502) 564-4646.

The Judicial Retirement Plan is asingle employer defined benefit
plan, which providesretirement, disability and death benefitstoplan
membersandtheir beneficiaries. COLA areprovidedat thediscretion
of theStatel egislature, except that exi sting | egislation providesthat
apension benefit shall beincreased, if necessary, so that it equals
an amount cal culated by using a1.5125 percent benefit rate and the
60 month average earnings of the position held by the member at
retirement. Contribution ratesare established by KRS 21.525.

ThelL egidators' Retirement Planisasi ngleempl oyer defined benefit
plan providing retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan
membersandtheir beneficiaries. COLA areprovidedat thediscretion
of theStatel egisl ature, except that existing | egisl ation providesthat



COMMONWEALTH OFKENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

apension benefit shall beincreased, if necessary, so that it equals
an amount cal culated by using a 1.925 percent benefit rate and the
60 month average earningsof theposition held by themember at the
time of hisretirement. Contribution rates are established by KRS
21.525.

The financial statements are prepared using the accrua basis of
accounting. Plan member contributionsto the plan are recognized
when dueandtheemployer hasmadeformal commitment toprovide
the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with terms of the Plans.

Investmentsarereportedat fair value. Securitiestraded onanational
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current
exchangerates. Investmentsthat do not havean established market
arereported at estimated fair value.

The Judicial Form Retirement System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the above mentioned retirement
systems. That report may beobtained by writingtotheJudicial Form
Retirement System, P.O. Box 791, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-6124, or
by telephoneat (502) 564-5310.

TheKentucky Teachers' Retirement System (K TRS) wasestablished
by the 1938 General Assembly and is governed by Chapter 161
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Section 220 through Section 990 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.
KTRS is a multiple-employer cost sharing defined benefit plan
established to provide pension plan coverage for local school
districts and other educational agencies in the state.

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Member contributions and employer matching are
recognized in thefiscal year due. Planinvestmentsare reported at
fairvalue. Short-termsecuritiesarecarriedat cost, whichapproximates
fair value. Fixed income and common and preferred stocks are
generally valued based on published market prices and quotations
fromnational security exchangesand security pricing services. Real
estate is primarily valued based on appraisals performed by
independent appraisers.

COLA are one and one-half percent annually. Additional ad hoc
increasesand any other benefit amendments must be authorized by
the General Assembly.

The Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and
reguired supplementary information. That report may be obtained
by writingtheK entucky Teachers' Retirement System, 479V ersailles
Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.
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Contribution rates:
State
Plan members
Portion of State contribution
for health insurance
Annual pension costs
(Thousands)
Contributions made
(Thousands)
Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Inflation rate
Projected salary increases
Increases in health

insurance cost

(Dollar amounts in thousands)
ARC

Interest on NPO

Adjustment to ARC

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in NPO

NPO at July 1
NPO at June 30

Kentucky
Legislators'
Retirement Plan

15.74%
5.00%

$692
$692
June 30, 2002
Projected unit credit
Interest + 1%
Unfunded past liability
25 years
Five-year average of
market to book value
8.00%
4.00%

6% - 10%

692

Kentucky
Judicial
Retirement Plan

15.62%
5.00%

$3,878

$3,878
June 30, 2002
Projected unit credit
Interest + 1%
Unfunded past liability

25 years
Five-year average of
market to book value

8.00%
4.00%
6% - 10%
$ 3,878

295
(295)

692
692

3,878
4,095

(217)
3,682

$ 3,465
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State Police Kentucky Employees Kentucky Teachers'

Retirement Retirement Retirement
System System System
21.58% 5.89% - 18.84% 13.105% - 13.840%

8.00% 5% - 7% 6.160% - 9.855%

21.58% 5.89% -12.66% 0.75%
$10,211 $119,655 $284,795
$9,562 $119,493 $284,795

June 30, 2002
Entry age normal
Level percent closed

30 years
Five-year average of
market to book value

8.25%
3.50%
6.50%

7.5% - 10%
$ 9,563

864
(524)

June 30, 2002
Entry age normal
Level percent closed

30 years
Five-year average of
market to book value

8.25%
3.50%
6.50%

7.5% - 10%

117,595
5,246

(3,185)

June 30, 2002
Projected unit credit
Level percent open

30 years
Five-year average of
market to book value

7.50%
4.00%
4.00% - 8.10%

9% - 13.5%

284,795

9,902
9,562

119,655
119,493

284,795
284,795

340
10,467

162
63,582

$ 10,807

63,744
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
Kentucky Employees Retirement System
Non-Hazardous
June 30, 2000 $ 6,806,675460 $ 4,876,825,772 (1,929,849,688) 1.396 $ 1,409,504,668 (1.369)
June 30, 2001 6,844,742,687 5,444,035,294 (1,400,707,393) 1.257 1,505,299,220 (0.931)
June 30, 2002 6,654,084,196 6,026,094,764 (627,989,432) 1.104 1,595,809,458 (0.394)
Hazardous
June 30, 2000 $ 336,213,464 $ 243,365,557 (92,847,907) 1.382 $ 115,639,439 (0.803)
June 30, 2001 361,677,475 285,193,761 (76,483,714) 1.268 122,857,992 (0.623)
June 30, 2002 376,384,302 322,069,164 (54,315,138) 1.169 125,275,925 (0.434)
State Police Retirement System
June 30, 2000 $ 459,168,574 $ 336,579,763 (122,588,811) 1.364 $ 43,619,383 (2.810)
June 30, 2001 456,160,709 356,211,860 (99,948,849) 1.281 44,646,678 (2.239)
June 30, 2002 438,955,465 380,790,346 (58,165,119) 1.153 44,314,696 (1.313)
Judicial Retirement Plan
June 30, 2000 $ 271,044,593 $ 179,117,938 (91,926,655) 1.513 $ 24,031,129 (3.825)
June 30, 2001 280,506,852 172,720,874 (107,785,978) 1.624 25,520,504 (4.224)
June 30, 2002 265,693,347 185,310,835 (80,382,512) 1.434 26,208,973 (3.067)
Legislators' Retirement Plan
June 30, 2000 $ 66,971,719 $ 45,253,158 (21,718,561) 1.480 $ 2,887,500 (7.522)
June 30, 2001 70,853,489 47,068,104 (23,785,385) 1.505 5,075,759 (4.686)
June 30, 2002 67,892,070 51,095,992 (16,796,078) 1.329 4,879,301 (3.442)
Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System
June 30, 2000 $ 12,759,600,000 $ 13,330,400,000 570,800,000 0.957 $ 2,133,700,000 0.268
June 30, 2001 13,299,200,000 14,642,100,000 1,342,900,000 0.908 2,213,772,000 0.607
June 30, 2002 13,588,847,000 15,695,574,000 2,106,727,000 0.866 2,313,663,000 0.911
Membership of the retirement systems, at June 30, 2002, is
shown in the following table:
Kentucky County State Judicial
Employees Employees Police Retirement
Retirement Retirement Retirement Fund
System System System
Non-Hazardous Hazardous  Non-Hazardous Hazardous
Retirees and benficiaries receiving benefits 26,703 1,208 26,147 3,483 897 221
Terminated plan members - vested 3,415 127 4,470 148 20 23
Terminated plan members - non-vested 14,299 946 26,508 552 83
Active plan members 48,555 4,211 79,850 8,949 1,002 252
Total Members 92,972 6,492 136,975 13,132 2,002 496
Number of participating employers 404 1,314 1 1
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Three year trend for contributions
(Bxpressed in thousands):

Annual
Required Percentage
Contribution  Contributed
Kentucky Employees Retirement System
Non-Hazardous
2000 $ 113183 101.7%
2001 88,662 101.9%
2002 93,993 101.8%
Hazardous
2000 $ 21,578 100.3%
2001 23,146 103.1%
2002 23,601 100.9%
State Police Retirement System
2000 $ 10,211 100.0%
2001 9,634 99.9%
2002 9,563 99.9%
Judicial Retirement Plan
2000 $ 5,984 102.2%
2001 3,878 100.0%
2002 3,878 105.6%
Legislator's Retirement Plan
2000 $ 1,547 109.7%
2001 692 100.0%
2002 692 110.0%
Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System
2000 $ 311,300 100.0%
2001 262,800 100.0%
2002 284,795 100.0%
Legislators' Kentucky
Retirement Teachers'
Fund Retirement
System TOTAL
114 33,457 92,230
59 5,995 14,257
42,388
119 54,175 197,113
292 93,627 345,988
1 202 1,923
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Note 9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Deferred Compensation

Employees of the Commonwealth, its cities, counties, and local
school districts are eligible to participate in two deferred
compensation plans as authorized by the United States Internal
Revenue Code. Theseplans, |abeled 457 and 401(k), after sections
of the Code, are administered by the Personnel Cabinet and an
independent Plan administrator. The Commonwealth, through a
board of trusteesasdefinedin KRS 18A.245, sel ectstheadministrator
tooverseethedaily operationsandtechnical complianceof thePlans
with applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code. The
Commonwealth’s responsibilities consist of withholding payroll
deductionsfor itsemployees, collecting employee withholdings of
the cities, counties, and local school districts, and remitting those
withholdings to the plan administrators holding fixed and variable
annuity contracts (carriers). Both Plans permit employeesto defer
collectingaportionof their salary until futureyears. Thisdeferment
isnot availableto employeesuntil termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeableemergency. Assetsof the457 Planandthe401(k) Plan
arereportedinaPension Trust Fund withinthefiduciary fund type,
incompliancewithInternal RevenueCodeand GA SB 32requirements.

Of the$428,799,820 (net of cash surrender val ueof $65,355) inthe
457 Plan at June 30, 2002, $253,218,572 was applicable to the
Commonwesalth, whiletheremaining$175,581,248 representsassets
of the other jurisdictions participating in the Plan. The 401(k) Plan
had total plan assetsof $417,185,137 (net of cash surrender val ue of
$64,281) at June30, 2002, of which $186,189,663wasapplicabletothe
statewhiletheremaining $230,995,474 representsother participating
jurisdictions.

Note 10

LEASEOBLIGATIONS

The Commonwealth has entered into various leases for buildings
and equipment. Generally, leases contain termination clauses
providingfor cancellation after a30-, 60-, or 90-dayswritten notice.
In addition, certain leases contain appropriation clausesindicating
that continuation of the leaseis subject to funding by the General
Assembly. Itisexpected that inthenormal courseof businessmost
of these leaseswill be replaced by similar |eases.

A portion of thecapital |easeliability for theUniversity and College
Fund isapplicableto |eases with the Commonwealth.

Changes in leases payable for the year ended June 30, 2002, are
summarizedin Note 15, Changesin Long-Term Obligations.
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At June 30, 2002, capitalized leasesincluded Buildings
and Equipment asfollows (Expressed in Thousands):

Primary Government

Buildings and Equipment acquired through capital

leases are recorded at the lessor of fair market value Governmental Business-Type Component
or present value of future minimum lease payments. Activities Activities Units-Major
Buildings $ $ $ 62,827
Equipment 39,717 312 24,902
Total 39,717 312 87,729
Less: Accumulated depreciation (9,771) (138) (24,133)
Total Net of Depreciation $ 29,946 $ 174 $ 63,596
F uture minimum rental commitmentsfor capitalizable |eases as of
June 30, 2002, are asfollows (Expressed in Thousands):
Component
Primary Government Units-Major
University
Governmental Business-Type and College
Activities Activities Funds Total
2003 $ 9,138 $ 9% % 11,173 % 20,406
2004 8,545 52 13,191 21,788
2005 3,791 41 5,036 8,868
2006 2,550 25 3,507 6,082
2007 1,746 3,099 4,845
2008-2012 1,741 15,511 17,252
2013-2017 15,489 15,489
2018-2022 5,583 5,583
Total minimum lease payments 27,511 213 72,589 100,313
Less: Amount representing interest
(4.0-26.49%) (2,799) (30) (19,374) (22,203)
Present value of future minimum
lease payments $ 24712 $ 183 $ 53,215 % 78,110

Note 11

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts: theft, damage, and destruction of assets; errorsand omissions;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commonwealth
utilizes the Risk Management Fund to account for these activities.

Fireand Tornadol nsurance:

TheFireand Tornado Insurance Program is established to account
for and finance its uninsured risk of loss arising from damages to
Statebuildingsand personal property. Under thisprogram, coverage
isprovided for up to amaximum of $300,000 per occurrence of 10ss
for each insured subject of risk. The Fire and Tornado Insurance
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Program purchases reinsurance for claims in excess of coverage
provided by theProgram. Settled claimshavenot exceededcommercia
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Theclaimsliability of $1,900,000reportedintheProgramat June30,
2002, isbased ontherequirementsof GASB 10, whichrequiresthat
aliability for claimsbereportedif information prior to theissuance
of thefinancial statementsindicalesthatitisprobablethat aliability
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reascnably estimated. Changes in the
Program’ sclaimsliability amountinFiscal Y ears2002 and 2001 were:
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Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 1,127,623 $ 893,225
Incurred claims 13,053,967 1,941,963
Changes in estimates

Claims payments (12,281,590) (1,707,565)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 1,900,000 $ 1,127,623

Self-Insured Workers Compensation:

The Workers Compensation Program is self-insurance for the
benefit of the Commonwealth’ sempl oyees, and othersasdescribed
in KRS 18A.370. Losses payable by the Program include medical
claimsandlossof wagesasaresult of anemployment relatedinjury.
Premiums are established based upon estimated claims and
administrative cost for thecomingfiscal year. TheProgram carries
reinsurancecoveragefor largeindividual orincident claimsbetween
$5,000,000and$20,000,000.

Theactuarially determined aggregateclaimsliability of $90,306,276
reportedintheProgramat June 30, 2002, includesboth reported and
unreported insured events, including estimates of future payments
of lossesandrelated claims’ adjustments. ChangesintheProgram’s
claimsliability amountinFiscal Y ears2002 and 2001 were:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 80,696,544 $ 60,517,697
Claims and claims
adjustments incurred:
Current year 19,500,795 19,097,065
Prior year 4,598,172 14,647,811
Total Claims and Claims
Adjustments Incurred: 24,098,967 33,744,876
Claims and claims
adjustment payments:
Current year (3,845,874) (3,790,048)
Prior year (10,643,361) (9,775,981)
Total Claims and Claims
Adjustment Payments (14,489,235) (13,566,029)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 90,306,276 $ 80,696,544
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Trangportation Cabinet Wor kers Compensation:
TheTransportation Cabinet’ sSelf-Insured Workers Compensation
Trust Program (the“Program”) wasorganized on July 1, 1963, asa
self-insurance fund administered by the Transportation Cabinet of
the Commonweal th of Kentucky (the* Cabinet”). Thepurposeof the
Program is to provide workers compensation insurance to the
employees of the Cabinet. Thelossesincurred by the Program are
serviced by a designated third-party administrator who processes
and reports all claims to the program. Changes in the Program’s
claimsliability amountinFiscal Y ears2002 and 2001 were:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 19,823,557 $ 19,491,107

Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 4,816,083 3,653,895

Changes in estimates 26,232

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (3,486,911) (3,321,445)

Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 21,178,961 $ 19,823,557
Note 12

RISK POOLS

The Commonwealth’ srisk pools are the Insurance Administration
Fund (enterprise fund) and the Grain Insurance Corporation and
Kentucky Access(component units). Thelnsurance Administration
Fundincludestheoperationsof fiverisk poolsasfollows: Workers
Compensationnsurance, Coal WorkersPneumoconiosis, Petroleum
Storage Tank Assurance, Bond Pool, and Mine Subsidence
Insurance. The Insurance Administration Corporation isreported
aspart of the primary government. Kentucky Accessand the Grain
InsuranceCorporationarerisk pool sreported asdi scretecomponent
units.

Risk Pools- EnterpriseFunds

Workers Compensation | nsurance:

The Kentucky Workers' Compensation Insurance Program, arisk
sharing pool, covers preexisting conditions to protect employers
from having to pay for injuries not sustained while under their
employment, or more than once for disabilities resulting from the
same accident. This Program encourages reemployment of injured
workers at adequate wages by relieving the employer of the
reguirement of paying disability compensation in addition to full
wages. TheProgramal socoversclaimsagai nst uninsured employers.
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TheProgram establishesclaimsliabilities based on estimates of the
ultimatecost of claims(including futureclaim adjustment expenses)
that have been reported but not settled, and of claimsthat have been
incurred but not reported. The claims liability of $995,911,041 as
reported in the financial statements, is the present value of the
aggregateactuarially determined claimsliability of $2,305,406,379,
discounted at 7.0 percent, and the net of the estimated realizable
valueof reimbursements. Theclaimsadjustedliability of $37,896,652,
asreported in the financial statements, is the present value of the
aggregateactuarially determinedliability of $87,725,890, discounted
at 7.0 percent.

The actuarially determined liabilities described above arise from
projections included in an actuaria report dated June 30, 2002.
ChangesintheProgram’ saggregateliabilitiesfor claimsandclaims
adjustment for the past two years were:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 2,373,940,088 $ 2,314,558,183

Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 150,487,831 159,377,394

Changes in estimates (7,749,377)

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (123,546,273) (99,995,489)

Balance at Fiscal Year End $  2,393,132,269 $ 2,373,940,088

Coal Workers PneumoconiosisFund:

The Coal Workers Pneumoconiosis Fund (CWPF) was created
within the Labor Cabinet through the enactment of House Bill No.
1 by the December 1996 Special Session of the General Assembly.
TheCWPFisliablefor one-half of theincomebenefitsandretraining
incentive benefitsfor occupational pneumoconiosisresulting from
exposureto coal dust created inthe severanceor processing of coal.
Theemployer isliablefor theremaining half.

InaccordancewithHouseBill No. 1 fromthe December 1996 Specia
Session, theKentucky Workers' Compensation Funding Commission
shall imposeapneumoconiosisassessment to pre-fundtheliabilities
of the CWPF and to finance its administration. The assessment is
3 percent of workers' compensation premiumsreceived on or after
January 1, 1997, from employers engaged in the severance or
processing of coal and an additional assessment of $0.025 per ton
imposed upon coa severed on or after January 1, 1997. All
pneumaoconi osi sassessmentscol l ected by the Funding Commission
areto be credited to a separate account within the Benefit Reserve
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Fund and to be transferred as necessary to pay administrative
expenses and current claims of the CWPF.

TheCoa Workers' Pneumoconiosi sFund establishesclaimsliability
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future
claimsadjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled,
and of claimsthat have been incurred but not reported. Theclaims
liability of $985,505, asreported in the financial statements, isthe
present value of the aggregate actuarially determined liability of
$1,403,494 discounted at 7.0 percent. Theclaimsadjustment liability
of $851,353, asreported in the financial statements, isthe present
valueof theaggregateactuarially determinedliability of $1,212,444,
discounted at 7.0 percent. Changes in the aggregate liability for
claimsand claimsadjustmentsfor thepast twoyearswereasfollows:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 2,987,707 $ 11,135,285
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 319,238 (8,027,078)
Changes in estimates (371,769)

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (319,238) (120,500)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 2,615,938 $ 2,987,707

As stated above, the Coal Workers' Pneumoconiosis Fund was
created by the December 1996 Special Session of the General
Assembly. Therefore, there are no provisions for claims prior to
1997.

Petroleum Stor age T ank Environmental Assur anceProgram:
TheOfficeof the Petroleum Storage Tank Environmental Assurance
Program, arisk sharingpool, wascreatedinthe 1990 regul ar session
of the Kentucky General Assembly. The purposeof the Programis
to assist petroleum storage tank owners or operatorsin complying
withfederal financial responsi bility requirementsrel atingto petroleum
storage tanks and in cleaning up contamination caused by leaking
tanks. A feepaid (at arate of one and four-tenths cents per gallon)
by dealers on each gallon of gasoline and special fuelsreceived in
the Commonwealth fundsthe Program.

ThePrograminsurespetroleum storagetank ownersor operatorsfor
cost incurred for cleanup and other corrective action required in
cleaning up contamination caused by leaking petroleum storage
tanks. The Program also provides coverage for third party claims
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against the owners or operators for damages sustained as a result
of leaking storagetanks. Claimspaid by the Program are subject to
deductiblesthat are applied separately, by occurrence, for cleanup
claimsandthird party damageclaims. Thedeductibleissetat $1,000
per occurrence for owners or operators of five or lesstanks, and at
$5,000for ownersor operatorsof six totentanks, and at $25,000for
owners of more than ten tanks.

TheProgram establishesclaimsliabilitiesbased on estimates of the
ultimatecost of claims(including futureclaim adjustment expenses)
that have been reported but not settled, and of claimsthat have been
incurred but not reported. Theclaimsliability of $281,000,000 that
wasreportedinthefinancial statementsisthe aggregateactuarially
determined claims liability and is not discounted. The claims
adjustmentsliability reportedinthefinancial statement of $35,600,000
istheaggregate actuarially determined claimsadjustmentsliability
amount and is not discounted. Changesin the Program’ saggregate
liabilities for claims and claims adjustment for the past two years
were

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 319,400,000 $ 493,600,000
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 30,100,000 54,500,000
Changes in estimates

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (32,900,000) (228,700,000)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 316,600,000 $ 319,400,000

Bond Poal:

The Bond Pool was established in 1986 to provide an alternative
bonding program for small to medium sized coal companies in
Kentucky. Membership in the Pool is voluntary and prospective
members must apply to become members. Applicants must meet
standards set by the Bond Pool Commission to be accepted as
members of the Bond Pool. These standards, used to evaluate
potential Bond Pool members, consider factors such as mining
experience, reclamation history, and financial condition of the
applicant.

The Commission, based on the standards considered in the
applicationprocess, ratesaccepted members. Themembersarerated
and assessed aninitial membershipfeebased onthisrating. Thisfee
rangesfrom $1,000 to $2,500. Additionally members pay tonnage
fees of $.05 per ton of surface mined coa and $.01 per ton for
underground mined coal. Provisions are also in effect where the
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tonnagefeeis suspended for memberswho have participated inthe
Program for 36 months, or when the Program balance exceeds $7
million.

Thecoal companiesparticipatingintheProgramarerequiredto post
apermit specific bond based on the number of acres permitted and
their ratingintheProgram. TheBond Pool inturn providescoverage
for reclamation coststhat exceed the permit specific bond but limits
claimstothetotal amount of bond required by thepermit. TheBond
Pool doesnot pay claimsfor costsincurredin excessof therequired
bond amount.

TheProgram establishesclaimsliabilitiesbased on estimates of the
ultimatecost of claims(including futureclaim adjustment expenses)
that have been reported but not settled, and of claimsthat havebeen
incurred but not reported. The claims liability of $10,331,893 as
reported in the financial statements, is the aggregate actuarially
determinedclaimsliability. Thecamsadjustmentliahility of $3,262,703
istheactuarially determined aggregateliability andisnot discounted.
ChangesintheProgram’ saggregateliabilitiesfor claimsandclaims
adjustments for the past two years were:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year
liability $ 8,615,080 $ 5,459,494
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 4,979,517 3,155,586

Changes in estimates

Claims and claims
adjustment payments

Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 13,594,597 $ 8,615,080

MineSubsidencel nsurance:

The Mine Subsidence Insurance Program is administered by the
Department of Insurance. Theprovisionsof theProgramrequirethat
all insurance policies issued or renewed that insure a structure
locatedinany county inthe Commonweal th, except thosespecifically
exemptedby KRS304.44-60, shall includeaseparately stated premium
for mine subsidence damage coverage. Thispremiumis assessed
at theamount determined by the Program, and theinsurer isrequired
to code this coverage to the Program. The insurer may refuse to
provide coverage where preexisting damageisdetermined to exist.
TheProgram provides coverage subject to adeductibl e of 2 percent
of thepolicy’ stotal insured valueor not lessthan $250 and not more
than $500. TheMine SubsidenceProgramalsolimitsitscoverageto
$50,000 per structure.
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GASB 10requiresthat aliability for claimsbereportedif information
prior to the issuance of the financial statementsindicatesthat itis
probablethat liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of theloss can be reasonably estimated.
However, onJune 30, 2002, theending balancefor claimsliability
waszero. ChangesintheProgram’ sclaimsliability amountin Fiscal
Y ears2002 and 2001 were:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 36,000 $ 100,000
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred (35,809) (1,892)
Changes in estimates

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (191) (62,108)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 0 $ 36,000

Risk Pools- Component Units

Kentucky Access:

Kentucky Access was created to ensure that health coverage is
madeavailabl eto each applying and qualifying Kentucky individual .
As an implemented state sponsored “high risk” pool, Kentucky
Access was established January 2, 2001 by KRS 304.17B-001 to
304.17B-031. Itspurposeistoinsure continued flexibleregulation
of health coverage in Kentucky.

Inoperatingunder theDivisionof Kentucky AccessintheDepartment
of Insurance, KRS12.050and KRS 304.2-060 guidestheappoi ntments
of anappropriatedivisiondirector asappointed by thecommissioner
of insurance. Also, the Guaranteed Acceptance Program, as
establishedby KRS304.17A-400t0 304.17A-480, helpsparticipating
insurancecompaniestorecover lossesfromindividual swhomet the
“high risk” pool category by transferring the funds to Kentucky
Access.

Under this program, a referral fee is paid to Kentucky Access. A
provider network isthen established, or aprovider network iscreated
by contracting with an insurer for a statewide provider network.
Under KRS304.17B-011 theestablished provider network isavailable
and limited only to Kentucky Access enrollees.

A third-party administrator chosenthroughthestatebidding process
administers Kentucky Access. The administrator develops and
establishes policies and procedures for enrolled participants and
potential enrollees. However, premium rates charged do not fully
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cover health care costs; thus, claims exceeding premium rates shall
be covered by the Kentucky Access Fund.

ChangesintheProgram’ sclaimsliability anountinFiscal Y ears2002
and 2001 were:

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year

liability $ 889,402 $ 0
Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 1,061,879 2,038,439
Changes in estimates

Claims and claims

adjustment payments (1,945,750) (1,149,037)
Balance at Fiscal Year End $ 5,531 $ 889,402

Grainlnsurance

TheGrainlnsurance Programwasestablishedto promoteeconomic
stability inagricultureby providing coverageto grain producersfor
lossesincurred inthe event of afinancial failure of agraindealer or
grain warehousemen. The Program is funded by a half-cent per
bushel assessment on all marketed grain producedin Kentucky. The
Program also has provisionsthat the assessment can be suspended
whenthebal anceof the Programreaches$3 million and if suspended
will bereappliedwhenthebal anceof theProgramdropsto$2 million.

Noclaimsliahility wasreportedintheProgramat June 30, 2002, based
on the requirements of GASB 10. This statement prescribes the
reporting of aclaimliability if information prior totheissuanceof the
financial statements indicates that a probable liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements, and the amount of
thelosscanbereasonably estimated. Claimsliability inFiscal Y ear
2001 wasalso zero.

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Beginning of fiscal year $ 0o 3 0
liability

Claims and claims

adjustments incurred 0 0
Changes in estimates 0 0
Claims and claims adjustment

payments 0 0
Balance at Fiscal Year End  $ 0o $ 0
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Note 13

DEFEASANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT

The State Property and BuildingsCommissionissued $223,730,000
of Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 72, dated
October 1, 2001. The net proceeds of thisissuewere $229,741,561
withapremium of $7,854,157 andissuance costsand underwriter’s
discount of $1,842,595. The net proceedswere placed in an escrow
account toadvancerefundaportionof Project 32 (Third Series), and
Project 40 (Second Series) bonds. Thenet savings(reductionincash
flow) for the Refunding Bondswill be $480,555. The present value
is$423,733at arateof 2.30430%.

The State Property and Buildings Commissionissued $41,270,000
of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 73 (Second Series), dated
April 1, 2002. The net proceedsof thisissuewere $41,254,126 with
apremiumof $445,179andissuancecostsand underwriters’ discounts
of $461,053. The net proceedswere placed in an escrow account to
advancerefundthe 2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011 maturitiesof Project
73bonds. Thenet savings(reductionincashflow) for theRefunding
Bondswill be$4,502,297. Thepresent valueis$2,755,939 at arateof
6.75144%.

The State Property and BuildingsCommissionissued $305,145,000
of Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 74, dated
January 30, 2002. Thenet proceedsof thisissuewere $313,485,403
withapremium of $10,672,386 andissuancecostsand underwriter’s
discountsof $2,331,983.$101,892,403 of thenet proceedswasplaced
inanescrow account to advancerefund Project 54, Project 55, Project
56, Project 57, Project 59, Project 60, Project 63, Project 64, Project 65,
Project 67, Project 68, and Project 72 bonds. The net savings
(reductionincashflow) for the Refunding Bondswill be$2,907,426.
Thepresent valueis$1,869,910 at arate of 1.964811%.

TheState Property and BuildingsCommissioni ssued $66,815,000 of
Revenueand Revenue Refunding Bonds, Project 76, dated February
1, 2002. The net proceeds of this issue were $71,444,976 with a
premiumof $5,255,615andi ssuancecostsand underwriter’ sdiscounts
of $625,639. Net proceeds of $65,509,976 was placed in an escrow
account to advance refund Project 71 bonds maturing August 1,
2008, 2009, 2010, and 2011. Thenet savings(reductionin cashflow)
for the Refunding Bonds will be $7,301,647. The present valueis
$3,838,115at arateof 6.15477%.

The Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission issues
revenue bonds on behalf of local school districts to finance
construction of new facilities or the major renovation of existing
facilities. The Commission participates in the payment of debt
servicefor qualifyingdistricts. By statute, theCommission’ sportion
of the savings from refunding issues goes to the school district.
Therefore, the Commission’s participation remains unchanged.
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Proceeds from the refunding issues are placed in escrow accounts
to pay thefuture debt service ontheissue(s) being refunded. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 the Commission issued the
following refunding revenue bonds:

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 1, 2001, were issued for the
Bullitt County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1992
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$3,131,213
maturingMay 1,2002throughMay 1, 2012 and carryinginterest rates
from2.70%t04.35%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated July 15, 2001, wereissued for the
Hardin County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1991
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingi ssuewas$666,840
maturingJunel, 2002through Junel, 2011 andcarryinginterest rates
from 3.75%t04.25%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated August 1, 2001, wereissued for the
Williamsburg Independent School District Finance Corporationto
refund a 1992 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding
issue was $76,107 maturing February 1, 2002 through February 1,
2012 and carrying interest ratesfrom 2.75%t0 4.20%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated August 1, 2001, wereissued for the
Metcalfe County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1992 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$1,006,852 maturing February 1, 2002 through February 1, 2012 and
carryinginterest rates of 2.70%to 4.20%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated September 1, 2001, wereissuedfor
the Perry County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$129,110maturingMarch 1, 2002 throughMarch 1, 2020and carrying
interest rates of 3.50% to 4.75%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated September 1, 2001, wereissuedfor
the Letcher County School District Finance Corporation to refund
a1994 issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$1,708,636 maturing April 1, 2002 through October 1, 2014 and
carryinginterest rates of 2.50% t0 4.125%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2001, wereissuedfor the
Rockcastle County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda
1993A issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$1,674,284maturing April 1,2002through April 1, 2013and carrying
interest rates of 2.50% to 4.25%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2001, wereissuedfor the
Lyon County School District Finance Corporationto refund a1992
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$377,093
maturing April 1, 2002 through April 1, 2012 and carrying interest
ratesof 2.20%to 3.95%.
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Revenuerefunding bondsdated November 1, 2001, wereissued for
the Henry County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
$172,540 maturing February 1, 2002 through February 1, 2015 and
carrying interest rates of 3.05% to 4.30%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2001, wereissuedfor the
Carter County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1993
issue. The Commission’ sportionof thei ssuewas$393,162 maturing
January 1, 2002 through January 1, 2013 and carrying interest rates
of 2.25%t04.10%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated November 1, 2001, wereissuedfor
the Breathitt County School District Finance Corporationto refund
a1990issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$845,338 maturing February 1, 2002 through August 1, 2005 and
carryinginterest rates of 2.50%to 2.75%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2001, wereissuedfor the
Madison County School District Finance Corporation to refund
1992, 1993, and 1994 issues. The Commission’s portion of the
refundingissuewas$1,583,188 maturing February 1, 2002 through
February 1, 2014 and carrying interest rates of 3.00% to 4.25%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated November 1, 2001, wereissued for
the Scott County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1992 issue and a 1995 issue. The Commission’s portion of the
refundingissuewas$2,163,915 maturingMay 1, 2002 throughMay
1, 2015 and carrying interest rates of 3.125% to 4.50%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated October 1, 2001, wereissuedfor the
M eade County School District Finance Corporationtorefundal1993
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$109,644
maturing February 1, 2002 through February 1, 2013 and carrying
interest rates of 3.50% to 4.00%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated January 1, 2002, wereissued for the
WaltonV eronal ndependent School District Finance Corporationto
refund 1989 and 1990 issues. The Commission’s portion of the
refundingissuewas$273,598 maturing April 1, 2002 through April
1,2011 and carrying interest rates of 2.00% to 3.75%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated January 1, 2002, wereissued for the
GravesCounty School District FinanceCorporationtorefunda1991
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$985,000
maturing February 1, 2003 through February 1, 2005 and carrying
interest rates of 2.00% to 3.25%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated March 1, 2002, wereissued for the
Daviess County School District Finance Corporation to refund a
1992 issue. The Commission’s portion of the refunding issue was
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$205,104 maturing December 1, 2002 through December 1,2011and
carryinginterest rates of 2.10% to 4.30%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated February 1, 2002, were issued for
the Whitley County School District Finance Corporation to refund
a1992issue. The Commission’ sportion of therefunding issuewas
$151,709 maturing September 1, 2002 through September 1, 2012 and
carryinginterest ratesof 1.75%t0 4.125%.

Revenuerefunding bondsdated April 15, 2002, wereissued for the
Fayette County School District Finance Corporationtorefunda1992
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$1,083,757
maturing January 1, 2003 through July 1, 2012 and carryinginterest
ratesof 1.90%t04.125%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated June 1, 2002, were issued for the
Middlesboro School District Finance Corporation to refund a1992
issue. TheCommission’ sportionof therefundingissuewas$88,188
maturing February 1, 2003 through August 1, 2012 and carrying
interest rates of 2.30% to 4.00%.

Revenue refunding bonds dated June 1, 2002, were issued for the
Russell County School District Finance Corporationtorefund 1992
and 1994 issues. The Commission’ s portion of the refunding issue
was$1,049,971 maturing October 1, 2002 through October 1,2014and
carryinginterest rates of 1.40%to 4.10%.

Note 14

RELATEDORGANIZATIONS

TheCommonwealth hasseveral related organizations. Thefinancial
activities of these organizations are not included in the
Commonwealth’ sfinancial statements. They arethe East Kentucky
Corporation, Eastern Kentucky Exposition Center Corporation, West
Kentucky Corporation, West Kentucky Economic Development
Fund, Northern K entucky Convention Center Corporation, Kentucky
Employer’ sMutual Insurance Authority, Kentucky Wood Products
CompetitivenessCorporationandthel nterstate Air Pollution Control
Commission. TheCommonwealth holdsnoeconomicinterestin, nor
has any financial responsibility for these organizations.

Several of the Commonwealth’ suniversitiesreceive funding from
independent foundationsspecifically created to benefit therespective
universities. Financial information pertaining to thesefoundations
is not presented as part of the Commonwealth’s reporting entity
because they are considered independent entities.
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Note 15
SHORT-TERM ANDLONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Short-TermObligations

Short-term debt is comprised of tax revenue anticipation notesthat
are issued to smooth the cash flow from tax receipts.

The following chart shows changesin short-term debt
during the period ending June 30, 2002:

Short-term Short-term
Debt on Debt on
July 1, 2001 Additions Repayments  June 30, 2002
$ $ 650,000,000 $ 650,000,000 $
$ $ 650,000,000 $ 650,000,000 $

Long-TermObligations

General Obligation Bonds are issued through the State Property
and BuildingsCommission, subject togeneral referendumapproval
reguired by the Kentucky Constitution. General obligation bonds
pledgethefull faith, credit, and taxing power of the Commonwealth
and denoteapplication of specificor general tax revenuestoprovide
payment of principal and interest requirementsonthedebt. No new
issues of this type have been issued since 1965, and none are
outstanding or authorized but unissued at June 30, 2002.

RevenueBonds- General authorizationfor theuseof revenuebonds
iscontainedin Chapter 58 of the K entucky Revised Statutes. Specific
authority is contained in the legislation and related KRS chapters
creatingand empoweringthevariousdebtissuing entities. Reference
tosuchlegislation andlawsismadethroughout thefollowing entity
descriptions. Effective July 15, 1980, KRS 56.870 requires prior
approval of debt financing projects by the Kentucky General
Assembly sittinginregular or special sessions. Succeeding statutes
establish the methodsfor thisapproval and the exemptionsfromit.
The magjority of new debt issues are approved through the
appropriationact. Per KRS56.873, effectiveJuly 15, 1980, revenue
bonds having passed the above mechanisms, and not requiring
Commonwealth appropriations, must receive an “A” rating by
Moody’s Investors Service or the equivalent rating by another
qualified rating agency prior to their sale.

Project revenue debt pledges only the revenues produced by the
project so funded as security for repayment and does not directly
obligatethe Commonweal th. Kentucky’ sproject revenuedebt may
befurther classified by thepurposeof thedebt. Revenuedebt issued
by the Kentucky Housing Corporation, Kentucky Infrastructure
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Authority, Kentucky Higher Education Student L oan Corporation,
Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority, Kentucky
Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority, Kentucky
Agricultural Finance Corporation, and Kentucky School Facilities
Construction Commission is used as a financing mechanism for
activitiesandfacilitiesnot used directly for Statepurposes. Thetax-
exempt status of such municipal debt, whether issued by State or
local governments, is used to provide financing for entities unable
to bear the costs of private financing when the General Assembly
deemssuch entitiesworthy of publicassistance. Theother category
of revenuedebt financesfacilitiesused directly by State Government
in activities such asroads, parks, office buildings, and educational
facilities. The primary distinction between these categoriesisthat
thefirst type, with the exceptionsof the Kentucky School Facilities
Construction Commission, which succeeds the Kentucky School
Building Authority, and the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority,
which succeeds the Kentucky Pollution Abatement and Water
Resources Finance Authority, requires no State funds of any type
to provide debt service or principal and interest payments on the
debt. The School FacilitiesConstruction Commission supplements
funds provided by local governmentsand school boardsin varying
percentagesfor debt service. TheKentucky Infrastructure Authority
may accept appropriations made by the General Assembly, in
addition to State and Federal grants, related to the purposes for
whichitwascreated. Thisdistinctionisimportant in analyzing the
true level of State debt and the burden of that debt on State
resources.

The debt issuing authorities of the Commonwealth issued revenue
and revenue refunding bonds during fiscal year 2002. The entities
and the related debt issued are described on the following pages.
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The agenciesand authoritiesthat issue debt and their respecti ve amounts of principal
outstanding, net of discountsand defeased bonds, at June 30, 2002, are asfollows
(Expressed in Thousands):

Principal Annual Maturity
Long-Term Obligations Outstanding Interest Rate To
Agency:
State Property and Buildings
Commission $ 2,186,353 2.3%-7.65% 2022
Turnpike Authority of KY 1,218,693 4.2%-9.625% 2020
Total $ 3,405,046

Future revenue bond debt service requirements, to be paid with State Funds, at
June 30, 2002, are asfollows (Expressed in Thousands):

Y ear Ending June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2003 $ 239,824 $ 174,102 $ 413,926

2004 256,721 164,650 421,371

2005 216,255 152,738 368,993

2006 216,529 138,656 355,185

2007 223,544 128,002 351,546

2008-12 1,083,913 430,084 1,513,997

2013-17 680,085 217,794 897,879

2018-22 488,175 57,099 545,274

Total $ 3,405,046 $ 1,463,125 $ 4,868,171

Principa Annua
Caomponent Unit Revenue Bonds Payable Outstanding Inter est Rate Maturity To
Kentucky School Faciliies Construction Corporation $ 602,608 1.25-5.4% 2022
Kentucky Housing Corporation * 1,190,237 1.9-7.39% 2038
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority * 224,860 3.0-8.4% 2021
Kentucky Hgher Education Student Loan Corporation 788,770 5.1-7.1% 2031
Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority * 32,710 4.75-5.5% 2014
University of Kentucky 211,266 3.0-6.4% 2025
University of Louisville 130,191 1.4-10.0% 2018
Eastern Kentucky University 47,410 3.0-6.3% 2022
Western Kentucky University 20,705 2.6-6.1% 2012
Murray State University * 19,932 3.0-6.2% 2019
Morehead State University 33,540 2.75-7.15% 2021
Kentucky State University 13,780 3.0-7.8% 2021
Northern Kentucky University 41,040 3.0-7.8% 2021
Kentucky Conmrunity and Technical College System* 69,105 4.6-7.2% 2011
Total Component Unit Revenue Bonds Payable $ 3426154

* Amounts reflect original issue
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Future revenue bond debt service requirements for bonds
issued by the Commonwealth's Component Units at June 30,
2002, are asfollows (Expressed in Thousands):

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2003 $ 178,859 § 156,695 $ 335,554
2004 169,734 148,666 318,400
2005 192,947 140,465 333,412
2006 162,208 131,368 293,576
2007 167,050 123,416 290,466
2008-12 720,809 503,430 1,224,239
2013-17 444,644 347,894 792,538
2018-22 282,091 248,681 530,772
2023-27 370,360 182,455 552,815
2028-32 669,845 72,878 742,723
2033-37 67,167 949 68,116
2038-43 440 23 463

Total $ 3,426,154  $ 2,056,920 $ 5,483,074

The Kentucky State Property and Buildings Commission is
composed of theGovernor, Lieutenant Governor, Attorney General,
Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet, Secretary of
the Revenue Cabinet, and Secretary of the Economic Devel opment
Cabinet.

The Commission is an independent agency of the Commonwealth
created by KRS56.450 and empowered upon applicationof any State
agency toissue bondsinitsown nameto pay the costs of acquiring
land and equi pment, and the construction and equi pping of buildings
for the occupancy and/or use of said agencies.

The Commission issued $976,355,000 in project revenue bonds as
follows:

$22,870,000, Project 69 SeriesB, dated July 3, 2001, maturing serially
each August 1, 2003 through 2011 at 4.00% to 5.50%; and

$27,030,000, Project 69 Series C, dated August 3, 2001, maturing
serially each August 1, 2002 through 2007 at 4.00% to 5.50%; and

$39,320,000, Project 69 SeriesD, dated June5, 2002, maturing seria ly
each August 1, 2005 through 2012 at 5.50%; and

$152,860,000, Project 71, dated August 1, 2001, with serial maturities
each August 1, 2002, through 2015, at 3.00% to 5.50%; and

$223,730,000, Project 72, dated Octaber 1, 2001, maturing serially
each October 1, 2002, through 2021 at 3.00% to 5.375%; and

$90,240,000 Project 73, dated November 1, 2001, maturing serially
each November 1, 2002 through 2014, at 2.30% to 5.50%; and

95

$41,270,000, Project 73 (Second Series), dated A pril 1, 2002, maturing
serialy each November 1, 2002 through 2021, interest dueeach May
1 and November 1, at 4.875%t0 5.625%; and

$66,815,000, Project 76, dated February 1, 2002, maturing serially
each August 1, 2002 through 2021, interest due biennially each
February 1 and August 1, at 3.00% to 5.50%; and

$305,145,000, Project 74, dated January 30, 2002, maturing serially
each February 1, 2002 through 2022, interest dueeach February 1 and
August 1, at 2.00% to 5.375%; and

$7,075,000, Project 75, (Agency Fund RevenueBonds), dated January
30,2002, maturing serially eachMay 1, 2002through 2021, at interest
payable each May 1 and November 1, at 2.00% to 5.00%.

State Universities - The Board of Trustees of the University of
Kentucky andthe Boardsof Regentsof theUniversity of Louisville,
Eastern Kentucky University, Western Kentucky University, Murray
State University, Morehead State University, Kentucky State
University, and Northern Kentucky University areauthorized under
KRS56.495to0issuedebt for the purposeof constructing educational
buildingsand housingand diningfacilities. Inaddition, theUniversity
of Louisvilleisspecifically authorized toissuedebt for educational
buildingsunder KRS64.860butislimitedto$16millionof refunding
debt.

State supported universities issued $24,505,000 in revenue and
refunding revenue bonds as follows:

Eastern Kentucky University issued $14,505,000in Housing System
Revenue Bonds and Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue
Bonds asfollows:

$5,470,000, Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series O, dated June
1,2002, $4,000,000 maturing serially each August 1 and February 1,
through 2018, at 3.0% to 4.375%; and $705,000 term bond due
February 1, 2020 at 4.50%; and $765,000 term bond due February 1,
2022 at 4.50%; and

$9,035,000, Consolidated Educational Buildings Revenue Bonds,
Series U, dated September 1, 2001, due serially and annually each
May 1, 2002, through 2011 at 3.50% to 4.00% interest; and

Morehead State University issued $10,000,000 in Housing and
Dining System Revenue Bonds and Refunding Revenue Bonds as
follows:

$5,125,000, Series P, Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds,
due serially and semi-annually each May 1 and November 1,
commencing November 1, 2001 through 2020 at 2.75% to 4.9%
interest. Thebond proceedswill pay thecostsof installing firesafety
equipment at West Mignon Hall and East Mignon Hall and
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constructionof a28unit L akewood Terrace Family Housing Complex;
and

$4,875,000 SeriesL, Consolidated Educational BuildingsRefunding
RevenueBonds, dueserially each May 1, 2002 through 2012 at 2.25%
t04.30%.

The Kentucky Housing Corporation, established in 1972 under
KRSChapter 198A,isamunicipal corporationandpolitical subdivision
of the Commonwealth governed by aboard of directors comprised
of the Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet,
Commissioner of theDepartment for L ocal Government, Secretary of
the Revenue Cabinet, Attorney General, Secretary of the Economic
Development Cabinet, Lieutenant Governor, and eight additional
membersappointed by the Governor. TheCorporationisauthorized
to increase the supply of housing for persons of lower income by
making or participating ininsured constructionloans, and making or
participating in insured mortgage loans when financing is not
available from private lenders under reasonably equivalent terms
and conditions. The Corporationislimitedtoa$2.125 billion total
maximum principal value of debt outstanding.

The Corporation issued Housing Revenue Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $176,220,000 to continue the Corporation’s
program of purchasing qualified mortgage loans made to eligible
borrowersto finance owner occupied singlefamily residences, and
refinance certain borrowings, Prior Bonds and Notes of the
Corporation asmorefully described in the Official Statement. The
Serieswereissued asfollows:

$41,880,000, 2001 SeriesF(AMT) withtermmaturitiesof $10,290,000,
dueJanuary 1, 2021 at 5.35%, $4,000,000, due July 1, 2021, at 5.35%,
$17,590,000, dueJanuary 1, 2032, at 5.45%, and $10,000,000, due July
1,2032, at 5.45%; and

$8,120,000, Seria Bond, dated August 2, 2001, with serial maturities
each January 1, 2003 and July 1, 2003, through 2011, at 3.375%to
4.65%; and

Thecorporation alsoissuedtwo series(SeriesCand SeriesA), dated
June 13, 2002, aggregateprincipal $76,220,000asfollows:

$21,220,000, 2002 SeriesC(NON-AMT), havingtermmaturitieseach
January 1and July 1, beginning January 1, 2003through July 1, 2017,
$9,575,000 at 1.90% to 4.95%; and $5,050,000 due July 1, 2022, at
5.20%; and $6,595,000 due July 1, 2027, at 5.375%; and

$55,000,000 2002 SeriesA (AMT), with maturitieseach July 1 and
January 1, beginning January 1, 2004 through July 1,2016, $14,095,000
at 2.65%t05.20%. Termbondsinclude$10,145,000dueduly 1,2022,
at 5.45%; $13,185,000due January 1,2028, at 4.50%; $7,335,000due
January 1,2030at 5.50%; and $6,305,000dueJduly 1, 2033, at 5.60%;
$3,935,000 dueJuly 1,2033, at 5.60%; and
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The corporation also issued a 2002 SeriesD (AMT), term bond as
follows:

$50,000,000dueduly 1,2014, at 1.90%t04.60%.

TheKentucky I nfrastructure Authority was created by House Bill
217, passedintolaw during the 1988 regul ar session of theK entucky
General Assembly, to assist governmental agenciesof the Statewith
respect to theconstruction and acquisition of infrastructureprojects
asdefinedinthelegislation. Pursuant tothisAct, whichamendsKRS
Chapter 224A, all powers, duties, and obligations of the Kentucky
Pollution Abatement and Water Resources Finance Authority,
including administration of debt serviceonrevenuebondspreviously
issued by the Authority, are transferred to the Kentucky
Infrastructure Authority, which is established as a body corporate
and politic, constituting a public corporation and a governmental
agency and instrumentality of the State.

The Authority issued a $68,020,000 Composite Issue, Revenue
Bond, 2001 Seriesfor the purposeof (1) providing monieswhichwill
st certain Governmental Agenciestofinancewastewater, drinking
water and water service programs of those Governmental Agencies
and (2) paying costsof i ssuanceasdescribedinthe Official Statement
dated December 1, 2001, asfollows:

$12,440,000, 2001 SeriesG, Waste Water Revolving Fund Program
RevenueBond, maturing serially each June1, 2002, through 2021 at
2.50%1t05.00%; and

$6,420,000, 2001 SeriesB, Drinking Water Revolving Fund Program
RevenueBond, maturing serially each June 1, 2002 through 2021 at
2.50%1t05.00%; and

$49,160,000, 2001 Series A, 2020 Water Service Revolving Fund
Program RevenueBond, maturing each June1, 2003 through 2021 at
4.00%t05.25%.

The Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corporation is
empowered by KRS Chapter 164A to make and reinsure student
loans with the United States of America, pursuant to the Federal
Higher Education Act of 1965, and as abody corporate and politic
actsasafinancing authority to assureasecondary market forinsured
student loans. The Corporation is governed by a seven member
board of directors consisting of the Chairman of the Council on
Postsecondary Education, the Secretary of the Finance and
Administration Cabinet, the Chairman of the Kentucky Higher
Education Assistance Authority, and four memberschosenfromthe
general public. The Corporationislimited toamaximum principal
outstanding of $553 million.

The Corporation issued $150,000,000 in Student Loan Revenue
Bonds, dated on the expected date of delivery on or about July 27,
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2001. Thesebonds, whichwereissued astwo Senior Seriesand one
Subordinate Series, Auction Rate Certificates, bear interest as
described in the Official Statement, described asfollows:

$59,850,000, Senior Series 2001A-1, are due May 1, 2031, and
$59,850,000, Series2001A-2, dueMay 1,2031; and

$30,300,000, Subordinate Series2001B, alsodueMay 1, 2031.

The corporationissued three series, expected date of delivery on or
about August 7, 2002, aggregateprincipal $150,000,000asfollows:

$55,450,000 Taxable Student L oan Revenue Bonds, Senior Series
2002A-1dueMay 1, 2032, at 1.89% to thelesser of 15% per annum
or the highest rate then permitted in conformance with applicable
Commonwealthlaw; and

$55,450,000 Taxable Student L oan Revenue Bonds, Senior Series
2002A-2dueMay 1,2032, at 1.9%tothelesser of 15% per annumor
the highest rate then permitted in conformance with applicable
Commonwealthlaw; and

$39,100,000 Student L oan Revenue Bonds, Senior Series2002A-3
due May 1, 2032, at 1.35% to the lesser of 15% per annum or the
highest rate then permitted in conformance with applicable
Commonwealthlaw.

The Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority is the
Commonwealth of Kentucky’ sagency forimproving higher education
opportunitiesby insuring eligiblestudent |oansand providing other
financial aidandrelated servicestoeligiblestudents. TheAuthority
isanissuer of studentloanspursuant tothe Federal Higher Education
Act of 1965, asamended (the ACT) in Kentucky and Alabama. As
such, the Authority is responsible for issuing loan insurance,
providing collection assistance to lenders for delinquent loans,
paying lender claims for loans, and collecting defaulted loans on
which claims have been paid.

TheAuthority issued no bondsduring theyear ended June 30, 2002.

The Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction
Authority isabody corporate and politic aswell asan agency and
instrumentality of the Commonwealth created in 1982 pursuant to
KRS441.605through441.695, asamended, to provideadditional and
alternative methods for acquiring, constructing, improving or
repairing, and financing both regional and local jail facilities.

TheAuthority issued no bondsduring theyear ended June 30, 2002.
The Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission was

created by act of the 1985 Extraordinary Session of the Kentucky
General Assembly asthe successor agency to the Kentucky School
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Building Authority (K SBA) and empowered pursuant toKRS157.640
with all rights of successorship necessary to assure al legal and
contractual functionsand liabilitiesassociated with theoutstanding
bonds issued in the name of the Authority, including refunding of
then existing Authority debt. The Commission is an independent
corporate agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth
pursuanttoKRS157.611 through 157.640 and empowered thereinto:
(2) act on behalf of local school districtstoissue bondsinthe name
of the Commission and to enter into lease agreements with local
boardsof educationtofinanceconstruction of new facilitiesor major
renovationof existingfacilities; (2) enter into agreementswhichmay
providefor apercentage discount, on abiennially renewable basis,
of annual lease agreements due the Commission for those districts
which participate; and (3) enter into lease agreements with the
Department of Educationto build State-owned facilitiesoperated by
the Department of Education.

Duringthefiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the Commission sold 25
school building revenue bond issues having aggregate state
participation of $17,769,205 maturing through October 1, 2023, at
interest ratesof 1.25%105.40%. Duetothelength of thelisting, the
reader isreferredtothedetail Scheduleof BondsOutstanding at June
30, 2002, which is contained in the publication titled
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION to the Kentucky
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for theFiscal Y ear Ended
June30, 2002. Copiesof thisreport areavailablefromtheDivision
of Statewide Accounting, Financial Reporting Branch, 483 Capitol
Annex, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.

The Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation is a public
corporation and governmental agency of the Commonwealth
established by act of the 1984 General Assembly for the purpose of
“improvingand promoting thehealth, welfare, and prosperity of the
people of the Commonwealth through the stimulation of existing
agricultural ventures.” The Authority’ sbond program is designed
to help lender banks and other financial institutions assist eligible
farmersin obtaining low interest loans through the i ssuance of tax
exempt agricultural revenue bonds. The Authority’ sdebt does not
congtituteal egal or moral obligation of the Commonwealth, andthis
debt isnot included in these general -purpose financial statements.

The Corporation issued no bonds during the year ended June 30,
2002.

The Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority,
established in 1958 under KRS Chapter 154, is an independent
agency of the Commonwealth that operates in close cooperation
withthe Secretary of the Economic Devel opment Cabinet to promote
theindustrial development of Kentucky.

TheAuthority i ssued no bondsduring thefiscal year ended June 30,
2002.
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NOTESPAYABLE:
AtJune 30, 2002, thefollowing entitieshad notes payableasfollows:

TheOfficeof Financial Management floated a$25millionsecurities
lending trade, using $25 million of internally held corporate bonds
ascollateral. Thebondswereconverted by Goldman Sachstoliquid
cash and then reinvested in public securities to essentially lock in
the underlying interest rate. This transaction was subsequently
liquidated on July 11, 2002.

The Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission, created by House Bill
5enacted by the 1997 Extraordinary Session of theK entucky General
Assembly, devel ops policies and strategiesto minimize theimpact
of fluctuating interest rates on the Commonwealth’s interest-
sensitive assets and liabilities. It is authorized to issue tax and
revenue anticipation notes, project notes and funding notes. Tax
andrevenuenotesareto beusedfor the purposeof providing monies
to discharge expenditure demands in anticipation of revenues and
taxesto be collected during thefiscal year. Project notesareto be
used for authorized projects upon request of the Finance and
Administration Cabinet, to berepaid through financing agreements
or aternative agreements. Funding notes are to be used for the
purpose of funding judgments against the Commonwealth or any
state agency.

$19,135,000 wasissued on Commission Notesasfollows:

$6,360,000 is outstanding on Project Notes, 2002 Agency Fund
SeriesA, dated June24, 2002, andisdueserially eachMay 1through
November 1, 2003, at 3.50%; and

$12,775,000 is outstanding on Project Notes, 2002 General Fund
SeriesA, dated June24, 2002, andisdueserially eachMay 1 through
November 1, 2003, at 3.50%.

TheKentucky Housing Corporation reported $2,525,000 in Notes
Payable for the current portion of long-term debt/Notes Payable
during Fiscal Y ear 2002. The Corporation hastwo uncollateralized
lines of credit with commercial banks. One of thelinesof creditis
used only to preserve tax-exempt bond issuing capacity, and
borrowingsareusually expectedto berepai d uponthenextissuance
of Housing Revenue Bonds. The line provides for borrowings up
t0$6,500, bearsinterest at thefederal fundsrate plus50 basispoints
and maturesMarch 31, 2003.

The second line of credit is used only for the purchase of single-
family mortgage loans and borrowings are repaid upon the next
issuance of Housing Revenue Bonds. The line provides for
borrowingsup to $30,000, bearsinterest at one-month LIBOR plus
20 basis points and matures March 1, 2004.
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The Kentucky Lottery Corporation borrowed $6,787,000 in
December 1996 to fund renovation of real estate purchased to be
used as new corporate headquarters. Monthly interest payments
include6.66% annual interest. Principal paymentsbeganinOctober
1997 and are due in 60 monthly installments. Current principal
outstanding on the Note is $339,000.

TheUniversity of Kentucky reported $1,425,000inNotesPayableas
follows: Kentucky Technology, Incorporated hasa$1,425,000 note
due 2003 at 2.0% annual interest. (See Note 8 to UK Research
Foundation’s audited financial statements.)

TheUniversity of Louisvillereported $7,467,000 in Notes Payable
tothe University of Louisville Foundation Inc. for the construction
of Cardinal Park on an unsecured, non-interest bearing basis due
upon receipt of pledgesby the Association, and $1,091,000inNotes
Payable for various other purposes .

Morehead State University had Notes Payabl e of $680,000, which
include$600,000ina5.00% notepayabletoanindividual , repayable
inannual installmentswiththefinal installment due June, 2010; and
$80,000ina5.00% notepayabletoanindividual, repayableinannual
installmentswith thefinal installment due June, 2010.

Murray State University reported Notes Payable of $1,683,765,
including$22,064fortheOhioV dley Conferenceassessment program
notesmaturingin2003at 6.0%, $5,220in GE Capital PublicFinance,
Inc., notes maturing in 2002 at 5.86%, $132,134 in Murray State
University Foundation notes due in 2008 for various academic
equipment and $1,524,347 for various M asterl ease notes payable.

Northern Kentucky University reported $1,367,000inNotes Payable
for variousinstallment purchase contracts to acquire property and
equipment during fiscal year 2002.

Western Kentucky University reported NotesPayabl eof $2,269,668
related to the payment of debt service on substantially all the
University’s residence halls, which have been transferred to the
WKU Student Life Foundation, Inc.

The General Fund, special revenue, and internal service fundsin
whichleasesarerecordedwill liquidatethecapital |leaseobligations.
The compensated absences will be liquidated by applicable
governmental andinternal servicefundsthat account for thesalaries
and wages of the related employees. The net pension obligations
will beliquidated by the State’ sgovernmental and internal service
funds that contribute toward the pension funds, based on the
statutorily required contribution rates. The General Fund and
transportation-related Special Revenuefundwill generally liquidate
other claims and judgments attributable to the governmental
activities.
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Future debt service requirementsfor aggregated Notes Payable at June 30, 2002, are as
follows (Expressed in Thousands)

Y ear Ending June 30, Principal Interest Totals
2003 $ 11,840 $ 3,297 $ 15,137
2004 31,475 2,562 34,037
2005 12,875 1,697 14,572
2006 13,420 1,149 14,569
2007 5,830 547 6,377
2008-12 6,095 283 6,378
Total $ 81,535 $ 9,535 $ 91,070

Changesin long-term liabilitiesfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, are summarized asfoll ows (Expressed in Thousands):

Governmental Activities
Compensated absences
Capital leases
Claims liability
Obligations under security lending
Long-term accounts payable
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Unamortized premiums
Unamortized discounts
Deferred amount on refunding
Judgments and contingent liabilities

Unfunded employer pension contributions

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Compensated absences
Capital leases
Claims and claims adjustment liability
Notes payable
Prize liability
Judgments and contingent liabilities
Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Component Units (Major)
Compensated absences
Capital leases
Notes payable
Bonds payable

Total Component Units

Beginning Ending Due In Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year Thereafter
$ 242,720 $ 164,284 $ (163,205) $ 243,799 $ 132273 % 111,526
22,294 10,313 (7,895) 24,712 7,947 16,765
101,648 56,261 (44,520) 113,389 21,137 92,252
25,000 25,000 25,000
3 3 3
73,875 19,135 (11,475) 81,535 11,840 69,695
2,944,839 976,355 (516,148) 3,405,046 118,733 3,286,313
17,221 44,824 (4,880) 57,165 8,185 48,980
(48,310) (4,798) 8,185 (44,923) (4,879) (40,044)
9,012 (15,192) (92) (6,272) (6,272)
377,905 77,429 (106,230) 349,104 68,272 280,832
77,731 502 (217) 78,016 78,016
$ 3818935 $ 1,354,116 $ (846,477) $ 4,326,574 $ 388,511 $ 3,938,063
$ 8,280 $ 3687 $ (3,461) $ 8,506 $ 4525 $ 3,981
76 191 (84) 183 80 103
1,359,758 136,240 (130,159) 1,365,839 136,544 1,229,295
1,697 (1,358) 339 339
263,240 (10,419) 252,821 47,802 205,019
511 127 (518) 120 18 102
$ 1633562 $ 140,245 $ (145,999) $ 1,627,808 $ 189,308 $ 1,438,500
$ 5452497 $ 1,494,361 $ (992,476) $ 5,954,382 $ 577,819 $ 5,376,563
$ 10,005 $ 16,590 $ (7,215) $ 19,380 $ 8,897 $ 10,483
50,759 11,321 (8,865) 53,215 8,885 44,330
11,570 43,164 (42,226) 12,508 2,754 9,754
2,291,844 539,058 (445,208) 2,385,694 94,061 2,291,633
$ 2,364,178 $ 610,133 $ (503,514) $ 2,470,797 $ 114,597 $ 2,356,200
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Note 16

SEGM ENT INFORM ATION

Segment financial information for the Commonwealth's Non-Major Colleges and Universties and Non-Major Component Units - Authorities for the year

June 30, 2002, is presented below (Expressed in Thousands):
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Non-Major Component Units-Colleges and Universities

Eastern Western Morehead Murray Northern Kentucky
Kentucky Kentucky State State Kentucky State Totals
University University University University University University June 30,2002

Assets
Current assets $ 74,785 $ 34337 $ 28,478 % 26,417 % 29,363 18,427 % 211,807
Capital assets 165,679 100,407 89,895 84,870 112,887 30,522 584,260
Other assets 7,051 81,791 47,292 83,657 31,987 23,022 274,800

Total Assets 247,515 216,535 165,665 194,944 174,237 71,971 1,070,867
Liabilities
Capital lease obligations 910 539 689 158 970 3,266
Other liabilities 23,874 19,167 11,426 22,536 17,870 6,857 101,730
Noncurrent liabilities 72,458 52,976 37,831 25,574 51,803 12,945 253,587

Total Liabilities 97,242 72,682 49,946 48,268 70,643 19,802 358,583
Net Assets
Investment in capital assets

net of related debt 92,757 46,895 68,128 85,180 56,286 23,676 372,922
Restricted for:

Debt service 8,016 3,982 3,646 15,644

Other purposes 37,791 76,921 30,981 41,936 31,728 28,189 247,546
Unrestricted 11,709 16,055 16,610 15,914 15,580 304 76,172

Total Net Assets $ 150,273 $ 143853 $ 115719 $ 146,676 $ 103,594 52,169 $ 712,284
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
(Expressed in Thousands):

Non-Major Conponent Units- Authorities

Kentucky School Kentucky Higher Kentucky Kentucky Local
Facilities Construction Education Assistance  Infrastructure Correctional Total
Conmission Authority Authority Facility June 30, 2002

Assets
Current assets $ 1,506 $ 22,166 $ 148,388 $ 17,338 $ 189,398
Capital assets 10,236 50 10,286
Other assets 21,539 23,584 442,218 9,949 497,290

Total Assets 23,045 55,986 590,656 27,287 696,974
Liabilities
Current liabilities 59,824 3,477 17,213 2,191 82,705
Noncurrent liabilities 554,482 8,240 208,118 30,587 801,427

Total Liabilities 614,306 11,717 225,331 32,778 884,132
Net Assets
Investment in capital assets

net of related debt 3,827 50 3,877
Unrestricted (591,261) 40,442 365,275 (5,491) (191,035)

Total Net Assets $ (591,261) $ 44269 $ 365,325 $ (5,491) $ (187,158)

CONDENSED STATEMENT O F REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(Expressed in Thousands):
Non-Major Component Units-Colleges and Universities

Eastern Western Morehead Murray Northern Kentucky Total
Kentucky Kentucky State State Kentucky State June 30,
University University University University University University 2002
Goods or services provided Education Education Education Education Education Education
Operating Revenues:

Charges for services $ 41392 % 57,619 $ 31,420 $ 45689 $ 45400 $ 10,709 $ 232,229

Operating grants and contributions 60,676 1,682 25,865 10,877 14,997 15,543 129,640

Capital grants and contributions 14,311 540 8,796 23,647

Total Operating Revenues 116,379 59,301 57,285 56,566 60,937 35,048 385,516
Operating Expenses:

Operating and other expenses 170,411 165,992 97,254 107,599 95,930 49,201 686,387

Depreciation and amortization 6,145 4,622 10,767

Total Operating Expenses 170,411 165,992 97,254 113,744 100,552 49,201 697,154
Operating Income (Loss) (54,032) (106,691) (39,969) (57,178) (39,615) (14,153) (311,638)
Nonoperating Revenues:

(Expenses) 72,317 132,507 53,290 63,344 58,176 25,827 405,461
Net Income (Loss) 18,285 25,816 13,321 6,166 18,561 11,674 93,823
Change in Net Assets 18,285 25,816 13,321 6,166 18,561 11,674 93,823
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 131,988 118,037 102,398 140,510 85,033 40,495 618,461
Net Assets at June 30 $ 150,273 $ 143,853 $ 115719 $ 146676 $ 103594 $ 52,169 $ 712,284

102



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

103



COMMONWEALTH OFKENTUCKY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(Expressed in Thousands):

Goods or services provided

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Operating and other expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Transfers:

From component units
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated
Net Assets at June 30

Non-Major Component Units- Authorities

Kentucky School Kentucky Higher Kentucky Kentucky Local
Facilities Construction  Education Assistance Infrastructure Correctional Total
Commission Authority Authority Facility June 30, 2002
School Education Infrastructure Jail facility
construction improvements projects improvement
$ 89,873 $ 18,275 $ 12995 $ 5382 $ 126,525
1,784 96,912 36,865 280 135,841
91,657 115,187 49,860 5,662 262,366
24,197 111,971 25,169 3,378 164,715
24,197 111,971 25,169 3,378 164,715
67,460 3,216 24,691 2,284 97,651
(33,998) 687 14,665 (18,646)
3,000 3,000
33,462 6,903 39,356 2,284 82,005
(624,723) 37,366 325,969 (7,775) (269,163)
$ (591,261) $ 44,269 $ 365,325 % (5,491) $ (187,158)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Expressed in Thousands):

Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities
Net Increase (Decrease)

Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances

Non-Major Component Units- Colleges and Universities

Eastern Western Morehead Murray
Kentucky Kentucky State State
University University University University
$ (55,399) $ (81,255) $ (34,208) $ (50,775)
68,587 89,224 43,747 58,003
(9,036) 27,077 (3,379) (1,410)
1,642 1,496 (3,156) 1,605
5,794 36,542 3,004 7,423
34,255 48,220 16,901 32,798
$ 40,049 $ 84,762 $ 19,905 $ 40,221
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Expressed in Thousands):

Non-Major Component Units- Authorities

Kentucky School Kentucky Hgher Kentucky Kentucky Local
Facilities Construction Education Assistance  Infrastructure Correctional Total
Conmission Authority Authority Facility June 30, 2002
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities $ 39,717 $ 5038 $ (11,610) $ 4106 $ 37,251
Noncapital financing activities (3,086) 88,703 85,617
Capital and related financing activities (43,674) (9,176) (3,541) (56,391)
Investing activities 1,167 (5,698) (69,171) 339 (73,363)
Net Increase (Decrease) (2,790) (12,922) 7,922 904 (6,886)
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances 4,296 20,907 116,586 17,718 159,507
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances $ 1506 $ 798 $ 124508 $ 18622 $ 152,621
Northern Kentucky
Kentucky State Total
University University June 30, 2002
$ (33,128) % (17,542) % (272,307)
44,970 23,521 328,052
(6,225) 348 7,375
2,718 (2,423) 1,882
8,335 3,904 65,002
41,519 1,915 175,608
$ 49,854 $ 5,819 $ 240,610
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Note 17

COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

L itigation - TheCommonwealth, itsunitsand employeesareparties
to numerous legal proceedings, many of which normally occur in
governmental operations. The legal proceedings are not, in the
opinion of the Attorney General, likely to have amaterial adverse
impact on the Commonwealth’ sfinancial position.

In addition, the Commonwealth and itsunitsareinvolvedin certain
other legal proceedings which, if decided adversely to the
Commonwealth, may requirethe Commonwealth to make material
futureexpendituresfor expanded servicesor capital facilitiesor may
impair future revenue sources or may require the refund of prior
collections. Itisneither possibleto determinethe outcome of these
proceedings nor to estimate the possible effects adverse decisions
may have on the future expenditures or revenue sources of the
Commonwealth.

Judgmentsand Contingencies—A claimisasuit that hasbeenfiled
but there has been no decision rendered by the court systems.
Amountsreported include claimsmade agai nst the Commonweal th
duringtheperiod preceding June30 of thecurrent fiscal year. Claims
are classified according to their chance of occurrence as either
remote, possible, or probable. Claims are further classified as
payablewithin oneyear, within future periods, or acombination of
the two periods.

A judgment isany amount that isto berepaid astheresult of acourt
decision or an award for the condemnation of private property.
Reasons for such amounts al so arise from employment, contracts,
and government involvement of personnel or property. TheGeneral
Fund, the Agency Revenue Fund, the Transportation Fund, and the
State Parks Fund generally pay claims and judgments. These
amounts are classified as either payable within one year, in future
periods, or acombination of the two periodsif they remain unpaid
after June 30 of the current fiscal year.

Feder al Grants- TheCommonwealthreceivessignificant financial
assistance from the U.S. Government in the form of grants and
Federal revenuesharing entitlements. Entitlement totheseresources
isgenerally conditioned upon compliancewithtermsand conditions
of thegrant agreementsand applicableFederal regulations, including
theexpenditureof theresourcesfor eligiblepurposes. Substantially
all grants are subject to financia and compliance audits by the
grantors. Any disallowance as a result of these audits becomes a
liahility of the Commonwealth.

L eases - The Commonwealth has entered into various operating
leasesfor land and buildings. All leasescontaintermination clauses
providingfor the cancell ation after 30, 60, or 90 dayswritten notice

tothelessors. Inaddition, all leases contain appropriation clauses
indicating that continuation of theleaseis subject to funding by the
legidlature. Itisexpectedthatinthenormal courseof businesssimilar
leases will replace most of these leases. Primary Government
expendituresfor rent under leasesfor theyearsended June 30, 2002
and 2001 amountedto $72.8 millionand $65.6 million, respectively.
Theoperatingleasesof theCommonweal thdo not containescal ation
clausesfor rental or expense that would require adjustment to bein
compliancewith GA SB Statement 13.

Compensated Absences — Compensated absences include
accumulated, unpaid vacationand compensatory timeaccruals. The
amount accruing to proprietary funds has been included in the
respective fundswhen material. The policy of the Commonwealth
istorecordthecost of annual and compensatory leave. Annual leave
isaccumulated at amountsranging from7.5to0 15.00 hoursper month,
as determined by the length of service, with the maximum
accumulationsranging from 30to 60 days. Thecalendar year isthe
period used for determining accumulated leave. Compensatory
leaveisgranted to authorized empl oyees on an hour-for-hour basis
or atime and one half basis. Compensated absences are generally
paid from the General Fund, the Transportation Fund, the Federal
Fund, the Agency Revenue Fund, and the Other Special Revenue
Fund. At June 30, 2002, the estimated liability for annual and
compensatory leavewas$243,799,008 for thegovernmental funds,
and $8,505,892 in the business-type activities.

Compensated absence liabilities for the major component units
total ed $19,380,000 at June 30, 2002.

Sick L eave- Thepolicy of the Commonwealthisto record the cost
of sick leavewhenpaid. Generally, sincesick leave (earned oneday
per month with unlimited accumulation) is paid only when an
employee is absent due to illness, injury, or related family death,
therewasnoliability for sick leaveat June 30, 2002. Theestimated
accumulated amount of unused sick leave at that date for the
governmental and proprietary fundswas$336,241,291 and $21,680,035
respectively.

Construction Projects - The Transportation Cabinet, at June 30,
2002, had contractual commitmentsof approximately $829,146,183
for the construction of numeroushighway projects. Itisanticipated
that theseprojectswill befunded with approximately 46 percent State
funds, 48 percent Federal funds, and the remaining 6 percent with
proceeds from the sale of revenue bonds.

Deferred Revenue—Deferredrevenuemay result fromtherecognition
of assetsbeforetheearningsprocessiscompl ete(unearned revenue),
or if usingthemodified accrual basi sof accounting, deferredrevenue
may represent unavailablerevenues. “Unavailable” meansthat the
assetsare not availableto finance expenditures of the current fiscal
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period. Regardless of whether the deferred revenueis unearned or
unavailable, itisstill reported as acontingent liability.

Note 18

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Thedebt-issuing entities of the Commonwealth issued or agreed to
administer State participation in debt service paymentsfor revenue
bondssold after June 30, 2002, and prior to December 20, 2002, and
reported other subsequent events for the same period, as described
below.

The Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority
established during the 2000 Regular Session of the Kentucky
General Assembly. House Bill No. 572 created the Office of the
Commissioner for theNew Economy withintheCabinet for Economic
Development. House Bill No. 572 also created a High-Tech
Construction Pool and a High Tech Investment pool which were
funded by the Authority in the amount of $20,000,000 each. The
duties of the Office of the Commissioner for the New Economy
includetherecommendation of projectstotheAuthority for approval
and funding through the High-Tech Construction and Investment
Pools. Fundingfor theoperation of the Officeconsistsof theinterest
earned on the balances in the High-Tech Construction and
Investment Pools.

In August 2002, the Authority’s Committee Members approved a
loanfor anamount upto $10,950,000to Hardin County, Kentucky to
helpfinancethepurchaseof an approximately 1,600 acretract of land
for future industrial development. Hardin County and the
Elizabethtown-Hardin County Industrial Foundation, Inc. along
with the Kentucky Cabinet for Economic Development intend to
market thisproperty inorder toattract amajor manufacturingfacility.
TheCabinet andthe A uthority alongwithlegislativeapproval of the
Kentucky General Assembly shall havetheright toapprovethesale
or transfer of the property to any such major manufacturingfacility.

Thenon-interest bearing loan was approved for aterm of ten years.
Collateral for the loan is a first mortgage on the property. No
payments are due on the loan unless Hardin County sells the
property. Thereexiststhe possibility that theloan may beforgiven
if a suitable major manufacturer that could create a significant
number of jobs decidesto locate its facility in Hardin County.

The Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission issued $500,000,000
new and previously authorized Notes, including:

$250,000,000, General Fund Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes,
2002 SeriesA, dated November 1, 2002, wereissued. The proceeds
will beusedto discharge expenditure demandson the General Fund
of the Commonwealth for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, in

anticipation of taxesand revenuesto becollected during Fiscal Y ear
2003. The Notesaredue June 26, 2003, at 2.75%; and

$200,000,000, General Fund Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes,
2002 SeriesB, dated November 1, 2002, wereissued. The proceeds
will beusedto dischargeexpenditure demandson the General Fund
of the Commonwealth for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, in
anticipation of taxesand revenuesto becollected during Fiscal Y ear
2003. TheNotesaredueJune26, 2003, at 100% of BMA Index plus
0.15%; and

$50,000,000, General Fund Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes,
2002 SeriesC, dated November 1, 2002, wereissued. The proceeds
will beusedto dischargeexpenditure demandson the General Fund
of the Commonwealth for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, in
anticipation of taxesand revenuesto becollected during Fiscal Y ear
2003. TheNotesaredueJune 26, 2003, at 90% of LIBOR.

The Kentucky Housing Corporation issued Housing Revenue
Bondsintheaggregateprincipal amount of $40,000,000to continue
the Corporation’ s program of purchasing qualified mortgageloans
madeto eligibleborrowerstofinance owner occupied singlefamily
residences as more fully described in the Official Statement dated
October 24, 2002. The Bondswereissued asfollows:

$40,000,000, Housing RevenueBonds, SeriesE (AMT), dated October
24, 2002, $4,175,000 biannually due each July 1 and January 1,
throughJuly 1, 2014 at 1.60%t04.10% interest; $3,220,000termbond
dueduly 1,2017 at 4.55%; $5,160,000 termbond due July 1, 2021, at
4.90%; $9,125,000termbonddueJanuary 1, 2027, &t 4.95%; $2,450,000
term bond due July 1, 2032 at 5.05%; $11,085,000 term bond due
January 1, 2033 at 5.05%.

The Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority was
establishedin 1966 asthe Commonweal th of Kentucky’ sagency for
improving higher education opportunities by insuring eligible
student loansand providing other financial aid and related services
to eligible students.

InNovember 1978, the A uthority commenced guaranteei ng student
loans asthe designated guarantee agency for Kentucky pursuant to
the Federal Higher Education Act of 1967, asamended. OnJuly 1,
1996, the A uthority wasdesignated by the United StatesDepartment
of Education (U.S.D.E.) asthe guarantee agency for Alabama. As
such, the Authority is responsible for issuing loan insurance,
providing assistance to lenders and lender service, paying lender
claimsforloansand collecting defaultedloansonwhich claimshave
been paid.

In February 1997, the U.S.D.E., Office of the Inspector General,
issuedafinal audit report whichincluded afinding that the Authority
had retained excess collection costs on post-default payments
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related to consolidation loans for the period June 1993 through
September 1996. AccordingtotheU.S.D.E., the Authority should
haveretained 18.5% of thecoll ections, versusthe27%allowablefor
other default collections.

Thefindingwasdisputedand, in September 1997, the Authority was
notified that the Secretary of Education would forego enforcing
audit exceptions on guarantorswho retained 27% versus 18.5% on
those collections prior to December 1995. However, the U.S.D.E.
would continueto require agenciesto return excesscoll ection costs
on consolidation payoffs after that date.

For loansmadeon or after October 1, 1998, thereinsuranceratewill
be 95%. In the event of future adverse default experience, the
Authority could be liable for up to 25% of such defaulted loans.

While management believes the FSLRF's expected maximum
contingent liability is less than 25% of outstanding guaranteed
loans, themaximum contingent liability at June30, 2002, iscomputed
asfollows:

Amount of guaranteed student loans outstanding at financial
Institutions. $ 2,336,677,000

Less minimum federal
government share — 75% 1,752,508,000

$ 584,169,000

The Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corporation is
empowered by KRS Chapter 164A to make and reinsure student
loans with the United States of America, pursuant to the Federal
Higher Education Act of 1965, and as abody corporate and politic
actsasafinancingauthority to assureasecondary market forinsured
student loans. The Corporation is governed by a seven member
board of directors consisting of the Chairman of the Council on
Higher Education, the Secretary of the Financeand Administration
Cabinet, theChairman of theK entucky Higher Education Assistance
Authority, and four members chosen from the general public.

The Corporation islimited to amaximum principal outstanding of

$533miillion.

The corporation has entered into loan purchase contracts with
variouseligiblelenders. Subjecttothetermsand conditionsof these
agreements, the Corporationon June 30, 2002, had plansto purchase
approximately $91 million of loans. These contracts cannot be
terminated by either party.

OnJuly 18, 2002, the Governor of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
issued Executive Order No 2002-48. The Executive Order had the
effect of making the membership of the KHESLC Board and the
Authority’s Board the same. For the year ended June 30, 2003

KHESL Cwill beconsidered acomponent unit of the Authority asa
result of the changes that resulted from the Executive Order.

OnJuly 25, 2002, theCorporationreceived anadditional $27,580,012
alocation from the Kentucky Private Activity Bond Allocation
Committee. Thiswill enablethe Corporationtoissueadditional tax-
exempt debt by December 2002 or to carryover for useinearly 2003.

On September 27,2002, the Corporationand Bank of Americaagreed
toextendthelL ineof Credit Agreement through December 31, 2003.

Kentucky | nfrastructureAuthority issued $16,875,000 Composite
I ssue Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2002 Seriesfor the purpose of (1)
providing moneys to refund certain outstanding bonds issued to
finance the Authority’ s wastewater revolving fund, infrastructure
revolving fund and solid waste revolving fund programs and (2)
paying costsof issuance, each asdescribedinthe Official Statement
dated October 1, 2002, asfollows:

$11,770,000 SeriesH, Wastewater Revolving Fund Program Revenue
Refunding Bonds, maturing serially each June 1 through 2015,
interest due biennially each June 1 and December 1, at 2.00% to
5.00%; $275,000 SeriesN, Infrastructure Revol ving Fund Program
Revenue Refunding Bonds, maturing on June 1, 2003 and June 1,
2004 at 2.00%; $290,000 SeriesOT, InfrastructureRevol ving Fund
Program RevenueRefunding Bonds, maturing each June 1, 2003and
June 1, 2004, at 2.25% to 2.75%; $3,865,000 Series O (AMT),
InfrastructureRevolving Fund Program Revenue Refunding Bonds,
maturingeach Junel, beginningJune1, 2004 through 2012, at 2.00%
t04.00%; $675,000, SeriesF, Solid WasteRevolving Fund Program
Revenue Refunding Bonds, maturing each June 1 through 2015, at
2.00%t05.00%.

The authority also issued $13,420,000 in Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds, 2002 Series K, dated December 19, 2002. The
bonds mature each August 1, 2003 through 2022 and bear interest
ratesfrom2.50%t05.00%. $5,632,436will financenew water system
projectsand $7,684,395 of the net proceedswill refund 1991 Series
D and 1993 Series E bonds.

Eastern Kentucky University has a self-insured health insurance
plan. Under this plan, the University pays premiums based on
estimated claims and has catastrophe insurance that covers claims
in excess of 125% of estimated claims. The University hasmadea
non-discretionary allocationtotheheal thcaresel f-insurancereserve,
which is the estimated difference between the premiums and the
catastrophe insurance coverage, in the current funds.

University of Louisville has been named as defendant in several
lawsuits, including several actions initiated by patients involving
alleged malpractice. It isthe opinion of management and itslegal
counsel, based in part on the doctrine of sovereign immunity,
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commercial insurance coverages and other statutory provisions,
that theultimate outcomeof litigationwill not haveamaterial effect
on the future operations or financial position of the University
beyond the amounts already provided.

Morehead State University has made certain commitmentsrel ated
to the completion of various construction in progress totaling
approximately $9,000,000.

Northern Kentucky University entered into a facilities lease,
commencingJuly 1, 2002, toleaseanew student housingfacility for
biennial termsrenewableuntil final terminationon December 1, 2027,
orasprovidedinthelease. Titletothehousing facility will transfer
to the University upon termination of facilities lease. The future
minimum lease paymentsareto bepaid from revenues of theleased
facility on parity with the current student housing facilities lease
enteredintoon April 22,1998. For accounting purposes, thefacilities
lease represents a capital |ease with imputed interest rates ranging
from 1.6 percent to 5.1 percent. The present value of the future
minimum|easepaymentsfor thenew housingfacility is$15,205,000.

Western Kentucky University hasissued $6,110,000, in Consolidated
Educational Buildings Refunding Revenue Bonds, SeriesN, dated
September 1, 2002, maturing serially each May 1, 2003through 2012,
at 2.0%t0 3.375% interest.

Kentucky School FacilitiesConstruction Commission administers
State participation in the debt service payments of local public
school district revenue bonds issued subsequent to June 30, 2002,
and maturing as to principal through 2018 is displayed in the
spreadsheet on the next page.

Noteto Subsequent Events: Pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12 and various
Continuing Disclosure Agreements on October 9, 2002, the
Commonwealth of Kentucky provided Notice of aMaterial Event,
which includes arating change of bondsissued by certain entities
of the Commonwealth. The state issuers affected include the
Kentucky State Property and Buildings Commission (“SPBC”),
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (“KIA”™), Turnpike Authority of
Kentucky (“ TAK"), Kentucky Asset/Liability Commission(“AlCo”),
and in general, Kentucky’ sissuer credit rating (“ICR”).

Kentucky’ sissuer credit ratingisloweredto‘AA-" from*AA’ and
removed from CreditWatchwith negativeimplications, whereitwas
placed onJune7, 2002. Kentucky Infrastructure Authority’ sbonds
secured by appropriationsfromthecommonwealth, arerated A+’
and the commonwealth’s outstanding lease aobligation debt is
loweredto’ A+’ from* AA-’. Bondssecured by thecommonweslth’'s
moral obligation pledgeareloweredto‘A-' from‘A’. Theratings
on the currently outstanding bonds are removed from CreditWatch
and are assigned stable outlooks.

Jonathan Miller, Treasurer v. T. Kevin Flanery, Secretary, Finance
and Administration Cabinet—Franklin Circuit Court, CaseNo. 02-Cl -
00855 — Treasurer Miller filed this declaratory judgment action
seeking a determination of his rights and responsibilities in the
absenceof an appropriation by the General Assembly to pay claims
or withdraw money from the State Treasury on behaf of the
Commonweslth in accordance with the June 26, 2002, Executive
Order issued by the Governor following the General Assembly’s
failureto passastatebudget for thefiscal year beginning July 1, 2002.
The Administrative Office of the Courts, the Kentucky Retirement
System and Senator David Williamshaveall intervened inthe case.
Thecasedoesnot seek monetary relief against the Cabinet. However,
a declaration that some or all of the provisions of the Executive
Spending Plan are unconstitutional could have a serious negative
impact on the Commonwealth’ s budget.

House Bill 614 passed by the 2002 General Assembly provided for
the creation of a tax amnesty program. The Kentucky Revenue
Cabinet instituted the program for a two-month period beginning
August 1, and terminating September 30, 2002.

The original estimate of revenues to be generated by the amnesty
program was $20 million dollars. It is estimated that the program
generated over $35 million in new revenue and accelerated the
collection process of other receivables.
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Sale Principal State Interest
School District Date at Issue Share Rates
Anderson County 10/02/02 6,205,000 625,396 1.25%-3.50%
Boone County 09/24/02 13,925,000 1,968,989 1.43%-4.05%
Bourbon County 08/22/02 2,495,000 283,668 1.35%-3.75%
Fulton County 08/29/02 1,520,000 149,998 3.75%-3.75%
Grant County 07/16/02 985,000 217,156 1.45%-3.75%
Hardin County 09/10/02 2,915,000 1,238,696 1.25%-3.20%
Harlan County 09/18/02 2,850,000 1,753,512 1.30%-3.55%
Harrodsburg Independent 08/29/02 1,670,000 668,691 1.40%-3.80%
Hopkins County, Series 2002A 09/18/02 2,625,000 1,982,619 1.50%-3.45%
Hopkins County, Series 2002B 09/18/02 2,915,000 1,218,440 1.50%-3.45%
Knott County 08/28/02 1,820,000 949,522 1.25%-3.85%
Jessamine County 08/15/02 3,290,000 534,195 1.20%-2.25%
Marion County 07/31/02 3,490,000 2,039,148 1.50%-3.85%
McLean County 08/14/02 3,370,000 1,240,683 1.35%-3.80%
Pineville Independent 08/01/02 1,270,000 162,630 1.50%-3.85%
Somerset Independent 08/27/02 1,160,000 353,789 1.45%-4.00%
52,505,000 $ 15,387,132

Audited financial statementsmay ber equested at thefollowingaddr esses:

Bluegrass State SkillsCorporation
Capital PlazaTower

500 Mero Street

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Turnpike Authority of Kentucky
Room 92, Capitol Annex Building
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
501 High Street

Room808

Frankfort, Kentucky 40622

Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation
5Riverfront Plaza
Louisville, Kentucky 40202-2989

Kentucky Economic Devel opment Finance Authority
Capital PlazaTower

500 Mero Street

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Higher Education Student Loan Corporation
10180Linn Station Road

P.O.Box 24266

Louisville, Kentucky 40224-0266

Kentucky Housing Corporation
1231 LouisvilleRoad
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Retirement Systems
Perimeter Park West

1260 L ouisvilleRoad
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Teachers Retirement System
479V ersaillesRoad
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

University of Louisville
2301 South 3rd Street

108 Grawemeyer Hall
Louisville, Kentucky 40292
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Western Kentucky University

VicePresident for Finance and Administration
1BigRed Way

Bowling Green, Kentucky 42101-3576

Murray State University
322 SparksHall
Murray, Kentucky 42071

Kentucky State University
Officeof Administrative Affairs
400 East Main Street

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky L ottery Corporation
1011 West Main Street
Louisville, Kentucky 40202-2623

Kentucky State Fair Board

Kentucky Fair and Exposition Center
P.O.Box 37130

Louisville, Kentucky 40233-7130

Kentucky Educational Television
600 Cooper Drive
Lexington, Kentucky 40502

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
1050U.S.127 South, Suite102
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Educational Savings Plan Trust
1050U.S.127 South, Suite102
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
375VersallesRd.
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority

Suite261 Capitol Annex
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Judicial Form Retirement System
P.O.Box 791
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602

Kentucky Horse Park
4089 1ronWorksParkway
Lexington, Kentucky 40511

University of Kentucky
301 Peterson ServiceBuilding
L exington, Kentucky 40506-0005

Eastern Kentucky University
VicePresident for Business Affairs
521 Lancaster Avenue

Richmond, Kentucky 40475-3101

Morehead State University

Office of Accounting and Budgetary Control
207 Howell-McDowell AdministrationBuilding
Morehead, K entucky 40351-1689

Northern Kentucky University

Officeof Business Affairs
LucasAdministration Center 726
NunnDrive

HighlandHeights, Kentucky 41099-8101

Kentucky Community and Technical College System
POBoOx 14092

2760 Research Park Drive

Convention Building

L exington, Kentucky 40512-4092

KAPT Treasury Department
Capitol Annex, Suite 183
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky Access
Department of Insurance
215 West Main Street
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Kentucky River Authority
70WilkinsonBoulevard
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,EXPENDITURES,AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)-GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes $ 6,620,300 $ 6,443,700 $ 6,282,519 $ (161,181)
Licenses, fees, and permits 24,300 24,400 25,202 802
Intergovernmental 6,200 6,200 7,004 804
Charges for services 2,900 2,900 6,348 3,448
Fines and forfeits 44,200 44,200 44,754 554
Interest and other investmentincome 15,800 7,900 13,343 5,443
Lottery proceeds 156,000 169,000 169,000
Other revenues 17,300 17,200 144,824 127,624
Transfers in
Total Budgeted Revenues 6,887,000 6,715,500 6,692,994 (22,506)
Non-Budgeted
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investmentincome
Employer contributions
Other revenues
Escheat
Transfers in (interfund) 125,501 125,501
Transfers in (intrafund)
Total Non-Budgeted Revenues 125,501 125,501
Total Revenues 6,887,000 6,715,500 6,818,495 102,995
Expenditures
Generalgovernment 2,091,716 1,951,483 1,841,241 110,242
Legislative and judicial 265,271 260,942 228,817 32,125
Commerce 61,054 59,232 52,303 6,929
Education and humanities 3,034,260 2,942,110 2,939,171 2,939
Human resources 1,392,967 1,407,685 1,402,678 5,007
Justice 506,176 488,191 483,458 4,733
Naturalresources and
environmental protection 62,415 66,942 66,922 20
Public protection and
regulation 75,589 60,048 58,294 1,754
Transportation 10,639 9,417 7,742 1,675
Total Expenditures 7,500,087 7,246,050 7,080,626 165,424
Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures (613,087) (530,550) (262,131) 268,419
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources over (under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (613,087) (530,550) (262,131) 268,419
Fund Balance at July 1, as Restated 395,979 395,979
Non-Budgeted ltems 306 306
Fund Balance at June 30 $ (613,087) $ (134,571) $ 134,154 $ 268,725

ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Transportation Fund

Federal Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ 922,827 $ 938,595 $ 950,847 $ 12,252 $ $
112,646 103,137 109,615 6,478
22,605 21,505 23,213 1,708
40 8 5 (3)
19,000 23,700 32,952 9,252
664 2,555 2,205 (350)
1,077,782 1,089,500 1,118,837 29,337
2
168 168 4,747,711
402
446
67,691
1,967 1,967 10,241
3,690
2,135 2,135 4,830,183
1,077,782 1,089,500 1,120,972 31,472 4,830,183
5,494 5,494 5,410 84 120,019 153,605 83,255 70,350
3,573 7,067 3,480 3,587
7,160 8,184 7,748 436
647,744 660,712 636,367 24,345
3,109,857 3,517,710 3,413,753 103,957
30,000 30,000 30,000 43,849 54,672 44,972 9,700
62,244 68,019 47,213 20,806
6,206 6,506 5,628 878
1,752,940 1,646,942 1,184,034 462,908 1,092,651 1,094,513 536,031 558,482
1,788,434 1,682,436 1,219,444 462,992 5,093,303 5,570,988 4,778,447 792,541
(710,652) (592,936) (98,472) 494,464 51,736
(710,652) (592,936) (98,472) 494,464 51,736
644,857 644,857 3,035
7,656 7,656 (12,773)
$ (710,652) $ 51,921 $ 554,041 $ 502,120 $ $ 41,998
Continued
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINED SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)-GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits

Interest and other investmentincome

Lottery proceeds

Other revenues

Transfers in

Total Budgeted Revenues

Non-Budgeted

Taxes

Licenses, fees, and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeits

Interest and other investmentincome

Employer contributions
Other revenues
Escheat
Transfers in (interfund)
Transfers in (intrafund)
Total Non-Budgeted Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Generalgovernment
Legislative and judicial
Commerce
Education and humanities
Human resources
Justice
Naturalresources and

environmental protection
Public protection and

regulation
Transportation

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over
(under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sale of bonds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources over (under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance At July 1, As Restated
Non-Budgeted ltems
Fund Balance At June 30

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN

Agency Revenue Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Actual

Variance

179,200
107,123
26,828
1,732,340
3,029
32,653

2

278,983
91
455,107
1,062,370

3,877,726

3,877,726

2,091,346
14,908
31,570
58,306

515,759
63,156

34,757

74,173
291,548

2,151,620
17,193
33,438
76,805

778,555
69,905

37,641

80,023
314,951

1,455,666
6,628
31,053
53,826
729,106
61,324

23,703

65,799
104,369

695,954
10,565
2,385
22,979
49,449
8,581

13,938

14,224
210,582

3,175,523

3,560,131

2,531,474

1,028,657

1,346,252

2,207

2,207

1,348,459
680,654
(1,257,050)

$

772,063

$
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Lottery proceeds
Other revenues
Total Budgeted Revenues
Non-Budgeted:
Other revenues
Transfers in (interfund)
Total Non-Budgeted Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Cabinet of the General Government:
Governor's Office
Department of Veterans Affairs

Governor's Office for Policy and Management

State Planning Fund

Unified Prosecutorial System: Commonwealth Attorneys
County Attorneys

Department of Agriculture

Office of the Attorney General
Auditor of Public Accounts
Registry of Election Finance
Department of Military Affairs
Department of Local Government

Local Government: Economic Assistance Fund
Economic Development Fund
Area Development Fund

Secretary of State - General Operations

Department of the Treasury

Board of Elections

Personnel Board

School Facilities Construction Commission

Executive Branch Ethics Commission

Commission on Human Rights

Commission on Women

Council on Postsecondary Education

Education Professional Standards Board

Emergency Medical Services Board

Office of CIO

Personnel Cabinet: General Operations

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 6,620,300 6,443,700 6,282,519 $ (161,181)
24,300 24,400 25,202 802
6,200 6,200 7,004 804
2,900 2,900 6,348 3,448
44,200 44,200 44,754 554
15,800 7,900 13,343 5,443
156,000 169,000 169,000
17,300 17,200 144,824 127,624
6,887,000 6,715,500 6,692,994 (22,506)
125,501 125,501
125,501 125,501
6,887,000 6,715,500 6,818,495 102,995
8,521 8,072 7,788 284
14,140 12,595 12,594 1
4,308 3,719 3,646 73
600 490 293 197
23,503 23,083 23,083
21,084 20,664 20,664
21,249 20,134 20,133 1
13,751 13,092 13,062 30
5,980 5,669 5,669
1,557 1,475 1,415 60
11,270 16,471 16,430 41
12,189 11,935 11,935
28,996 35,986 35,986
36,709 41,039 41,039
1,000 831 831
2,491 2,360 2,210 150
2,402 2,276 2,075 201
3,946 2,887 2,730 157
596 579 513 66
79,031 75,318 75,299 19
310 310 310
2,088 1,978 1,975 3
270 270 270
126,558 129,141 129,134 7
12,451 11,852 11,209 643
2,707 2,571 2,495 76
1,267 1,267 1,267
3,920 3,805 3,794 11
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Original Final Actual Variance

Cabinet for Universities:

Eastern Kentucky University $ 72,435 $ 69,933 $ 69,450 $ 483
Kentucky State University 22,718 22,262 22,190 72
Morehead State University 41,031 40,160 39,903 257
Murray State University 50,737 49,637 49,637
Northern Kentucky University 44,613 43,689 43,303 386
University of Kentucky 322,210 303,913 303,652 261
University of Louisville 179,635 172,561 172,337 224
Western Kentucky University 67,702 66,266 66,137 129
Kentucky Community and Technical College System 185,689 178,789 178,574 215
Revenue Cabinet: General Operations 67,177 63,637 62,880 757
Office of Property Valuation Administrators 26,369 25,507 25,506 1
Finance and Administration Cabinet
Office of the Secretary 5,613 5,732 5,372 360
Debt Service 244,703 169,653 131,362 38,291
Office of the Controller 6,825 6,126 6,112 14
Department for Administration 3,789 3,590 3,590
Department for Facilities Management 8,822 8,436 8,435 1
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority 54,377 59,496 51,800 7,696
Special Accounts - Tobacco Settlement 121,600 90,822 90,822
County Costs 20,881 20,881 18,813 2,068
Appropriations Not Otherw ise Classified:
Judgments 96,845
Board of Claims Awards 600 600 401 199
Guardian Ad Litem 2,000 3,350 3,350
Court Ordered Tax Refunds 91,720 35,689 56,031
Prior Y ear Claims 400 1,036 638 398
Unredeemed Checks Refunded 500 1,508 1,441 67
Involuntary Commitments 50 50 50
Blanket Employee Bonds 100 70 30
Frankfort In Lieu of Taxes 195 195 195
Frankfort Cemetery 3 3 3
Police and Firemen Life Insurance 250 250 100 150
Master Commissioner Employers Retirement 264 264 262 2
Master Commissioner Social Security 226 285 285
Workers' Compensation 288 288 286 2
Attorney General Expense 225 725 627 98
Medical Malpractice Liability Insurance Reimbursements 50 150 120 30
Total General Government 2,091,716 1,951,483 1,841,241 110,242
Legislative and Judicial:
General Assembly 25,853 23,825 12,711 11,114
Legislative Research Commission 33,908 33,908 26,799 7,109
Judicial Retirement System 4,214 4,213 4,213
Court of Justice - Court Facility Use 533 533
Court of Justice - Operation and Administration 152,051 143,132 143,132
Court of Justice - Local Facility Support 49,245 55,331 41,962 13,369
Total Legislative and Judicial 265,271 260,942 228,817 32,125
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COMMONWEALTH OFKENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

BUDGET TO ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)- GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

FUND BALANCE

Commerce:

Economic Development Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Administration and Support
Job Development
Financial Incentives
Community and Business Development
Debt Service

Tourism Cabinet: Office of the Secretary
Breaks Interstate Park
Travel Development
Kentucky State Fair Board
Kentucky Horse Park
Department of Parks

Total Commerce

Education, Arts and Humanities Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Commission on Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Kentucky Heritage Council
Kentucky Arts Council
Department of Education:
Support Education Excellence In KY (SEEK)
Executive Policy and Management
Management Support Services
Learning Results Services
Kentucky Education Television
Kentucky Historical Society
Kentucky Center for the Arts
Libraries and Archives - Direct Local Aid
Libraries and Archives - General Operations
Teachers' Retirement System
Workforce Development Cabinet- Office of the Secretary:
Administration and Program Support
Teacher Retirement Employer Contribution Match
Workforce Development Cabinet:
Department for the Blind
Department of Employment Services
Board for Adult and Technical Education
Department for Technical Education
Department for Adult Education & Literacy
Department of Vocational Rehabilitation
Total Education and Humanities

Human Resources:

Cabinet for Families and Children:
Administrative Services
O ffice of Family Resources and Youth Services Centers
Community Based Services

Cabinet for Health Services:
Administrative Support
Office of the Inspector General
Department of Public Health
Department for Mental Health and Mental Retardation
Department for Medicaid Services
Medicaid Services Benefits
Commission for Children With Special Health Care Needs
Office of Aging Services

Total Human Resources

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 4,392 1,644 1,580 64
3,199 2,176 2,053 123
3,572 2,539 2,401 138
4,693 10,483 4,056 6,427
4,068 2,829 2,730 99
1,006 612 612
1,873 1,491 1,413 78
250 200 200
7,427 7,040 7,040
407 407 407
1,681 1,893 1,893
28,486 27,918 27,918
61,054 59,232 52,303 6,929
3,251 3,211 3,186 25
899 849 849
978 924 924
4,895 4,626 4,626
2,236,811 2,202,154 2,202,154
658 644 644
11,911 11,086 10,893 193
599,785 547,175 544,743 2,432
17,063 16,211 16,211
6,503 6,145 6,145
656 620 619 1
6,675 6,323 6,313 10
7,663 7,240 7,111 129
82,222 82,222 82,222
2,695 1,855 1,855
4,751 4,656 4,656
1,739 1,643 1,633 10
628 584 584
32
21,925 22,335 22,324 11
11,360 11,134 11,033 101
11,160 10,473 10,446 27
3,034,260 2,942,110 2,939,171 2,939
31,231 31,231 28,881 2,350
51,790 50,956 834
291,008 282,409 281,308 1,101
4,619 4,308 4,308
5,733 5,618 5,618
63,138 58,235 57,535 700
182,905 169,341 169,319 22
18,080 17,718 17,718
764,493 749,203 749,203
6,176 13,010 13,010
25,584 24,822 24,822
1,392,967 1,407,685 1,402,678 5,007
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Justice Cabinet:

Justice - Administration

Department of State Police

Department of Juvenile Justice

Department of Corrections:
Management
Adult Institutions
Local Jail Allotment
Community Services and Local Facilities
Total Justice

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Cabinet:

Office of the Secretary
Kentucky River Authority
Environmental Quality Commission
Kentucky Nature Preserves Commission
Department for Environmental Protection
Department for Natural Resources
Department for Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement
Total Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection

Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Board of Claims and Crime Victims Compensation
Board of Tax Appeals
Kentucky Racing Commission
Public Service Commission
Department - for Public Advocacy
of Alcoholic Beverage Control
of Housing, Buildings, and Construction
for Mines and Minerals
Labor Cabinet - Office of the Secretary
Department of Workplace Standards
Workers Compensation Funding Commission
Total Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation Cabinet:
Air
Rail
Public
Total Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at July 1, as Restated
Non-Budgeted ltems
Fund Balance at June 30

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 8,033 $ 7,702 $ 7,700 $ 2
89,633 85,846 82,845 3,001
92,568 86,475 85,175 1,300
26,460 25,573 25,573
193,614 184,130 184,130
15,596 15,596 15,165 431
80,272 82,869 82,870 (1)
506,176 488,191 483,458 4,733
9,656 9,463 9,463
543 535 515 20
258 253 253
932 913 913
24,530 23,894 23,894
15,741 21,494 21,494
10,755 10,390 10,390
62,415 66,942 66,922 20
623 623 572 51
468 468 445 23
423 423 423
12,455 12,087 10,577 1,510
24,821 24,067 24,067
1,442 1,413 1,413
3,804 3,804 3,796 8
9,913 9,913 9,913
559 439 378 61
2,081 2,061 1,960 101
19,000 4,750 4,750
75,589 60,048 58,294 1,754
958 836 439 397
78 78 78
9,603 8,503 7,225 1,278
10,639 9,417 7,742 1,675
7,500,087 7,246,050 7,080,626 165,424
(613,087) (530,550) (262,131) 268,419
395,979 395,979
306 306
$ (613,087) $ (134,571) $ 134,154 $ 268,725
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)-BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues
Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Other revenues
Total Budgeted Revenues
Non-Budgeted:
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Employer contributions
Other revenues
Escheat
Transfers in (interfund)
Transfers in (intrafund)
Total Non-Budgeted Revenue
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Cabinet of the General Government:
Governor's Office
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
Governor's Office for Policy and Management
Governor's Office for Technology
Department of Veterans Affairs
Commission of SmallBusiness Advocacy
Unified Prosecutorial System: Commonw ealth Attorneys
County Attorneys
Department of Agriculture
Office of the Attorney General
Auditor of Public Accounts
Registry of Election Finance
Department of Military Affairs
Kentucky Retirement Systems
Agricultural Development: Statewide Phase
Local Government: Development Districts
Secretary of State and Treasury
Board of:
Accountancy
Alcoholand Drug Counselors
Auctioneers
Barbering
Chiropractic Examiners
Professional Counselors
Fee-Based Pastoral Counselors
Interpreters for Deaf & Hard of Hearing
Dentistry
Dietitians and Nutritionists
Elections
Embalmers and Funeral Home Directors
Education Professional Standards
Examiners and Registration of Architects
Examiners and Registration of
Landscape Architects
Examiners of Psychologists
Examiners of Social Workers
Hairdressers and Cosmetologists
Licensing Hearing Aid Dealers & Fitters
Proprietary Education
Licensure for Nursing Home Administrators

Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 922,827 $ 938,595 950,847 12,252
112,646 103,137 109,615 6,478
22,605 21,505 23,213 1,708
40 8 5 (3)
19,000 23,700 32,952 9,252
664 2,555 2,205 (350)
1,077,782 1,089,500 1,118,837 29,337
168 168
1,967 1,967
2,135 2,135
1,077,782 1,089,500 1,120,972 31,472
125 125 42 83
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$
179,200
2 107,123
4,747,711 26,828
402 1,732,340
3,029
446 32,653
2
67,691 278,983
91
10,241 455,107
3,690 1,062,370
4,830,183 3,877,726
4,830,183 3,877,726
262 683 320 363 950 1,962 1,401 561
50,197 50,312 1,074 49,238 603 6,514 2,030 4,484
963 1,463 424 1,039
1,350 2,648 1,268 1,380
16,358 16,358 11,854 4,504
221 221 110 111
608 668 498 170 180 409 337 72
264 384 332 52 40 40 8 32
2,035 2,335 2,080 255 2,541 2,541 2,242 299
2,584 2,584 2,234 350 3,418 3,419 1,507 1,912
4,405 4,405 2,500 1,905
20 20 20
9,395 28,395 23,757 4,638 17,055 26,155 20,795 5,360
13,863 13,863 12,495 1,368
736 150 586
44,081 52,758 45,751 7,007 671 671 442 229
897 1,288 1,267 21
724 724 545 179
90 90 44 46
351 351 329 22
209 216 212 4
174 174 137 37
47 62 52 10
21 21 5 16
79 80 25 55
461 462 411 51
68 68 53 15
60 60 60
210 229 225 4
122 122 81 41 778 779 320 459
219 219 180 39
54 54 47 7
208 208 175 33
140 140 86 54
1,041 1,041 910 131
61 61 41 20
119 119 80 39
89 89 58 31
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(Expressed in Thousands)

Board of: (Continued)
Medical Licensure
Nursing
Ophthalmic Dispensers
Optometric Examiners
Art Therapists
Occupational Therapy
Respiratory Care Practitioners
Marriage and Family Therapists
Geologists
Personnel
Pharmacy
Physical Therapists
Podiatry
Registration for Professional
Engineers and Land Surveyors
Speech Pathology and Audiology
V eterinary Examiners
Kentucky Athletics Commission
Executive Branch Ethics Commission
Real Estate Commission
Real Estate Appraiser Board
Commission on Human Rights
Councilon Postsecondary Education
Commission on Women
Personnel Cabinet: General Operations
Public Employee Deferred Compensation Authority
Cabinet for Universities:
Eastern Kentucky University
Kentucky State University
Morehead State University
Murray State University
Northern Kentucky University
University of Kentucky
University of Louisville
Western Kentucky University
Kentucky Community and Technical College System
Revenue Cabinet: General Operations
Office of Property Valuation
Administrators Accounting
Finance and Administration Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary - Debt Service
Office of the Controller
Rural Empowerment Zone Grant
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority
County Costs
Department for Administration
Office Of Governmental Services Center
Department for Facilities Management
Campbell County Fees
Daviess County Fees
Fayette County Fees
Hardin County Fees
Jefferson County Fees
Kenton County Fees
Pike County Fees
Warren County Fees
Total General Government

Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance
$ $
1,418 1,418 1,417 1
3,668 3,668 3,668
283 283 283
5,494 5,494 5,410 84
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance

$ $ $ $ 1,827 1,827 $ 1,812 $ 15
3,354 4,104 3,565 539
55 55 38 17
144 144 141 3
11 11 9 2
77 81 72 9
111 111 104 7
72 73 48 25
156 156 93 63
6 6 6
787 787 762 25
301 301 200 101
14 14 12 2
1,134 1,134 1,133 1
109 109 74 35
198 233 138 95
131 186 135 51
10 10 5 5
1,911 1,911 1,664 247

512 512 512
171 373 245 128 12 12 6 6
1,100 5,040 2,576 2,464 5,380 6,588 2,604 3,984

3 6 6
9,924 9,984 9,818 166
5,741 5,741 3,846 1,895
124,499 134,999 134,853 146
31,161 31,161 29,933 1,228
77,132 77,132 53,897 23,235
62,110 62,110 58,199 3,911
66,791 77,790 76,688 1,102
879,200 879,200 700,615 178,585
299,735 299,735 26,130 273,605
113,210 113,211 71,478 41,733
199,369 200,310 80,884 119,426
15 15 3,581 3,582 2,990 592
3,272 4,800 4,530 270
2,651 2,751 2,369 382
390 390 362 28

8,000 8,000 3,388 4,612
1,200 1,200 754 446 46,508 59,270 57,228 2,042
1,327 1,927 1,480 447
3,382 3,472 2,780 692
1,512 1,512 1,411 101
133 133 9 124
3,910 3,910 2,678 1,232
4,522 5,122 4,623 499
12,549 13,300 8,983 4,317
3,675 3,675 3,397 278
33,148 33,147 27,546 5,601
7,466 7,466 5,389 2,077
3,847 3,847 2,726 1,121
5,548 6,348 4,996 1,352
120,019 153,605 83,255 70,350 2,091,346 2,151,620 1,455,666 695,954
Continued

125



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation

Original Final Actual

Variance

Legislative and Judicial:
General Assembly $ $ $
Legislative Research Commission
Judicial Retirement System
Court of Justice - Operations and Administration

Total Legislative and Judicial

Commerce:
Economic Development Cabinet
Office of the Secretary
A dministration and Support
Financial Incentives
Community and Business Development
Tourism Cabinet: Office of the Secretary
Travel Development
Department of Parks
Department of Fish and Wildlife Resources

Total Commerce

Education and Humanities Cabinet:
Commission on the Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Environmental Education Council
Kentucky Heritage Council
Kentucky Arts Council
Office of the Secretary
Department of Education:
Management Support Services
Learning Results Services
Learning Support Services

Kentucky Educational Television

Kentucky Historical Society

Libraries and Archives -
Direct Local Aid
General Operations

Teachers' Retirement System

Workforce Development Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary

Administration & Program Support

Department for the Blind
Office of Training and Reemploy ment
Department of Employment Services
Department for Technical Education
Deptartment for Adult Education & Literacy
Deptartment of Vocational Rehabilitation

Total Education and Humanities

Human Resources:
Cabinet for Families and Children
Administrative Services
Disability Determination
Community Based Services
Family Resources and Youth Services
Centers
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Federal Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ $ $ $ 535 $ 535 $ 201 $ 334
1 1 2 1,611 1,611
27 165 138 27
3,573 7,066 3,480 3,586 14,344 14,882 6,289 8,593
3,573 7,067 3,480 3,587 14,908 17,193 6,628 10,565
3,000 3,934 3,308 626
160 160 2 158
1,834 1,834 1,719 115
160 160 129 31 456 956 314 642
100 100 100
100 100 4 4 4
14 14
7,000 7,910 7,619 291 26,016 26,450 25,710 740
7,160 8,184 7,748 436 31,570 33,438 31,053 2,385
200 214 192 22
150 161 154 7
796 796 736 60 256 934 621 313
611 611 554 57 457 931 497 434
70 119 49 70
2,312 2,312 918 1,394
475,315 475,315 467,414 7,901 3,896 6,796 3,989 2,807
551 552 547 5
700 700 267 433 1,227 1,959 1,946 13
413 413 75 338 643 643 499 144
576 696 596 100 9 9 4 5
1,725 1,725 1,225 500 1,880 2,081 1,452 629
6,021 6,421 6,126 295
288 288 149 139 6,328 6,328 5,023 1,305
7,502 7,502 6,759 743 1,436 1,833 1,783 50
58,762 58,762 50,351 8,411 52 52 52
40,374 46,967 46,050 917 11,832 11,832 7,206 4,626
10,369 13,834 13,580 254 18,346 19,739 19,539 200
10,520 10,520 9,033 1,487 74 11,324 1,666 9,658
39,242 42,031 39,031 3,000 3,117 3,117 2,162 955
647,744 660,712 636,367 24,345 58,306 76,805 53,826 22,979
37,636 37,636 28,970 8,666 4,169 4,169 3,610 559
38,559 38,559 36,365 2,194 76 76 55 21
445,035 481,335 447,514 33,821 98,550 98,550 88,219 10,331
235 208 27
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(Expressed in Thousands)

Cabinet for Health Services
Administrative Support
Office of Inspector General
Department of Public Health
Department for Mental Health and
Mental Retardation
Department for Medicaid Services
Medicaid Services Benefits
Office of Certificate Of Need
Commission for Children w ith Special
Health Care Needs
Office of Aging Services
Total Human Resources

Justice Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Department of State Police
Department of Juvenile Justice
Department of Criminal Justice Training
Department of Corrections -
Management
Adult Institutions
Community Service and Local Facilities
Total Justice
Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Kentucky River Authority
Environmental Quality Commission
Kentucky Nature Preserves Commission
Department for Environmental Protection
Department for Natural Resources
Department for Surface Mining -
Reclamation & Enforcement
Reclamation Projects
Total Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet:
Office of the Secretary
Board of Claims and Crime Victims Compensation
Kentucky Racing Commission
Public Service Commission
Health Purchasing Alliance
Department - for Public Advocacy
of Alcoholic Beverage Control
of Charitable Gaming
of Financial Institutions
of Housing, Buildings, and Construction
of Insurance
for Mines and Minerals

Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance
30,000 30,000 30,000
30,000 30,000 30,000
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ 1,310 $ 2,121 $ 2,120 1 $ 5,172 5,172 4,607 565
9,308 10,197 9,025 1,172 2,705 2,705 1,789 916
122,032 124,282 120,790 3,492 15,263 54,139 36,906 17,233
45,724 43,799 38,092 5,707 153,173 183,891 182,651 1,240
31,478 43,807 39,062 4,745 13,771 17,142 15,693 1,449
2,356,957 2,706,972 2,663,230 43,742 213,745 388,090 376,462 11,628
485 485 369 116
4,669 9,821 9,755 66 3,179 18,665 18,665
17,149 18,946 18,622 324 5,471 5,471 80 5,391
3,109,857 3,517,710 3,413,753 103,957 515,759 778,555 729,106 49,449
13,088 17,287 12,100 5,187 1,619 2,073 1,539 534
8,145 12,402 11,272 1,130 5,275 8,775 6,510 2,265
19,312 19,312 17,835 1,477 18,550 18,550 13,629 4,921
2,930 2,970 1,384 1,586 33,362 33,892 33,876 16
224 1,470 1,470 225 525 489 36
150 1,164 909 255 3,500 5,456 4,883 573
67 2 65 625 634 398 236
43,849 54,672 44,972 9,700 63,156 69,905 61,324 8,581
1,826 1,827 1,511 316 426 647 144 503
1,580 1,580 947 633
1 8 5 3
25 25 22 3 322 472 275 197
17,904 17,905 13,089 4,816 21,391 22,020 17,816 4,204
3,769 9,543 3,717 5,826 5,215 7,092 1,126 5,966
16,720 16,719 14,438 2,281 5,822 5,822 3,390 2,432
22,000 22,000 14,436 7,564
62,244 68,019 47,213 20,806 34,757 37,641 23,703 13,938
2,088 2,343 2,050 293
426 426 411 15 2,097 2,097 1,606 491
14,147 14,752 11,924 2,828
226 343 254 89 24 1,074 67 1,007
377 377 172 205
954 1,120 972 148 2,973 2,973 2,408 565
558 558 75 483 4,609 4,609 3,724 885
3,308 3,308 3,010 298
9,075 9,075 7,834 1,241
11,323 11,323 9,267 2,056
16,849 20,789 17,724 3,065
589 606 605 1 1,919 1,919 1,509 410
Continued
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(Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation

Original Final Actual Variance
Labor Cabinet - Office of the Secretary $ $ $ $
Department of Workplace Standards
Total Public Protection and Regulation
Transportation Cabinet:
Administration & Support 71,342 65,055 60,180 4,875
Revenue Sharing 222,638 269,381 216,203 53,178
Air Transportation
Highways 1,252,442 1,105,374 703,715 401,659
Highways-Public Transportation
V ehicle Regulation 30,009 30,424 28,699 1,725
Debt Service 169,855 169,654 169,195 459
Transfers To Capital Construction 6,654 6,654 5,654 1,000
Road Fund Judgments 400 388 12
1990 Economic Development Bond Projects
Total Transportation 1,752,940 1,646,942 1,184,034 462,908
Total Expenditures 1,788,434 1,682,436 1,219,444 462,992
Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures (710,652) (592,936) (98,472) 494,464
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds From Sale of Bonds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources over (under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses (710,652) (592,936) (98,472) 494,464
Fund Balances at July 1 644,857 644,857
Non-Budgeted ltems 7,656 7,656
Fund Balances at June 30 $ (710,652) $ 51,921 $ 554,041 $ 502,120
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Federal

Agency Revenue

Original Final Actual Variance Original Final Actual Variance
$ $ $ $ 5,384 $ 5,384 $ 4,504 $ 880
3,453 3,453 3,311 142
6,206 6,506 5,628 878 74,173 80,023 65,799 14,224
50 50 50
8,287 8,287 8,287 5,532 7,712 2,596 5,116
1,074,095 1,070,605 523,552 547,053 282,132 153,324 46,088 107,236
8,044 11,794 10,548 1,246 858 858 594 264
2,225 3,827 1,931 1,896 2,976 9,723 4,570 5,153
143,284 50,521 92,763
1,092,651 1,094,513 536,031 558,482 291,548 314,951 104,369 210,582
5,093,303 5,570,988 4,778,447 792,541 3,175,523 3,560,131 2,531,474 1,028,657
51,736 1,346,252
2,207
2,207
51,736 1,348,459
3,035 680,654
(12,773) (1,257,050)
$ $ 41,998 $ $ $ $ 772,063 $
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NOTESTOREQUIRED SUPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

Budgetary Reporting

The Commonwealth of Kentucky requires that each branch of
government prepare and submit a recommended budget to the
General Assembly for each of thetwo fiscal yearsto beincludedin
abiennial budget. These budgets are prepared principally on the
cash basis. The Legislature reviews these budget requests, makes
any necessary revisions, and legally adopts a biennial budget for
each of the three branches of government. The Governor has the
power to approve or veto each bill, subject to legislative override.

The financial plan for each fiscal year, as presented in a branch
budget recommendation, shall be adopted with such modifications
as made by the General Assembly (and explained in a budget
memorandum) by the passage of the budget bill and such revenue
and other acts necessary for the purpose. A budget bill shall not be
effective past July 1 of the year in which the next regular session
takes place.

Budgetary control ismaintainedat thebudget unitlevel asdesignated
by theLegislature(i.e., function, major program area, program, or
unit of organization).

Appropriationsfor the General Fund and Road Fund shall be based
uponrevenueestimatesprepared by the Financeand Administration
Cabinet and modificationsmadeby theappropriationscommittee of
the General Assembly. Official revenue estimatesare not madefor
the other budgetary funds.

TheMajor Governmental funds, which havelegally adopted annual
budgets as part of the primary government, include the following:
General, Transportation, Federal, and Agency Revenue.

Thefundsallotted for each purpose of expenditure shall be used for
no other purpose, except when the head of any budget unit, withthe
approval of the Secretary of theFinanceand Administration Cabinet,
may transfer allotted funds from one purpose of expenditure to
another within the budget unit. No revisions of the allotment
schedulemay providefor anallotment or allotmentsin excessof the
amount appropriated to that budget unit in ajoint budget resolution
or for expenditure for any other purpose than specified in ajoint
budget resol ution and abudget memorandum. However, budgetary
funds except for that of the General Fund and the Transportation
Fund may be amended in an amount up to the actual receipts (not to
exceed 5%) by an Adviceof Change Order fromthe Secretary of the
Financeand Administration Cabinet. No supplemental appropriations
wererequired during thisfiscal year.

Encumbranceaccountingisutilized for budgetary control purposes.
Encumbrances outstanding at year end for long-term construction
contractsother than commitmentsof acontinuing naturearereported
as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

All other encumbered and unencumbered appropriations lapse at
theend of eachfiscal year except inthe Transportation Fund, which
has a project length budget. Encumbrances are carried forward as
revisions to appropriations.

Theannual budget is prepared principally on the cash basis, which
differsfrom generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). A
reconciliation between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basisis
presented in the notes to the Required Supplemental Information
section as follows.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY INFORM ATION - Budgetary Basis vs. GAAP

Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on budgetary basis differ significantly

fromthose used to present financial statements in conformity w ith generally accepted accounting
principles. A schedule reconciling the fund balance on a cash basis at June 30, 2002, to the fund

balance on a modified accrual basis follow s :

(Expressed in Thousands)

AGENCY
GENERAL TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL REVENUE
Budgetary funds FUND FUND FUND FUND
AGENCY
GENERAL TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL REVENUE
Financial statement funds FUND FUND FUND FUND
Fund balance/retained earnings
June 30, 2002:
Budgetary basis $ 134,154 554,041 $ 41,998 % 772,063
Adjustments:
Accrued revenues 204,931 88,320 332,727 42,485
Accrued expenditures (239,142) (100,372) (342,585) (18,465)
Accrued transfers (net) (7,505) (236) 247
Total Accruals (1) (41,715) (12,052) (10,094) 24,267
Reclassifications and other adjustments:
Inventory balances (1) 11,841 30,131 77 1,276
To reclassify financial and other resources
into financial statement fund types (2) (811) (37,615) (448,661)
To record financial resources available
as non-budgeted funds (3) (16,000) 2,580 197
Fund balance/retained earnings June 30, 2002:
GAAP Basis $ 87,469 574,700 $ (5,634) $ 349,142

(1) Basis differences
(2) Perspective differences
(3) Entity differences
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NOTESTOREQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION -
InfrastructureAssetsReported UsingtheM odified Approach

Asallowed by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
—and Management’ sDiscussion and Analysis—for Stateand L ocal
Governments, theCommonweal th hasadopted an alternativeprocess
for recording depreci ation expenseon sel ectedinfrastructure assets.
Under thisalternativemethod, referred to asthemodified approach,
the Commonweal th expenses certain mai ntenanceand preservation
costs and does not report depreciation expense. Assets reported
usingthemaodified approach, include 61,500 1anemilesof roadsand
approximately 8,900 bridgesthat the Commonweal thmaintains.

In order to utilize the modified approach, the Commonwealth is
reguired to:

- Maintain an asset management system that includes an up-to-
date inventory of eligibleinfrastructure assets.

- Performconditionassessmentsof eligibleassetsand summarize
the results using a measurement scale.

- Estimate, eachyear, theannual amount to maintainand preserve
the assets at the condition level established and disclosed by
theCommonweal th.

- Document that theassetsarebeing preserved approximately at,
or above, the established condition level.

Pavements

M easurement Scale

The Kentucky Transportation Cabinet (KYTC) uses numerous
methodsto determinethecondition of roadway pavements; however,
the Pavement Condition Index (PCI) serves as KYTC's primary
method to measure and monitor pavement conditions. Inusesince
the mid-1980s, the PCI for any particular pavement section is the
mathematical difference betweenthecurrent pavement smoothness
and the acceptabl e pavement smoothnessthreshol d based ontraffic
volumes. The corresponding pavement condition is based on the
following PCl ranges:

Condition PCl

Good Greater than+0.4
Far Between0.0and 0.4
Poor Lessthan 0.0

Established Minimum ConditionL evel
No more than 30% of the pavements shall be rated as “ poor.”

Assessed Conditions

The Commonwealth assesses pavement condition on a calendar
year basis. Thefollowingtablereportsthe percentage of pavements
meetingratingsof “Good”, “Fair”,and*“ Poor” for thepast fiveyears.

Condition 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Good 504% 51.7% 515% 559% 64.3%
Fair 220% 312% 308% 302% 225%
Poor 206% 171% 17.7% 138% 13.2%
Bridges

M easurement Scale

KY TCutilizestheNational Bridgel nspection Programto monitor the
condition of the nearly 8,900 bridges under its jurisdiction. The
National Bridge Inspection Program rates bridges, including the
deck, superstructureand substructure, usingaOto9point scale. The
ratings are based on the following descriptions:

Rating Description
9 Excdlent.
8 Very good.
7 Good. Someminor problems.
6 Satisfactory. Structural elements show some minor
deterioration.
5 Fair. All primary structural elements are sound but may

have minor section loss, cracking, spalling or scour.

4 Poor. Advanced section loss, deterioration, spalling or
scour.

3 Serious. Lossof section, deterioration, spalling, or scour
have seriously affected primary structural components.
L ocal failuresarepossible. Fatiguecracksin steel or shear
cracksin concrete may be present.

2 Critical. Advanced deterioration of primary structura
elements. Fatiguecracksinsteel or shear cracksinconcrete
may be present or scour may have removed substructure
support. Unlessclosely monitored, it may benecessary to
close the bridge until corrective action istaken.

1 Imminentfailure. Major deteriorationor sectionlosspresent
in critical structural components or obvious vertical or
horizontal movement affecting structure stability. Bridge
isclosed totraffic, but corrective action may putit back in
light service.

0 Failure. Out of service; beyond corrective action.

Established Minimum ConditionL evel
No more than 7% of the bridges shall be rated as “structurally
deficient.”

Assessed Conditions

“Structurally deficient” results when a rating of 4 or worse is
assessed to at least one of the major structural elements (e.g. the
deck, superstructure, or substructure). Thefollowing tablereports
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the percentage of bridges whose condition was assessed as
“structurally deficient” in the stated year:

CdendarYear  Structurally Deficient

2001 5.3%
2000 4.9%
1999 4.9%
1998 5.1%
1997 54%
Maintenance
M easurement Scale

KY TCusesitsMaintenance Rating Programto measureand monitor
themaintenance condition of thestate-maintai ned highway system.
Thisprogram isbased on field rating the condition of 25 attributes
forastatistically valid, random sampl eof 500foot highway segments.
It has been in use since 1999 and the overall score usesascale of 0
to 100 asfollows:

Score Level of Service
90.0-100.0 A —Excellent
80.0— 89.9 B —Good

70.0- 79.9 C — Acceptable
60.0— 69.9 D —Poor

50.0- 59.9 F — Unacceptable

Established Minimum Condition L evel
The statewide score shall not be lower than 70.

Assessed Conditions

The Commonweal th assessesthe maintenance condition on afiscal
year basis. Thefollowing table reports the statewide score for the
Maintenance Rating Program since the inception of the program:

Fiscal Year Statewide Score Level of Service
2001 759 C
2000 753 C

Budgeted and Estimated CoststoM aintain

The following table presents the Commonwealth’s estimate of
spending necessary to preserveand mai ntai nthe pavements, bridges,
and maintenance condition at, or above, the* Established Condition
Levels’ cited above and the actual amount spent during the past
threefiscal years(inmillions):

Fiscal Year Estimated Spending Actual Spending

2003 $695.0 —

2002 — $672.7
2001 — $700.6
2000 — $688.8

The Commonwealth’ sManagement Administrative and
Reporting System (MARS) is utilized to identify the actual
spending on highway system maintenance and preservation
activities. MARSwasfirstimplemented for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2000, therefore, only threefiscal yearsof historical
spending levels are available.

Theannual budgeting processutilized by the Commonwealthresults
in spending in one fiscal year amounts that were budgeted in a
previousyear(s). Additionally, beginninginfiscal year 2000, the
Transportation Cabinet began using a cash-flow basis funding
techniquefor financing costsof highway projects. Expendituresfor
the three fiscal years displayed above include the expenditure of
previous year’s revenues that have been carried forward to that
fiscal year asacash balance. Therefore, thistiming difference does
not allow atrue comparison of amounts budgeted and spent within
agivenyear. Thetablesand narrative above demonstrate that the
Cabinetisspending sufficientamountsto meetitsreportablecondition
level goals.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ENTITY RISK POOLS

CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION
FOR THELAST TEN YEARS

(Expressed in Thousands)

State Workers' Compensation

Fiscal and Policy Year Ended

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Earned Premiums $ 13,426 $ 14,052 $ 12,991 $ 14,470 $ 14,095 $ 16,121 $ 17,351 $ 17,026 $ 13,543 $ 13,628
Earned Investment Income
Total 13,426 14,052 12,991 14,470 14,095 16,121 17,351 17,026 13,543 13,628
Administrative Expense 822 669 401 542 554 404 513 526 533 545
Incurred Claims as
Originally Estimated 11,013 15,531 12,727 14,709 14,982 13,243 13,298 15,324 19,097 19,501
Claims Paid (Cumulative) as of:
End of Fiscal Year 3,129 3,441 3,093 3,010 2,615 2,819 2,702 3,128 3,790 3,846
One Year Later 6,038 6,492 5,797 5,882 5,626 5,697 5,833
Two Years Later 8,163 8,207 7,588 7,560 7,156 7,179
Three Years Later 9,743 9,152 8,721 8,632 8,172
Four Years Later 10,664 10,211 9,346 9,552
Five Years Later 11,482 10,671 9,812
Six Years Later 11,969 11,043
Seven Years Later 12,495
Re-estimation of Incurred Claims:
End of Fiscal Year 11,013 15,531 12,727 14,709 14,982 13,243 13,298 15,324 19,097 19,501
One Year Later 12,589 15,277 12,883 14,502 13,006 12,876 13,623 16,584
Two Years Later 13,269 16,075 13,266 14,519 12,627 13,473 15,543
Three Years Later 13,858 15,324 13,526 14,021 12,762 14,416
Four Years Later 14,421 15,230 13,797 14,507 14,270
Five Years Later 16,164 14,424 14,028 15,345
Six Years Later 15,428 14,503 14,405
Seven Years Later 15,836 16,240
Increase (Decrease) in Estimated
Incurred Claims From the
Original Estimate Using
Re-estimation at the End of the
Most Recent Fiscal Year 6,927 709 1,678 636 (712) 1,173 2,246 1,260

SOURCE: Compilation Report
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

137



COMBININGFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

In the Debt Service Fund, the Primary Gover nment accounts for the payment of principal, interest, and
administrative fees due on general long term issues of the Commonwealth and for the accumulation of
financial resources used to make such payments.

The Turnpike Authority of Kentucky issues debt to acquire infrastructure, which is leased to the
Transportation Cabinet of the Commonwealth.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for specia revenue sources dedicated to specific operations other
than expendable capital projects.

The Other Special Revenue Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures of restricted taxes, fees, and
charges related to a particular function or activity, but not usually appropriated by the General Assembly.

The Special Benefits Fund accounts for other fiduciary monies that will be expended for designated
operations.

The Turnpike Authority of Kentucky issues debt to acquire infrastructure, which is leased to the
Transportation Cabinet of the Commonwealth.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Investments, net of amortization
Receivables, net
Interfund receivables
Inventories

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Inventories

Deposit with fiscal agents
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds

Debt service fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Debt Service Funds

Prim ary
Government

Turnpike
Authority
of Kentucky

$ 87 $ 2,632
12,707

10,554 183,323

7,441

307 112,804

$ 23,655 $ 306,200

$ 271 $ 10
307

578 10
12,707

10,370 306,190

23,077 306,190

$ 23,655 $ 306,200




Special Revenue Funds

Other
Special
Revenue

19,320

101,828
55,777
141,099
55

Turnpike
Authority
of Kentucky

318,079

120,779

98,536
3,997

1,413
106,252
35,292

223,312

142,957

185
112,804
104

55

175,067

113,093

175,122

110,219

318,079

110,219

223,312

141

Special
Benefits

141,878

170,082
15,240
29,730

Total
Non-Major

Governm ental

Funds

356,930

284,696
12,707
564,323
82,455
283,940
55

9,381
42,515
12,774

1,228,176

64,670

11,260
261,878
48,170

292,260

321,308

292,260

55
12,707

577,546
316,560

356,930

906,868

1,228,176




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investmentincome
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Other revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Generalgovernment
Legislative and judicial
Commerce
Education and humanities
Human resources
Justice
Naturalresources and
environmental protection
Public protection and regulation
Transportation
Debtservice:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Other expenditures
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from the sale of bonds:
Refunding issues
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances at July 1, as Restated
Fund Balances at June 30
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Debt Service Funds

Prim ary
Government

Turnpike
Authority
of Kentucky

$ $
3,858
1,145 15,717
1
7 17,064
5011 32,781
79,073
122,208 105,440
124,625
(14,727)
232,106 184,513
(227,095) (151,732)
207,375 189,071
(441)
322,659
(321,565)
208,028 189,071
(19,067) 37,339
42,144 268,851
3 23,077 3 306,190




Special Revenue Funds Total

Other Turnpike Non-Major

Special Authority Special Governm ental
Revenue of Kentucky Benefits Funds

69,370 $ $ 1,195 $ 70,565
782 64,763 65,545
398 11,119 11,517
14,649 18,507
6,485 6,485
15,606 8,479 12,073 53,020
455 1,383 1,839
23,706 300 7,214 48,291
131,451 8,779 97,747 275,769
59,884 51,140 184,359 374,456
121 121
322 322
488 11,889 12,377
289 22,267 22,556
120 120
2,002 8,458 10,460
(1,739) (1,739)
41,312 41,312
227,648
124,625
(14,727)
63,106 51,140 266,666 797,531
68,345 (42,361) (168,919) (521,762)
201,682 172,589 222,154 992,871
(301,084) (189,071) (82,327) (5672,923)
322,659
(321,565)
(99,402) (16,482) 139,827 421,042
(31,057) (58,843) (29,092) (100,720)
206,179 169,062 321,352 1,007,588
175,122 $ 110,219 $ 292,260 $ 906,868
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144



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
SCHEDULEOF REVENUES BY SOURCE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed In Thousands)

Revenues by Source
Taxes:

Sales and gross receipts
Income:

Individual

Corporations
Property
Coalseverance
Licenses and privieges
Inheritance and estate
Miscellaneous

Total Taxes

Licenses, fees, and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Other revenues
Total Revenues by Source
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June 30, 2002

$ 2,495,434

2,681,443
211,382
480,890
187,588
120,902

89,753
3,653

6,271,045

25,197
9,370
6,662

44,760

33,848

674
118,918

36510474



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION, CABINET, AND OBJECT
GENERAL FUND

FOR THEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed In Thousands)

June 30, 2002
General Government:
Cabinet for General Government:

Personnel services $ 119,218
Utilities, rentals, and other services 15,696
Commodities and supplies 9,017
Grants and subsidies 1,092,003
Capital outlay 526
Travel 2,391
Non-expense items 4
Interest paid on debt 10,516
Judgments and contingent liabilities 116

Total Cabinet for General Government 1,249,487

Finance and Administration Cabinet:

Personnel services 19,587
Utilities, rentals, and other services 5,905
Commodities and supplies 15,845
Grants and subsidies 55,984
Capital outlay 120
Travel 171
Judgments and contingent liabilities 36,504
Interest paid on short term debt 20,504
Reissue unredeemed treasury checks 1,442

Total Finance and Administration Cabinet 156,062

Revenue Cabinet:

Personnel services 69,396
Utilities, rentals, and other services 17,025
Commodities and supplies 1,263
Capital outlay 196
Travel 752
Judgments (14,945)

Total Revenue Cabinet 73,687

Personnel Cabinet:

Personnel services 3,344
Utilities, rentals, and other services 156
Commodities and supplies 46
Travel 3
Total Personnel Cabinet 3,549
Total General Government 1,482,785

Legislative and Judicial:

Personnel services 157,128
Utilities, rentals, and other services 47,750
Commodities and supplies 13,274
Capital outlay 2,799
Grants and subsidies 5,043
Non-expense items 3
Travel 3,411

Total Legislative and Judicial 229,408

Commerce:
Economic Development Cabinet:

Personnel services 6,891
Utilities, rentals, and other services 953
Commodities and supplies 382
Grants and subsidies 4,367
Capital outlay 16
Travel 220

Total Economic Development Cabinet 12,829
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION, CABINET, AND OBJECT

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed In Thousands)

Tourism Cabinet:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel
Total Tourism Cabinet
Total Commerce

Education and Hum anities:
Education and Humanities Cabinet:

Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel

Total Education and Humanities Cabinet

Workforce Development Cabinet:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Indirect operating expense
Travel
Judgments and contingent liabilities

Total Workforce Development Cabinet

Total Education and Humanities

Hum an Resources:
Cabinet for Families and Children:

Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Indirect operating expense
Non-expense items
Capital outlay
Travel
Judgments and contingent liabilities

Total Cabinet for Families and Children

Health Services Cabinet:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Non-expense items
Oper. Exp. Reim. Rest. To CFC/CHS
Capital outlay
Travel
Judgments and contingent liabilities

Total Cabinet for Health Services
Total Human Resources
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June 30, 2002

$ 5,899

948
181
1,763
13

99
8,903
21,732

65,706
8,530
3,248

2,777,730
166
2,811
2,858,191

26,918
2,722
3,639

18,218

352

20

448

3

52,320
2,910,511

79,120
19,154
951
256,298

(321)

907
4,854

(50)
360,918

92,553
5,429
3,526

928,143
3

2,446
152

815
23,186
1,056,253
1,417,171

Continued



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION, CABINET, AND OBJECT

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed In Thousands)

Justice:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Claims
Non-expense items
Travel
Judgments and Contingent Liabilities
Total Justice Cabinet

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel

Total Natural Resources and Environmental Protection

Public Protection and Regulation:
Public protection and regulation cabinet:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Claims
Judgments and contingencies
Grants and subsidies
Capital outlay
Travel
Total Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet

Labor Cabinet:
Personnel services
Utilities, rentals, and other services
Commodities and supplies
Travel
Total Labor Cabinet
Total Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation:

Personnel services
Commodities and supplies
Indirect operating expense
Utilities, rental, and other services
Grants
Travel

Total Transportation

Total Expenditures
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June 30, 2002

$ 264,353

30,385
23,298
137,128
7,256
2
3
2,159
(1,491)
463,093

49,868
6,083
3,099
3,772

716
1,935
65,473

38,605
4,016
1,783

(106)
5,137
131
689
50,257

2,000
169
153
123

2,445

52,702

1,100
2

53

4
6,574
15
7,748

T 6.650623_



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES BY TYPE
TRANSPORTATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed In Thousands)

Revenues:

Licenses, fees and permits
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest and other investment income
Increase (decrease) in fair value

of investments
Other revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Transportation:
General administration and support
Motor vehicle regulation
Justice - state police
Highways
Other
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over (under)
Expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Capitalized leases
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources over (under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance at July 1, as Restated

Increase (decrease) in inventories

Fund Balance at June 30
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June 30, 2002

$ 109,560
952,808

168

23,092

(47)

33,416

6,082
2,238

1,127,317

97,915
29,120
27,629

921,892

(1,273)

1,075,283

52,034

1,967
(181,139)
1,219

(177,953)

(125,919)
696,914

3,705

$ 574,700
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided on a cost reimbursement
basis by one agency of the Commonwealth to other state agencies of governments. Kentucky uses the
following Internal Service Funds:

Fleet Management Fund accounts for expenses incurred and reimbursements received by the
Transportation Cabinet for the management and maintenance of the State’s motor vehicle fleet.

Computer Services Fund accounts for expenses incurred and reimbursements received by the
Governor’s Office for Technology for computer and related data processing services.

Prison Industries Fund accounts for expenses incurred and reimbursements received by the
Department of Corrections' industrial prison operations.

Central Printing Fund accounts for expenses incurred and reimbursements received by the
Finance and Administration Cabinet’s Division of Printing.

Property M anagement Fund accounts for expenses incurred and reimbursements received by the
Finance and Administration Cabinet’s space rental and maintenance operation.

Risk M anagement Fund accounts for the self-insurance operations of the State which include:

Fire and Tornado Insurance Program accounts for monies received by the Department
of Insurance from State agencies and expended for insuring State property against loss
from fires, tornadoes, etc.

State Workers' Compensation Program accounts for monies received by the Personnel
Cabinet from State agencies and expended for claims of job related injuries to State
employees.

Transportation Cabinet's Self-Insured Workers Compensation Trust Program
provides workers’ compensation insurance for the employees of the Transportation
Cabinet.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Interfund receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments, net
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Claims liability
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims liability
Capital lease obligations
Compensated absences
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Fleet Computer Prison
Management Services Industries
440 2,735 457
328 121
165 3,197 769
280 3,037
2,763
605 9,303 4,384
6,214 10,006 1,103
725
356
6,920 3,840
87,830 33,540 3,845
(53,428) (32,930) (4,052)
25
34,402 7,886 4,383
40,616 17,892 5,486
41,221 27,195 9,870
671 4,327 543
168 1,046 3
1,244 679
2,363 271
1,311 570
2,083 9,726 1,387
1,439 1,540
2,590 276
1,439 4,130 276
3,522 13,856 1,663
31,720 5,667 4,384
5,979 7,672 3,823
37,699 13,339 8,207
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Totals
June 30,2002

5,488

627
4,785
3,648
5,036

19,584

37,070
6,316
3,163

200,683
128,447

(181,725)

6,961

163,845

200,915

220,499

7,399
2,693
21,137
2,108
3,416
2,739

39,492

92,249
3,143
3,511

98,903

138,395

Central Property Ris k
Printing Management M anagement
37 123 1,696
10 168
231 375 48
331
2,273
609 498 4,185
525 1,732 17,490
5,501
2,807
189,923
1,720 1,512
(1,529) (89,786)
6,936
191 116,983
716 118,715 17,490
1,325 119,213 21,675
353 1,061 444
2 8 1,466
21,137
185
147 608 27
25 158 675
712 1,835 23,749
92,249
164
182 443 20
346 443 92,269
1,058 2,278 116,018
158 116,983
109 (48) (94,343)
267 116,935 (94,343)

158,912
(76,808)
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82,104




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Personnelservices

Utilities, rentals, and other services

Commodities and supplies

Grants and subsidies

Depreciation and amortization

Travel

Reinsurance expense

Claims expense

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Incom e (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets
Interest and other investment income
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Interest expense
Other revenues (expenses)
Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Income (Loss) before Transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at July 1, as Restated
Net Assets at June 30

Fleet

Computer

Prison

Management Services Industries
26,755 57,305 12,329
115 41 3
26,870 57,346 12,332
1,537 33,495 4,125
2,445 19,314 767
5,277 4,162 6,859
3 1,216
10,257 2,293 181
1 252 77
38
(3)
19,517 59,554 13,225
7,353 (2,208) (893)
(175) (1,103)
(1) (235) (133)
58 97 7
(322) (153)
(1,194)

(1,634) (1,394) (126)
5,719 (3,602) (1,019)
2,643
(1,631) (1,740)
4,088 (959) (2,759)
33,611 14,298 10,966
37,699 13,339 8,207

154




Totals
June 30,2002

156,281
270

156,551

53,123
37,825
18,272
1,421
17,323
507
1,733
42,057

172,261

(15,710)

(1,623)
(188)
286
(497)
(1,194)

(3,216)

(18,926)

12,992
(3,871)

Central Property Ris k
Printing Management Management
4,795 21,236 33,861
10 101
4,805 21,337 33,861
2,371 10,485 1,110
1,339 9,934 4,026
926 1,022 26
202
102 4,490
1 143 33
1,695
42,060
4,739 26,276 48,950
66 (4,939) (15,089)
(313) (32)
(19) (145) 345
4 16 104
(22)
(350) (161) 449
(284) (5,100) (14,640)
10,349
(500)
(284) 5,249 (15,140)
551 111,686 (79,203)
267 116,935 (94,343)

(9,805)

91,909
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers - public
Cash received from customers - state
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employee salaries and benefits
Cash payments for claims expense
Cash payments from other sources
Cash payments to other sources
Net Cash Provided by Operating A ctivities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating transfers-in from other funds
Operating transfers-outto other funds
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capitalassets
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and equipment contracts
Interest paid on revenue bonds and equipment contracts
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing A ctivities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities
Interest and dividends on investments
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
NetIncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Incom e to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Receivables, net
Interfund receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payables
Claims liability
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Change in fair value of investments
Capital assets acquired through leases

Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
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Fleet Com puter
Management Services
26,782 57,482
(7,347) (26,400)
(1,537) (32,946)
(3)
115 42
18,013 (1,825)
2,845
(1,631) (202)
(1,631) 2,643
(11,362) (1,810)
(1,189) (716)
(322) (153)
69
(12,804) (2,679)
(3,675) 4,140
57 (137)
(3,618) 4,003
(40) 2,142
480 593
440 2,735
7,353 (2,208)
10,257 2,293
43 223
(165) 892
13
(1,036)
374 (1,866)
151 1,025
(223)
(938)
18,013 (1,825)
58 97
2,770
58 2,867




Prison Central Property Ris k Totals

Industries Printing Management M anagement June 30,2002
3,110 4,647 $ 7,757
9,640 (2,112) 21,684 33,154 146,630
(7,170) (2,370) (10,712) (4,750) (58,749)
(4,043) (10,579) (843) (49,948)
(29,954) (29,957)
3 10 101 271
(1,293) (203) (861) (2,357)
247 175 291 (3,254) 13,647
10,349 13,194
(1,740) (500) (4,073)
(1,740) 10,349 (500) 9,121
(147) 2 (9,600) (22,917)
(155) (2,060)
(22) (497)
69
(147) (175) (9,600) (25,405)
1,395 (925) 935
(39) 1,674 1,635
(127) (15) (145) 68 (299)
1,268 (54) (1,070) 1,742 2,271
(372) (54) (30) (2,012) (366)
829 91 153 3,708 5,854
457 37 $ 123 1,696 5,488
(893) 66 $ (4,939) (15,089) (15,710)
181 102 4,490 17,323
193 10 146 (16) 599
51 (45) 175 47 955
428 (49) 392
(1,572) (2,608)
118 203 254 (271) (1,188)
(89) 2 (11) 2,748 3,826
10,381 10,381
82 2 106 9 (24)
176 (116) 127 509 (242)
(57) (57)
247 175 $ 291 (3,254) 13,647
7 4 $ 16 104 286
317 3,087
7 321 $ 16 104 3,373
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GENERAL FIXEDASSETS
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPITAL ASSETS USED INTHEOPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY SOURCE

JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed In Thousands)

Governmental Funds Capital Assets
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Software / other intangibles
Easements
Construction in progress
Infrastructure
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Investm ents in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Donations

Other

Capital Projects Fund:

State appropriations

Revenue bonds

Federalgrants

Other

Infrastructure (A)

Fixed assets acquired prior to July 1, 1984 (A)

Fixed assets acquired after July 1, 1984 (A)
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

(1) Internal Service Funds are notincluded in this schedule.

activities in the Statement of Net Assets.
(A) Fixed assets w ith an undetermined funding source.

June 30,2002

88,862
3,953
554,773
353,064
941
12,628
2,317,660
14,014,450

17,346,331

109,524
1,949,315
75,339
6,829

46,607
314,820
70,880
15,233
14,014,450
672,385
70,949

17,346,331

Internal Service Fund assets are included as governmental
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THEOPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULEBY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Improvem ents

Other Than
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY Land Buildings Buildings
General Government
Cabinet for General Government (A) $ 9,999 $ 1,209 $ 100,454
Revenue Cabinet
Finance and Administration Cabinet (A) 580
Personnel Cabinet
Total General Government 10,579 1,209 100,454
Legislative & Judicial 55
Commerce
Economic Development Cabinet 13,294 20,207
Tourism Cabinet 32,374 987 7,391
Total Commerce 45,668 987 27,598
Education & Hum anities
Education, Arts and Humanities Cabinet (A) 653 118 25,518
Workforce Development Cabinet 1,030 14,445
Total Education and Humanities 1,683 118 39,963
Hum an Resources
Cabinet for Families and Children 1,426 22,267
Cabinet for Health Services 1,404 50 61,564
Total Human Resources 2,830 50 83,831
Justice 3,661 1,589 231,748
Natural Resources and Environm ental Protection (A) 14,597 1,031
Public Protection and Regulation
Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet
Labor Cabinet
Total Public Protection and Regulation
Transportation (A) 9,789 70,148
Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 88,862 $ 3,953 $ 554,773

(1) Internal Service Funds are notincluded in this schedule. Internal Service Fund assets are included as governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets.

(A) Beginning balance w as restated to include easements of $10,625,(797). These fixed assets are show n under Cabinet for General
Government $3,100,(866); Education, Arts and Humanities Cabinet $3,616,(126); and Natural Resources and Environmental

Protection Cabinet $3,908,(805). Assets totaling $990,(000) for Kentucky River Authority are now reported as assets of a discrete
componentunit. They are removed from the Finance and Administration Cabinet. Transportation beginning balance w as increased by
$15,562,397,(000): Buildings -$2,269,(000); Land $3,853,(000); Equipment $4,178,(000); Construction in Progress $1,345,(000); and
inclusion of Infrastructure $15,555,290,(000).
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Equipment

$

$

M achinery
and

13,935
7,958
8,093
1,907

31,893

10,464
284

17,522
17,806

9,087
20,467
29,554

6,070
8,073
14,143
81,195
30,407
4,184
2,483
6,667

130,935

353,064

Intangibles

Softw are /
Other
Easem ents

Construction
in
Progress

Totals

Infrastructure June 30, 2002

$ $ 3,251 $ 49,976 $ $ 178,824
7,958

941 9,614
1,907

941 3,251 49,976 198,303
10,519

33,785

277 58,551

277 92,336

4,488 39,864

244 36,186

4,488 244 76,050

29,763

25 71,116

25 100,879

103,284 421,477

4,889 268 51,192

6,368 10,552

2,483

6,368 13,035

2,157,218 14,014,450 16,382,540

$ 941 $ 12,628 $ 2,317,660 $ 14,014,450 $ 17,346,331
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THEOPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULEOFCHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

General Government
Cabinet for General Government (A)
Revenue Cabinet
Finance and Administration Cabinet (A)
Personnel Cabinet
Total General Government

Legislative & Judicial
Commerce
Economic Development Cabinet
Tourism Cabinet

Total Commerce

Education & Hum anities

Education Arts and Humanities Cabinet (A)

Workforce Development Cabinet
Total Education and Humanities

Hum an Resources
Cabinet for Families and Children
Cabinet for Health Services
Total Human Resources

Justice

Natural Resources and
Environm ental Protection (A)

Public Protection and Regulation
Public Protection and Regulation Cabinet
Labor Cabinet

Total Public Protection and Regulation

Transportation (A)

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets

(1) Internal Service Funds are notincluded in this schedule.

activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Balance

June 30, 2001

As Restated (A) Additions Deductions
$ 169,160 $ 10,483 $ 819
4,446 3,746 234
7,599 2,274 259

1,825 82
183,030 16,585 1,312
12,010 699 2,190
33,780 19 14
56,449 3,267 1,165
90,229 3,286 1,179
39,381 3,115 2,632
34,313 3,167 1,294
73,694 6,282 3,926
32,308 1,567 4,112
71,155 832 871
103,463 2,399 4,983
395,148 72,718 46,389
47,954 6,873 3,635
10,195 515 158
2,448 119 84
12,643 634 242
15,775,871 1,938,578 1,331,909
$ 16,694,042 $ 2,048,054 $ 1,395,765

Internal Service Fund assets are included as governmental

$

Balance

June 30, 2002

178,824
7,958
9,614
1,907

198,303

10,519

33,785

58,551
92,336

39,864
36,186
76,050

29,763
71,116
100,879

421,477

51,192

10,552
2,483
13,035
16,382,540

17,346,331

(A) Beginning balance w as restated to include easements of $10,625,(797). These fixed assets are show n under Cabinet for General
Government $3,100,(866); Education, Arts and Humanities Cabinet $3,616,(126); and Natural Resources and Environmental Protection
Cabinet $3,908,(805). Assets totaling $990,(000) for Kentucky River Authority are now reported as assets of a discrete component
unit. They are removed from the Finance and Administration Cabinet. Transportation beginning balance w as increased by
$15,562,397,(000): Buildings -$2,269,(000); Land $3,853,(000); Equipment $4,178,(000); Construction in Progress $1,345,(000); and

inclusion of Infrastructure $15,555,290,(000).
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PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

PENSION (and OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

Pension trust funds account for monies received for and expenses incurred by the various public employee
retirement systems administered by the State. Kentucky uses the following Pension Trust Funds:

Kentucky Employees Retirement System Fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the
retirement system, which covers substantially all regular full-time employees of any State
department, board or agency directed by Executive Order to participate in the System.

State Police Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the retirement
system, which covers substantially all regular full-time officers of the Kentucky State Police.

County Employees Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the
retirement system that covers substantialy all regular full-time employees of each county, local
school board, and additional local agencies electing to participate in the System.

Kentucky Teachers Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the
retirement system, which covers substantially all persons occupying positions in the public
elementary and secondary schools for which a certificate is required, faculty members of five
regional universities, the Commissioner of Education and the professional staff members of the
Department of Education.

Judicial Form Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the
retirement system that covers al District Judges, Judges of the Court of Appeals, and Judges of
the Supreme Court.

Legidators Retirement System Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the retirement
system that covers all members of the General Assembly.

Deferred Compensation accounts for the monies withheld from employees, as an Internal

Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plan, by placing amounts with third party
administrators and overseeing the investment activities of such monies.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEEBENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and short-term investments:
Cash
Short-term investments
Total Cash and Short-Term Investments

Receivables:
Investments - accounts receivable
Interestreceivable
Accounts receivable
Total Receivables

Investments at fair value:
Corporate and government bonds
Common stocks
Mortgages
Mutual funds
Real estate
Total Investments at Fair Value

Invested security collateral
Fixed assets, net
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities

Investments - accounts payable

Accounts payable

Obligations under securities lending
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Net assets held in trust for:
Employee retirement benefit
Retiree's health insurance
Total Net Assets

County
Em ployees
Retirement

System

28,380
305,781

334,161

444
35,441
47,877

83,762

1,829,246
3,262,364
309,696

9,581

5,410,887

1,402,721

7,231,531

4,838
1,402,721

1,407,559

Kentucky
Em ployees State Police
Retirem ent Retirement

System System

22,805 $ 2,248
361,736 22,549
384,541 24,797
332 14
35,714 2,357
37,544 1,878
73,590 4,249
1,849,678 121,516
3,254,765 225,963
313,339 19,485
11,104 1,016
5,428,886 367,980
1,417,711 93,592
7,304,728 490,618
4,592 208
1,417,711 93,592
1,422,303 93,800
5,306,991 328,744
575,434 68,074
5,882,425 $ 396,818

5,271,105
552,867
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Kentucky
Teachers'
Retirement
System

4,039
999,200

Judicial
Retirement
System

1,003,239

8,880

Legislators"'
Retirem ent
System

70,109
7
41,009

8,882

1,458

Deferred
Com pensation
System

111,125

1,622
53

1,463

Totals
June 30,2002

4,548,374
5,842,308
79,666

338,130

1,675

386

$ 57,479
1,699,604

10,808,478

80,937
146,740

1,757,083

593,935
3,802
155

227,677

20,674
38,252

70,899
75,527
128,361

12,520,734

58,926

846,115

274,787

7,604
9,728
593,935

238,234

846,115

8,450,425
12,770,392
722,186
846,115
359,831

611,267

60,775

23,148,949

11,763,422
146,045

846,115

3,507,959
3,802
155

11,909,467

238,234

28,692,735

238,234

60,775

7,604
19,366
3,507,959

60,775

846,115

3,534,929
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23,815,386
1,342,420

$ 25,157,806




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEEBENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

County
Em ployees
Retirement

System

164,464
159,524

323,988

(479,419)
187,938

36,873

(254,608)

3,794
30,480

(288,882)

35,106

306,045
10,095
8,197

2

324,339

Kentucky State
Em ployees Police
Retirement Retirement
System System
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 119,493 9,562
Employee 122,799 4,499
Total Contributions 242,292 14,061
Investmentincome:
Netincrease (decrease) in fair value of investments (430,855) (35,349)
Interest 191,287 12,411
Dividends
Real estate operating income, net
Securities lending income, net 25,602 2,262
Total Investment Income (213,966) (20,676)
Less: Investmentexpense 3,706 226
Less: Securities lending expense 21,165 1,868
Net Investment Income (238,837) (22,770)
Total Additions 3,455 (8,709)
Deductions
Benefit payments 402,060 28,859
Refunds 7,798 54
Administrative expenses 5,127 76
Other deductions, net (1) 2
Total Deductions 414,984 28,991
Change in Net Assets (411,529) (37,700)
Net Assets Held in Trust
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 6,293,954 434,518
Net Assets at June 30 5,882,425 396,818
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(289,233)

6,113,205
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Kentucky
Teachers'
Retirement
System

398,782
270,546

Judicial
Retirement
System

669,328

4,430
1,695

Legislators'
Retirement
System

(929,285)
294,599
95,029
29,207
15,177

6,125

906
471

Deferred

Com pensation

System

(495,273)

(22,686)
7,421

1,377

118,882

Totals

June 30, 2002

4,245
14,534

(15,265)

(5,477)
1,767

118,882

697,637
678,416

(514,052)

6

(3,710)

(60,070)

1,376,053

155,276

(15,271)

2

(60,070)

(1,963,141)
695,423
95,029
29,207
79,914

739,497
9,153
108,165
3,492

(9.146)

(3,712)

(1,063,568)

860,307

8,786

335

(2,335)

(60,070)

11,979
68,047

(705,031)

12,614,498

9,121

2,124

138

58,812

(1,143,594)

11,909,467

(18,267)

256,501

2,262

73,311

232,459

238,234

(4,597)

65,372

73,311

1,487,371
27,100
195,349
3,495

60,775

(14,499)

860,614

1,713,315
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846,115

(1,480,856)

26,638,662

$

25,157,806




PRIVATE - PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and interest
benefit individuals, private organizations or other governments. Kentucky uses the following private-
purpose trust funds:

The Kentucky Educational Savings Plan Trust was established by KRS 164A.310 to encourage citizens
to invest funds for future educational use, and to create an endowment fund from which income will be
available as participants’ savings.

Kentucky's Affordable Prepaid Tuition Plan Trust was established by KRS 164A.700 as an instrument
in providing affordable access to participating educational ingtitutions for qualified beneficiaries. This
program accepts prepayments of participating Kentucky citizens into the Commonwealth Postsecondary
Education Prepaid Tuition Trust Fund and manages the monies. This investment produces a return equal
to or greater than future college tuition rates so that a college education will be paid in the future for
beneficiaries at today’ s prices.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Kentucky Kentucky's Affordable
Educational Savings Prepaid Tuition Totals
Plan Trust Plan Trust June 30, 2002
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 67 $ 4,984 $ 5,051
Investments, net of amortization 25,433 14,827 40,260
Receivables, net 75 26,962 27,037
Total Assets 25,575 46,773 72,348
Liabilities
Accounts payable 132 6 138
Interfund loan payable 1,000 1,000
Other liabilities 52,200 52,200
Total Liabilities 132 53,206 53,338
Net Assets
Restricted for:
Plan participants 25,443 (6,433) 19,010
Total Net Assets $ 25,443 $ (6,433) $ 19,010
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ICOMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

[ICOMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002
‘(Expressedin Thousands)

Kentucky
Educational Savings
Plan Trust

Kentucky's
Affordable Prepaid
Tuition Plan Trust

Totals
June 30, 2002

Additions
Contributions:
Employer $
Member 13,650
Total Contributions 13,650

21,191

34,841

Investment income:
Netincrease (decrease) in fair value

21,191

34,841

(1,195)
154

(3,025)
155
716

(1,041)

(2,154)

68
(1,109)

186
(2,340)

of investments (1,830)
Interest 1
Dividends 716

Total Investment Income (1,113)
Less: Investment expense 118

Net Investment Income (1,231)

Other additions 6

Total Additions 12,425

79

85

Deductions
Benefit payments 1,730
Refunds
Administrative expense
Other deductions, net

20,161

32,586

Total Deductions 1,730

10
1,265
25,319

1,730
10
1,265
25,319

Change in Net Assets 10,695

26,594

28,324

Net Assets Held In Trust
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 14,748

(6,433)

4,262

Net Assets at June 30 $ 25,443

14,748
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AGENCY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds account for monies held by the Commonwealth for custodial purposes only. Kentucky uses
the following Agency Funds:

Commonwealth Choice accounts for flexible benefits spending accounts.

Special Deposit Trust Fund accounts for monies held by the Commonwealth and are marked for
specific purposes such as employee withholdings.

County Sinking Fund accounts for monies generated through sale of bonds for specific uses by
the counties.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUNDS

JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Investments, net of amortization
Receivables, net
Interfund receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Interfund payables

Amounts held in custody for others
Total Liabilities

172

Commonw ealth

Special Deposit

Totals

Choice Program Trust Fund June 30, 2002
$ 85,900 85,900
22,864 22,864
113,926 113,926
4,962 4,962
2,705 2,705
$ 22,864 207,493 230,357
$ 143,023 143,023
2,314 2,314
22,864 62,156 85,020
$ 22,864 207,493 230,357




COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

COMMONWEALTH CHOICE PROGRAM

Assets
Cash with fiscal agents
Totalassets

Liabilities
Amounts held in custody for others
Total liabilities

COUNTY SINKING FUND
Assets
Cash with fiscal agents
Totalassets

Liabilities
Amounts held in custody for others
Total liabilities

SPECIAL DEPOSIT TRUST FUND
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Interfund receivables
Totalassets

Liabilities
Interfund payables
Accounts payable
Amounts held in custody for others
Total liabilities

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets

Cash & cash equivalents

Cash with fiscal agents

Investments

Accounts receivable

Interfund receivables
Totalassets

Liabilities
Interfund payables
Accounts payable
Amounts held in custody for others
Total liabilities

Balances

July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions
$ 17,813 $ 21,130 $ 16,079
$ 17,813 $ 21,130 $ 16,079
$ 17,813 $ 21,130 $ 16,079
$ 17,813 $ 21,130 $ 16,079
$ 283 $ $ 283
$ 283 $ $ 283
$ 283 $ $ 283
$ 283 $ $ 283
$ 97,651 $ 657,641 $ 669,392
130,625 113,926 130,625
7,278 4,962 7,278

2,705
$ 235,554 $ 779,234 $ 807,295
$ 3,781 $ 2,314 $ 3,781
8,937 143,023 8,937
222,836 508,712 669,392
$ 235,554 $ 654,049 $ 682,110
$ 97,651 $ 657,641 $ 669,392
18,096 21,130 16,362
130,625 113,926 130,625
7,278 4,962 7,278

2,705
$ 253,650 $ 800,364 $ 823,657
$ 3,781 $ 2,314 $ 3,781
8,937 143,023 8,937
240,932 529,842 685,754
$ 253,650 $ 675,179 $ 698,472
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$

Balances

June 30, 2002

22,864
22,864

22,864
22,864

85,900
113,926
4,962
2,705
207,493

2,314
143,023
62,156
207,493

85,900
22,864
113,926
4,962
2,705
230,357

2,314
143,023
85,020
230,357



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS-AUTHORITIES

Kentucky River Authority - responsible for the maintenance of the Commonwealth’ s locks and dams on the
Kentucky River.

Bluegrass State Skills Corporation - established to improve and promote the employment opportunities of
the citizens of the Commonwealth by assisting the Economic Development Cabinet in creating and
expanding programs of skill, training and education.

Kentucky School Facilities Construction Commission - established to assist local school districts in
meeting the school construction needs of the Commonwealth in a manner which will ensure an equitable
distribution of funds based upon unmet needs.

Kentucky State Fair Board - accounts for the revenues earned and expenses incurred in the commercial
operations of the State Fair Board.

Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation - established by the Genera Assembly to promote the growth
and development of the arts, convention trade, tourism and hotel industries within Jefferson County and the
Commonwealth. The Center has the responsibility of maintaining, operating and insuring the Kentucky
Center for the Arts building.

Kentucky Educational Television Authority - established by KRS 168.030 to produce and transmit
educational television programming to the citizens of the Commonwealth.

Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority - established in 1958 under KRS Chapter 154 to
promote industrial development, and authorized to issue industrial revenue bonds that do not constitute a
legal or moral obligation of the Commonweal th.

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority - established by KRS 164.742 to improve higher
education opportunities by insuring digible student loans and providing grants and scholarship awards to
eligible students.

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority - established in 1988 by KRS 224A.030, and amended, to assume all
powers, duties and obligations of the Kentucky Pollution Abatement and Water Resources Finance
Authority in assisting governmental agencies within the Commonwealth in constructing and acquiring
infrastructure projects.

Kentucky Agricultural Finance Corporation - created by the 1984 General Assembly to “improve and
promote the health, welfare and prosperity of the people of the Commonwealth through stimulation of
existing agricultural ventures.” This corporation helps banks and other financial institutions assist eligible
farmersin receiving low interest loans through the issuance of tax-exempt agricultural revenue bonds.

Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation - provides protection to grain producers in the event of the failure
of agrain dealer or grain warehouseman.

Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority - created in 1982 pursuant to Sections
441.605 through 441.695 of the KRS to provide an additional and alternative method for constructing,
improving, repairing, and financing regional and local jail facilities.

Kentucky Access - provides healthcare to Kentucky’ s qualifying applicants who are at high risk.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - AUTHORITIES

JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Kentucky
School Kentucky Kentucky
Kentucky Bluegrass Facilities Kentucky Center for Educational
River State Skills Construction State Fair the Arts Television
Authority Corporation Commission Board Corporation Authority
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,999 $ 1,506 $ 7,964 $ 1,287 2,449
Restricted cash 3,603
Investments, net of amortization
Accounts receivable, net 536 403 1,853 507 1,504
Interest receivable 14 4
Due from component units
Inventories 579
Prepaid expenses 541 362
Other current assets 354
Total Current Assets 6,138 403 1,506 10,358 2,170 4,890
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash 4,844
Long-term investments, net 21,284 847 5,420
Long-term receivables
Deferred charges 255 299
Land 441 14,073 129 76
Improvements other than buildings 83
Buildings 236,912 31,571 13,571
Machinery and equipment 412 4,748 12,994 39,384
Other fixed assets 12,880
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (3,300) (94,641) (23,809) (31,664)
Construction in progress 8,752 519
Total Capital Assets 10,516 169,844 20,885 21,886
Other assets 422 3,824
Total Noncurrent Assets 10,516 21,539 175,110 21,732 31,429
Total Assets 16,654 403 23,045 185,468 23,902 36,319
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 138 2 12,138 1,804 531 2,141
Accrued liabilities 18
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable 99
Bonds payable 47,669
Compensated absences 28 17 125 1,539
Claims liability
Deferred revenues 4,647 999 421
Other current liabilities 17
Total Current Liabilities 156 146 59,824 6,451 1,655 4,101
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable 554,453
Compensated absences 69 11 29
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 69 11 554,482
Total Liabilities 225 157 614,306 6,451 1,655 4,101
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 15,980 169,844 20,885 20,897
Restricted for:
Other purposes 457 4,844 8,710
Unrestricted (8) 246 (591,261) 4,329 1,362 2,611
Total Net Assets $ 16,429 246 $ (591,261) $ 179,017 $ 22,247 32,218
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Kentucky Kentucky Kentucky Local
Econom ic Higher Kentucky Kentucky Correctional
Development Education Kentucky Agricultural Grain Facilities Totals
Finance Assistance Infrastructure Finance Insurance Construction Kentucky June 30,
Authority Authority Authority Corporation Corporation Authority Access 2002
$ 41,005 $ 8,400 $ 59,211 34 $ 242 $ 16,317 $ 54,021 194,435
3,603
1,240 65,297 66,537
88 11,963 21,493 814 6,267 45,428
398 1,706 114 207 1,682 4,125
62 62
579
903
7,751 501 681 9,287
49,242 22,166 148,388 34 356 17,338 61,970 324,959
1,980 2,305 9,129
26,062 11,245 105,065 483 3,424 1,217 175,047
39,702 10,208 334,965 5,939 390,814
151 2,188 488 3,381
14,719
83
282,054
10,236 84 67,858
12,880
(34) (153,448)
9,271
10,236 50 233,417
411 4,657
66,175 33,820 442,268 483 3,424 9,949 816,445
115,417 55,986 590,656 517 3,780 27,287 61,970 1,141,404
45 1,215 189 346 662 19,211
1,962 1,945 3,925
99
300 14,480 1,845 64,294
1,709
5,531 5,631
386 6,453
2,544 134 2,695
45 3,477 17,213 2,191 8,658 103,917
8,240 208,118 30,587 801,398
109
8,240 208,118 30,587 801,507
45 11,717 225,331 32,778 8,658 905,424
3,827 50 231,483
53,312 67,323
115,372 40,442 365,275 517 3,780 (5,491) (62,826)
$ 115,372 $ 44,269 $ 365,325 517 $ 3,780 $ (5,491) $ 53,312 235,980
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS - AUTHORITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Program s Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Authorities
Kentucky River Authority $ 4,144 $ 1,351 $ 380 $ 2487 $ 74
Bluegrass State Skills Corporation 4,039 (4,039)
Kentucky School Facilities Construction
Commission 24,197 89,873 1,784 67,460
Kentucky State Fair Board 38,956 32,663 (6,293)
Kentucky Center for the Arts Corporation 10,052 2,571 1,628 621 (5,232)
Kentucky Educational Television Authority 27,652 5,395 4,069 267 (17,921)
Kentucky Economic Development Finance
A uthority 17,994 1,986 (16,008)
Kentucky Higher Education Assistance
A uthority 111,971 18,275 96,912 3,216
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 25,169 12,995 36,865 24,691
Kentucky Grain Insurance Corporation 127 103 (24)
Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities
Construction Authority 3,378 5,382 280 2,284
Kentucky Access 23,977 4,813 29,275 10,111
Totals $ 291,656 $ 175,407 $ 171,193 $ 3,375 $ 58,319
General Revenues:
Unrestricted grants and contributions 260
Unrestricted investment earnings 4,505
Gain on sale of capital assets 3,870
Miscellaneous general 18,356
Transfers 3,015
Total General Revenue and Transfers 30,006
Change in Net Assets 88,325
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 147,655
Net Assets at June 30 W
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS-AUTHORITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from customers - public

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employee salaries and benefits
Cash payments from other sources

Cash payments to other sources

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and equipment contracts
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of investment securities

Interest and dividends on investments
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Incom e to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)

Interest and other investment income
Miscellaneous nonoperating income (expense)

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in assets:

Receivables, net
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Change in fair value of investments
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities

Kentucky
School Kentucky
Facilities Agricultural
Construction Finance

Commission Corporation

Kentucky
Grain
Insurance
Corporation

Totals
June 30, 2002

$ 89,873 $ $ 131 $ 90,004
(27,764) (27,764)

(199) (199)

1,784 103 1,887
(23,977) (162) (24,139)
39,717 72 39,789
(43,674) (43,674)
(43,674) (43,674)

(47) (497) (544)

1,167 114 1,281

1,167 (47) (383) 737

(2,790) (47) (311) (3,148)

4,296 81 553 4,930

$ 1,506 § 34 3 242§ 1,782
$ 67,460 $ $ (24) % 67,436
1,770 1,770
(33,998) (33,998)

131 131

(256) (256)

5,180 (35) 5,145

46 46

(485) (485)

$ 39,717 % $ 72 $ 39,789
$ 212 $ 4 $ 30 $ 246
$ 212 $ 4 3 30 % 246
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NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS-UNIVERSITIES

Non-Major Component Units - Universities

UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE

The University and College Funds account for all transactions relating to the State supported universities
and the community colleges and technical schools. These ingtitutions maintain their own financia records
and are not part of the central accounting system operated by the Finance and Administration Cabinet. The
non-major component units-universities are:

Eastern Kentucky University
Western Kentucky University
Morehead State University
Murray State University
Northern Kentucky University
Kentucky State University
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS -UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES

JUNE 30,2002
(Expressed in Thousands)

Eastern
Kentucky
University

Western
Kentucky
University

Morehead
State
University

19,905

479
5,226

1,831

1,037

28,478

29,671
3,280
9,137

142,742

32,443

(100,667)
6,240

89,895

14,341

137,187

165,665

5,991
110
2,305
689

2,407

613

12,115

570
31,235
1,200

4,826

37,831

49,946

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,049 17,334
Restricted cash 3,244
Investments, net of amortization 18,936
Accounts receivable, net 14,839 11,267
Interestreceivable 493 353
Inventories 455 1,332
Prepaid expenses 13 653
Other current assets 154
Total Current Assets 74,785 34,337
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash 64,184
Long-term investments, net 1,977 12,295
Long-term receivables 4,696
Land 4,995 4,401
Improvements other than buildings 9,833 10,370
Buildings 153,108 112,099
Machinery and equipment 60,426 48,274
Other fixed assets 30,684
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (145,234) (101,748)
Construction in progress 51,867 27,011
Total Capital Assets 165,679 100,407
Other assets 378 5,312
Total Noncurrent Assets, Net 172,730 182,198
Total Assets 247,515 216,535
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals 7,521 3,627
Current portion of long-term debt:
Notes payable 286
Bonds payable 5,925 2,495
Capitallease obligations 910 539
Compensated absences 2,284 2,109
Claims liability 916
Deferred revenues 7,360 7,213
Payable from restricted assets 1,404
Other current liabilities 784 1,117
Total Current Liabilities 24,784 19,706
Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable 1,984
Bonds payable 41,485 18,210
Capitallease obligations 24,980 1,161
Compensated absences
Other long-term liabilities 5,993 31,621
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 72,458 52,976
Total Liabilities 97,242 72,682
Net Assets
Invested in capitalassets, netof related debt 92,757 46,895
Restricted for:
Debt service 8,016 3,982
Other purposes 37,791 76,921
Unrestricted 11,709 16,055
Total Net Assets $ 150,273 143,853

68,128

30,981
16,610
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Murray
State
University

Northern
Kentucky
University

Kentucky
State
University

Totals
June 30, 2002

126,235
4,305
27,325
41,738
2,406
5,987
1,852
1,959

211,807

110,070
69,085
14,207
29,029
34,706

802,105

199,486
30,684

(625,858)
114,108

584,260

81,438

859,060

1,070,867

32,450

1,278
19,055
3,266
9,742
2,052
30,320
2,465
4,368

104,996

4,723
157,092
40,082
415
51,275

253,587

358,583

18,730 24,398 5,819
1,061
7,910
4,225 2,012 4,169
687 873
1,608 258 503
481 705
686 56 26
26,417 29,363 18,427
21,491 24,395
4,626 5,107 15,409
4,099 2,132
5,546 3,695 1,255
7,215 5,120 2,168
146,181 155,897 92,078
16,637 32,533 9,173
(110,402) (86,183) (81,624)
19,693 1,825 7,472
84,870 112 887 30,522
53,441 353 7,613
168,527 144 874 53,544
194,944 174 237 71,971
5,888 6,796 2,627
520 362
2,285 4,190 1,855
158 970
3,094 1,385 870
1,136
8,985 3,418 937
1,061
628 658 568
22,694 18,840 6,857
1,164 1,005
17,387 36,850 11,925
1,866 10,875
415
5,157 3,073 605
25574 51,803 12,945
48,268 70,643 19,802
85,180 56,286 23,676
3,646
41,936 31,728 28,189
15,914 15,580 304
146,676 103,594 52,169

372,922

15,644
247,546
76,172
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS -UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20
(Expressed in Thousands)

02

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Ne't
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Program s Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Universities and Colleges
Eastern Kentucky University $ 170,411 $ 41,392 $ 60,676 $ 14,311 $ (54,032)
Western Kentucky University 165,992 57,619 1,682 (106,691)
Morehead State University 97,254 31,420 25,865 (39,969)
Murray State University 113,744 45,689 10,877 (57,178)
Northern Kentucky University 100,552 45,400 14,997 540 (39,615)
Kentucky State University 49,201 10,709 15,543 8,796 (14,153)
Total $ 697,154 $ 232,229 $ 129,640 $ 23,647 (311,638)
General Revenues:
Unrestricted grants and contributions 53,590
Unrestricted investment earnings 5,107
Gain on sale of capital assets (889)
Miscellaneous general 347,653
Total General Revenues and Transfers 405,461
Change in Net Assets 93,823
Net Assets at July 1, as Restated 618,461

Net Assets at June 30
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Section givesreport usersabetter historical perspective of financial information that may assist in ng current financial statusand
trends of the Commonwealth. In addition, certain demographic and economic data have been presented that will allow a broader understanding of the
economic and socia environment in which the State Government operates.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

REVENUES BY SOURCE

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THELAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Expressed in Thousands)

SOURCE 1993 1994 1995 1996
Taxes: Special Benefits $ $ $ $
Sales & Gross Receipts 2,442,419 2,539,066 2,739,653 2,873,176
Individual Income 1,676,263 1,870,096 1,964,960 2,080,418
Corporation Income 254,797 269,048 340,913 289,508
Property 353,711 370,200 386,389 409,175
License & Privilege 117,471 114,052 137,578 130,778
Severance 180,704 181,340 177,826 185,019
Inheritance & Estate 71,040 76,173 79,531 82,673
Miscellaneous 125,636 120,036 117,077 104,819
Total Taxes 5,222,041 5,540,011 5,943,927 6,155,566
Intergovernmental Revenue 2,687,598 2,657,925 3,307,139 3,394,888
Charges for Services 147,617 192,659 222,309 277,165
Licenses, Fees & Permits 161,510 134,161 160,975 163,331
Fines & Forfeitures 39,972 38,563 40,720 40,485
Interest & Investments 107,210 90,931 112,124 148,908
Other Income 123,951 93,683 133,506 133,524
Total Non-Tax Income 3,267,858 3,207,922 3,976,773 4,158,301
Total Revenues "$ 8,489,899 “$ 8,747,933 “$ 9,920,700 “$ 10,313,867
NOTE: Governmental Fund Types include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Fund
and the Debt Service Fund.
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THELAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Expressed in Thousands)
FUNCTIONS 1993 1994 1995 1996
General Government $ 444,901 $ 452,593 $ 418,256 $ 494,599
Legislative & Judicial 120,036 128,575 132,421 147,563
Commerce 37,279 37,656 42,430 42,704
Education & Humanities 2,578,179 2,663,797 2,835,220 2,962,449
Human Resources 3,129,059 3,077,162 3,818,430 3,819,907
Justice 229,972 232,221 255,424 282,999
Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection 83,481 105,920 110,509 96,094
Public Protection and
Regulation 83,322 79,816 86,411 94,124
Transportation 874,160 843,456 980,083 1,061,589
Capital Outlay 149,910 79,707 82,040 79,245
Debt Service 284,323 357,122 416,756 392,130
Total Expenditures “$ 8,014,622 ~$ 8,058,025 "$ 9,177,980 “$ 9,473,403
SOURCE: Commonwealth of Kentucky Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
NOTE: Governmental Fund Types include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Fund

and the Debt Service Fund.
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1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
$ $ $ $ $ $ 1,195
3,018,770 3,167,442 3,255,990 3,546,343 3,609,499 3,697,903
2,201,574 2,390,823 2,538,948 2,701,349 2,768,302 2,681,443
291,536 338,354 312,579 307,939 288,418 211,382
440,973 405,528 424,471 440,438 457,216 480,890
145,178 162,122 170,480 139,922 146,422 120,902
185,744 187,126 173,094 169,154 177,774 187,588
93,962 105,550 79,168 76,751 83,267 89,753
109,451 114,903 120,765 3,390 3,203 3,653
6,487,188 6,871,848 7,075,495 7,385,286 7,534,101 7,474,709
3,625,241 3,809,686 3,825,985 4,602,881 4,208,631 4,821,756
262,366 289,555 298,952 359,782 426,173 506,924
164,557 170,454 188,304 203,608 200,239 308,209
48,538 47,265 53,024 49,986 54,297 54,169
155,878 191,986 140,328 163,893 232,100 201,933
193,206 218,883 185,881 230,325 616,361 406,869
4,449,786 4,727,829 4,692,474 5,610,475 5,737,801 6,299,860

~$ 10,936,974 “$ 11,599,677 “$ 11,767,969 ~$ 12,995,761 ~$ 13,271,902 $ 13,774,569

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
$ 593,500 $ 652,980 $ 556,913 $ 541,008 $ 672,605 $ 2,036,798
150,604 165,645 186,168 212,978 216,608 239,515
44,408 45,953 49,927 52,941 51,283 58,741
3,076,843 3,187,712 3,250,456 3,351,422 3,442,741 3,584,412
4,208,762 4,253,354 4,368,927 5,109,752 5,110,365 5,563,087
340,100 402,149 451,532 511,106 553,499 564,427
103,356 112,923 120,938 125,724 127,048 143,924
105,763 115,479 130,245 131,350 124,725 120,764
1,092,563 1,135,102 1,356,322 1,502,356 1,588,052 1,724,061
99,702 135,106 266,165 225,409 309,011 483,145
332,127 438,029 357,698 302,708 410,058 337,546

~$ 10,147,728 “$ 10,644,432 ~$ 11,095,291 ~$ 12,066,754 “$ 12,605,995

$ 14,856,420



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

DESCRIPTIONOF TAX SOURCES-ALL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDTYPES

JUNE 30, 2002

SALESAND USE -OnJduly 1,1960, Kentucky becamethe34th stateto
enact asalesand usetax. Althoughthetax wasbroad based at thetime
of itsinception, the salesand usetax hasbeen significantly eroded over
the years with the passage of numerous exemptions. This has been
partially offset with rateincreasesin 1968 (3%t0 5%) and 1990 (5%to
6%0), and expansion of thetax basein 1985 to cover leasesand rentals
of tangible persona property. Effective January 1, 2001, the salestax
base expanded to includeinterstate communications services. During
fiscal year 2001, thesalesand usetax continuedto bethesecondlargest
generator of General Fund revenuefor the Commonweslth.

COAL SEVERANCE -Kentucky’ scod severancetax becameeffective
April 1,1972, andwasintended torepl aceamajor portionof therevenue
expected to belost by theexemption of groceriesfromthe salestax. It
wasthefirst mgjor severancetax anongthestates. Theinitia rateof 4
percent onthegrossval ueof coal minedin Kentucky or thirty centsper
ton, whichever is greater, was raised to 4.5 percent of the grossvalue
of coal minedorfifty centsperton, whicheverisgreater,in1976. In1978,
the statuteswererevised to include thetaxation of coal processing and
add adeduction from the gross value for the cost of transportation. A
1986 amendment providedthat cod producingand coal impact counties
weretoreceiveaminimumof 10 percent of coa severanceandprocessing
taxes for FY 1986-87 and 12 percent for subsequent years. The
percentage hasincreased over theyearsto aleve of approximately 40
percent for FY 2001-02. The 2000 session of the General Assembly
produced|egidationthat allowedfor atax credit of 2.25 percentto 3.75
percent of thegrossva ueof coal produced fromthinseamsof coa from
newly permitted production.

MOTOR FUEL S-1n1920, Kentucky becamethefifth statetoadopt a
gasolinetax. Theinitial rateof .01 cent per gallonreached .05 centsper
gallonby 1926. EffectiveApril 1, 1948, thetax per gallonwasraisedto
.07 cents, withtwo-seventh of thetotal set asidefor rural and secondary
roads. OnJuly 1, 1962, administration of the motor fuelsusetax was
transferredfromtheDepartment of RevenuetotheDepartment of Motor
Transportation, andon July 1, 1972, thetax rateincreased to ninecents
per gallon. EffectiveJuly 1, 1980, theratewas changed to 9 percent of
thewei ghted averagewhol esal etank wagon pricefor salein Kentucky.
In no case shall the average wholesal e price be deemed to belessthan
onedollar andel evencentsper gallon, nor morethanonedollar andfifty
centsper gallon. On July 1, 1986, the tax on gasolineand LP gaswas
increasedfivecentsper gallonandthetax onspecial fuel swasincreased
two centsper galon. Thecurrent total motor fuelstax ratesare$.15 per
gallon on gasolineand liquefied petroleum gasand $.12 per gallonon
specid fuels.

MOTORVEHICLEUSAGETAX-Motorvehideswereorigindlytaxed
under the 3 percent grossreceiptstax that wasre-pealedin 1936. After
repeal, aspecial 3 percent tax on motor vehicleswasenacted. Thistax
isbased onthe“retail price” of themotor vehiclesasdefined by statute.
Thetax wasincreased to 5 percent on April, 1968 and to 6 percent on
July 1, 1990. Thetax ispaidtothe county clerk whenavehicleisfirst
registered intheowner’ sname. Theproceedsderived fromthetax are
depositedtotheRoad Fundfor useintheconstructionand maintenance
of Kentucky’ s roads and bridges.

MOTORVEHICLEREGISTRATION-The1936Generd Assembly
fixedaflat $4.50registrationfee(plus.05 centsfor theCounty Clerk) for
passenger cars. Similar feeswereenactedin 1938for farmtrucksandin
1944 for churchbuses, water well drillers, and certainwreckers. Truck
licenseswerechangedtoagraduated grossweight” basisin1964. The
current$11.50feefor passenger cars, farmtrucks, andthelightest trucks
waspassedin1968. Effective January 1,1993therewasanadditiona $.50
addedto cover thecost of reflectorizing plates(KRS186.240(2)(c)). In
1973, dl motor vehicleregistrationfunctionsweretransferredfromthe
Department of Revenue to the Department of Transportation. The
apportioned registration of commercial vehiclesbegan April 1, 1974.
Current ratesfor heavier trucksrange from $24 (6,001-10,0001bs.) to
$1,250.50 (73,281-80,0001bs.) withextended weli ght tagsavailablefor
coal haulers.

INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX - Theindividual incometax became
effectiveforincomeearned during calendar year 1936 and produced
itsfirst revenueduring fiscal year 1936-37. Theinitial ratesranged
from 2 percent onthefirst $3,000 of incometo 5 percent on all over
$5,000. In1950, arateof 6 percent wasimposed onincomeinexcess
of $8,000. In 1954, Kentucky becamethefourth statetoimplement
awithholding system and also adopted the federal definition of net
income. Currently, net income is computed using the Internal
RevenueCodeineffect on December 31, 2001 for tax yearsbeginning
after December 31, 2001, modifiedfor Kentucky differencesbetween
federal and Kentucky tax laws. Primary differencesincludethetax
treatment of pensionincome(excludableupto $38,775in2002) and
interest on federal obligations. The rates applied to net income
whichremainunchangedsince 1950 are: 2 percent of thefirst $3,000;
3 percent of the next $1,000; 4 percent of the next $1,000; 5 percent
of the next $3,000; and 6 percent of the excess over $8,000. The
personal tax credit of $20 went into effect in 1961 and a standard
deduction of $650wasadoptedin1976. The 1996 General Assembly
increased the standard deduction over a period of four years to
$1,700for 2000. Thestandard deduction isindexed annually based
onchangesinthe CPIU andiscurrently set at $1,800for 2002. A low
incometax credit of 5 percent to 100 percent for single persons or
married coupleswith adjusted grossincome of $25,000 or lesswas
enacted in 1990. A child and dependent care credit equal to 20
percent of the Federal credit isalso allowed.
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CORPORATION INCOME TAX - The corporate income tax was
enacted to first apply to calendar year 1936 income. Therate was 4
percent of net income assigned to Kentucky after deduction of federal
incometaxes. Thisratewas changedto 4.5 percent in 1950 and again
to 5 percent of thefirst $25,000 of taxableincomeand 7 percent of al in
excessthereof in1956. IN1972, thefederal tax deductionwasremoved
andthestateratereduced to4 percent of thefirst $25,000and 5.8 percent
ontheexcess. TaxratesbeginningonJanuary 1, 1980, were: first$25,000
at 3percent; next $25,000at 4 percent; next $50,000at 5percent; andthe
excess over $100,000 a 6 percent. The 1985 Specia Session of the
Generd Assembly passed the Kentucky Equity Tax Act (KETA) into
law. KETA mandated a State depreciation system separate from the
federal system. Thisnew Kentucky systemallowed corporatetaxpayers
to recover the entire cost of property through depreciation compared
to recovery of 71 percent of cost using the Accelerated Cost Recovery
System (ACRYS) asadjustedfor under prior Kentucky Law. KETA aso
added anew graduated rate of 7.25 percent of taxableincomein excess
of $250,000 of taxabl eincomeeffectiveAugust 1, 1985.

The1990Generd Assembly replacedtheK entucky depreciationsystem
withthedepreciation and expensedeductionsallowed by Sections 168
and 179 of theInternal Revenue Codein effect on December 31, 1989,
effectivefor property placedinserviceafter December 31,1989. Thetax
ratesbeginning on January 1, 1990 are; first $25,000 at 4 percent; next
$25,000at 5percent; next $50,000at 6 percent; next $150,000at 7 percent;
andall over $250,000at 8.25 percent.

The1994 General Assembly amended KRS141.0101 tomakeK entucky
depreciation rules consistent with federal depreciation rules for all
assets, regardlessof when placedinservice, effectivefor taxableyears,
beginning after December 31, 1993. To account for this change in
depreciation rules, each taxpayer must determine the amount of any
difference in Kentucky adjusted basis and federal adjusted basis
(transitionamount) asof thefirst day of thefirst taxableyear beginning
after December 31, 1993. Thetransition amount must be added to or
subtracted from grossincomein thefirst taxable year beginning after
December 31,1993, if theamount doesnot exceed $100,000 or inequal
amountsover 4yearsif theamount exceeds$100,000 or thetaxpayer so
elects.

The1996 Genera Assembly amendedKRS141.120toprohibit affiliated
corporationsfromfiling combined K entucky incometax returnsusing
theunitary businessconcept and allowsaffiliated corporationsto el ect
tofile consolidated Kentucky income tax returns, with such election
being binding for 96 consecutive caendar months.

Effectivefor tax yearsbeginningonor after January 1, 2002, netincome
iscomputed usingthel nternal RevenueCodeineffect onDecember 31,
201

Changestothefederal incometax law made after thelnternal Revenue
Code reference date of December 31, 2001 do not apply to Kentucky
taxpayers unless adopted by the Kentucky General Assembly. The
Generad Assembly has not adopted the thirty percent federal bonus
depreciation, fiveyear net operatinglosscarry-back and other provisions
of the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2002.

PROPERTY TAX - Kentucky has levied a property tax since the
cregtionof thestatein1792. Priorto1934, theproperty tax wastheState' s
major revenuesource. Inthat year, an attempt toremovethetax onresl
estatewasruled unconstitutional. Thetax ratewasthen reduced from
30 centsto 5 centsper $100 assessed value. The 1965 Special Session
of theGenerd Assembly further reducedtherateonrea estatefromfive
centsto 1.5 cents and on tangible property from 50 centsto 15 cents.
HouseBill 4, passedinthe1976regul ar sessi onof theGeneral Assembly,
established the power equalization program for school funding and
raisedthe Statetax rateonreal property from 1.5 centsto 31.5 centsper
$100 of assessed value and the tax rate on tangible persona property
from 15 centsto 45 cents per $100 of assessed vaue. Thisincreasein
the State property tax rate was accompanied by a30 cents per $100 of
assessed value decrease in local school tax rates. The tax rate on
intangible personal property, which is not subject to local rates,
remained a 25 cents per $100. House Bill 44, enacted by the 1979
extreordinary legidative session, established a new rate setting
mechanism which limited the increase in aggregate revenues for all
taxing districtsingeneral, and specificaly limited the Stateratefor real
estate to no greater than necessary to provide a4 percent increase in
revenuefromyeartoyear. Asaresult, the Statetax rateonreal property
hasdropped57 percentfrom31.5centsper $100in 1978to 13.5centsper
$100in2002.

The 1996 General Assembly repeal ed thebank sharesproperty tax and
enacted abank franchisetax for statetax purposesand alocal deposits
franchisetax for local tax purposes. A discussion of thebank franchise
taxfollows.

INHERITANCEANDESTATETAX —InheritanceTaxisatax onthe
right to receive property uponthedeath of theowner. Thetax ratesand
exemptions are based on the relationship of the beneficiary to the
decedent. The Kentucky inheritance tax began in 1906 and taxed all
beneficiariesother thannearest rel atives. Beneficiariestaxedweregiven
a$500 exemption. Many changes have been enacted over theyearsto
theinheritancetax, however, the Kentucky estate tax that wasenacted
in 1936, hasnot been changed. TheKentucky estatetax isequal tothe
amount that the state death tax credit all owableunder thefederd estate
tax law exceedsthetotal inheritancetax paid.
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A major changewasmadein 1985totheK entucky inheritancetax when
a surviving spouse was given an exemption of the total amount
inherited. Effective for dates of death on or after July 1, 1995, the
inheritance tax for parents, children (natural, step, or adopted),
grandchildren, brothers (haf or whole) and sisters (half or whole) was
phased out over afour year period. Theexemption during the phaseout
periodwasthegresater of theexemption permitted under thepre-July 1,
1995Iaw or apercentageof theinheritableinterest. Theinheritancetax
for these beneficiaries was completely phased-out for deaths that
occurred after June 30, 1998. If the entire estate passes to exempt
beneficiaries there may not be any Kentucky inheritance tax due, but
there could be Kentucky estate tax dueif the estate islarge enough to
requirethat a Federal Estate Tax Return befiled and a state death tax
creditisallowed.

Other beneficiaries such as nieces, nephews, daughters-in-law, sons-
in-law, great-grandchildren, cousinsand rel ativeswerenot affected by
the 1995 phase out of theinheritancetax. All transfersto educational,
religious or other institutions whose sole purpose are to carry on
charitable, educational, or religiouswork areexempt fromtheK entucky
inheritancetax.

PROVIDER TAX - HouseBill 250, enacted during the 1994 Regular
Sessionof theGeneral Assembly, continued theK entucky Health Care
Provider Tax. Thebill,whichwaseffectiveJduly 15,1994, imposeda2.5
percent tax on gross revenues received by dl providers of hospital
services, a2 percent tax on grossrevenuesreceived by other providers
of specifiedhealth careitemsor services, and a25 cent tax per outpatient
prescriptiondrug dispensed by pharmaci esor other personsdispensing
outpatient prescription drugs (KRS Chapter 142). The purpose of the
Hedth CareProvider Taxistohd pfundKentucky’ s$2hbillionMedicad
program. TheM edicaidprogramisajointfederal statemedical assistance
programthat isoperated and administered by thestate. Approximately
25 percent of thefunding for the program is provided by the statewith
the remaining 75 percent being funded by the federal government.

KRS Chapter 142 was amended in 1996 to phase out the health care
provider tax on physician services. Therateis1 percent for the period
July 1, 1997, through June 30, 1998; and 0.5 percent for July 1, 1998,
through June 30, 1999. Thetax on physician serviceshasbeen entirely
removed asof July 1, 1999.

KRSChapter 142wasamendedin 1998to phaseout thetax onoutpatient
prescription drugs. The tax on outpatient prescription drugs will be
reduced from 25 centsto 15 centsper prescriptionfor theperiod July 1,
1999, through June20, 2000. Effectiveduly 1, 2000, thetax onoutpatient
prescription drugs expired.

BANK FRANCHI SE TAX - HouseBill 416 as enacted by the 1996
Genera Assembly created thebank franchisetax. Thetax isimposed
on any financial ingtitution which obtains or solicits businessfrom 20
or more personswithinthe Commonwealth or hasrecei ptsattributable
tosourcesintheCommonweal thwhichequal or exceed $100,000. The
bank franchi setax i sbased onafive-year averageof net capital accounts
reflected onthequarterly reportsof condition filed with the applicable
federa regulatory ingtitution. Theminimumtaxis$300peryear. Because
HB 416iseffectivefor the calendar year 1996, thefirst tax returnsand
paymentsweredueon March 15, 1997.

Effectivefor tax yearsbeginningafter December 31,1997, KRS136.500
wasamendedin1998todefinetheterm* Kentucky obligations’ tomean
all obligations of the Commonwedlth of Kentucky, its counties,
munici palities, taxing districts, and school districts, exempt fromtaxation
under the Kentucky Revised Statutes and the Kentucky Congtitution.
Theamendment allowsasadeduction from capital anamount equal to
the same percentage of total capital as the book value of Kentucky
obligations bears to the book value of the total assets of the financial
ingtitution. Additionally, the quarterly averages of net capital and
deductionsfor United Statesand Kentucky obligationswill bedivided
by four, without regardtotheactua existenceof thefinancial institution.
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ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUEOF TAXABLE PROPERTY
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1992 - 2001

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio Data)

Ratio of Total

Assessed
Real Property Personal Property Totals to Total
For the Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
Year Ended Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Actual
December 31 Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
1992 $ 78,150,012 $ 87,809,002 $ 140,219,154 $ 140,219,154 $ 218,369,166 $ 228,028,156 95.8%
1993 82,268,682 89,422,480 141,750,516 141,750,516 224,019,198 231,172,996 96.9%
1994 89,570,464 95,287,728 153,225,083 153,225,083 242,795,547 248,512,811 97.7%
1995 94,579,246 100,616,219 161,791,401 161,791,401 256,370,647 262,407,620 97.7%
1996 101,534,494 108,015,419 152,832,983 152,832,983 254,367,477 260,848,402 97.5%
1997 108,116,208 115,017,243 126,697,050 126,697,050 234,813,258 241,714,293 97.1%
1998 115,597,215 122,975,761 135,357,598 135,357,598 250,954,813 258,333,359 97.1%
1999 124,798,246 132,764,091 138,392,876 138,392,876 263,191,122 271,156,967 97.1%
2000 134,604,823 143,196,620 141,579,703 141,579,703 276,184,526 284,776,323 97.0%
2001 144,947,137 154,199,082 148,966,508 148,966,508 293,913,645 303,165,590 96.9%
SOURCE: Kentucky Revenue Cabinet
NOTE: Assessed values are established through the utilization of an annual ad valorem tax based on the fair value of property.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
FOR FISCAL YEARS 1992 - 2001

(Expressed in Thousands Except Percentages)

Percent of Total

For the Year Total Current Tax Percent of Levy Delinquent Tax Total Tax Tax Collections
Ended June 30 Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections to Tax Levy
1992 $ 356,238 $ 329,783 92.6% $ 8,765 $ 338,548 95.0%
1993 374,257 345,089 92.2% 9,669 354,758 94.8%
1994 392,652 357,996 91.2% 12,204 370,200 94.3%
1995 417,799 377,710 90.4% 17,615 395,325 94.6%
1996 424,505 391,977 92.3% 17,200 409,177 96.4%
1997 410,755 399,759 97.3% 15,099 414,858 101.0%
1998 365,014 349,774 95.8% 13,019 362,793 99.4%
1999 377,835 358,478 94.9% 11,927 370,405 98.0%
2000 402,428 371,715 92.4% 15,543 387,258 96.2%
2001 416,503 386,890 92.9% 20,605 407,495 97.8%

SOURCE: Kentucky Revenue Cabinet
NOTE: Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 of each year in one of two ways: 1) by the 120 Property Valuation
Administrators w ithin the State, or 2) by the Revenue Cabinet. The tax rates are set by the various taxing jurisdictions
and applied to the particular assessment. Tax bills are delivered by September 15 of each year. Also, the "Total Tax Levy" in
this table has been re-specified for the years show n to adjust for the fact that the receipts for motor vehicles involve two
different assessment years.

191



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
RATIO OF GENERAL LONG-TERM BONDED DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUEAND DEBT PER CAPITA

FOR THELAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio and Per Capita Debt)

For the Year Estim ated

Ended June 30 Population
1993 3,792
1994 3,823
1995 3,855
1996 3,881
1997 3,908
1998 3,934
1999 3,961
2000 3,988
2001 4,015
2002 4,066

SOURCE:

NOTE:

Projected

$

Assessed

Value

224,019,198

242,795,547
256,370,647
254,367,477
235,805,417
251,976,181
263,191,122
276,184,525
293,913,645

303,875,000 Estimated

General Bonded Debt

General Long-Term Ratio to
Bonded Debt Assessed Value Per Capita

$ 3,144,038 1.4% $ 829
3,098,553 1.3% 811
3,133,332 1.2% 813
3,134,342 1.2% 808
3,133,332 1.3% 802
2,833,433 1.1% 720
2,178,683 0.8% 550
2,315,533 0.8% 581
2,944,839 1.0% 733
680,085 0.2% 167

U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, provided by Kentucky Economic Development Cabinet.
General long-term bonded debt includes adjustments to eliminate bonds accounted for by Proprietary Funds,

State Universities, and adjustments to updated amortization schedules, bonds redeemed prior to scheduled

maturity, and correction of maturity.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
TOTAL EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS
FOR THELAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Ratio Data)

For the Year
Ended June 30

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

SOURCE:

General

Long - Term
Debt Service

$

284,323
357,122
416,756
392,130
332,127
438,029
357,698
302,708
410,058
232,106

Total
Expenditures

$

8,014,622
8,058,025
9,177,980
9,473,403
10,147,728
10,644,432
11,095,291
12,066,754
12,605,995
14,856,420

Commonwealth of Kentucky Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1992-2001

For the Year
Ended December 31

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

SOURCE:

Estim ated

Population

3,756,358
3,792,288
3,823,215
3,855,248
3,881,051
3,907,816
3,934,310
3,960,825
4,041,769
4,065,556

Per Capita
Income

$ 17,320

17,815
18,514
19,215
20,155
21,215
22,353
23,237
24,057
25,057

Unemployment
Rate
6.9%
6.2%
5.4%
5.4%
5.6%
5.4%
4.6%
4.5%
4.1%
5.5%

U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census; U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis;
Kentucky Cabinet for Human Resources

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1992-2001
(Expressed in Thousands, Except Number of Units)

Non-Residential
Construction

Residential
Construction

Number

Value of Units
$ 677,181 14,689
797,365 15,907
801,728 18,554
1,247,662 17,625
See Note 18,778
See Note 18,114
See Note 20,640
See Note 21,581
See Note 18,460
See Note 17,685

Bank

Value Deposits

$ 1,023,682 34,882,000
1,172,971 35,112,000
1,370,011 37,352,000
1,276,432 37,893,000
1,484,079 39,769,000
1,483,895 38,247,000
1,730,505 39,921,000
1,909,051 37,173,000
1,767,181 48,345,000
1,817,684 52,519,000

U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census; Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

For the Year Number
Ended December 31 of Units
1992 8,437
1993 8,952
1994 10,024
1995 10,025
1996 See Note
1997 See Note
1998 See Note
1999 See Note
2000 See Note
2001 See Note
SOURCE:
NOTE:

Beginning January 1996, the Bureau of Census, Building Permits Section has discontinued
collection of Nonresidential Data due to budget reductions.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
SOURCES OF PERSONAL INCOME
FOR CALENDAR YEARS 1992-2001
(BExpressed in Thousands, Except Percent Data)

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996
Source Amount  Percent Amount  Percent Amount  Percent Amount  Percent Amount  Percent

Farm $ 1218102 27% $ 1,038,066 22% $ 1062592 21% $ 651984 13% $ 1,005924 1.8%
Agriculture Services,

Forestry, Fisheries

and Others 292,038 0.6% 337,604 0.7% 319,445 0.6% 341,495 0.7% 343,124  0.6%
Mining 1,491,082 3.3% 1,426,899 3.0% 1,435,725 2.9% 1,322,910 2.6% 1,280,840 2.4%
Manufacturing 9,774,810 21.4% 10,274,871 21.5% 10,975,287 21.9% 11,424,900 22.1% 11,589,170 21.3%
Construction 2,463,938 5.4% 2,684,113 5.6% 2,875,033 5.7% 2,877,756  5.6% 3,076,508 5.7%
Wholesale and Retail

Trade 6,608,880 14.4% 6,911,573 14.5% 7,355,968 14.7% 7,828,796 15.1% 8,196,534 15.1%
Fnance, Insurance and

Real Estate 2,075570 4.5% 2,354,124  4.9% 2,330,102  4.7% 2,469,422 4.8% 2,638,070 4.8%
Transportation and

Public Utilities 3,179,558 7.0% 3,321,852  7.0% 3,577,361 7.1% 3,702,916 7.2% 3923834 7.2%
Services 9,382,867 20.5% 9,951,554 20.9% 10,454,944  20.9% 11,128,883 21.5% 11,967,410 22.0%

Government and
Government Enterprises 9,261,611  20.2% 9,389,110 19.7% 9,692,029 19.4% 10,032,371 19.4% 10,424,575 19.1%

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
Source Amount  Percent Amount  Percent Amount  Percent Amount  Percent Amount  Percent

Farm $ 1,089,167 19% $ 952853 16% $ 517624 08% $ 1483888 22% $ 973,207 1.4%
Agriculture Services,

Forestry, Fisheries

and Others 381,648 0.7% 418,171  0.7% 459,520 0.7% 486,861 0.7% 521,541 0.7%
Mining 1,285,507 2.2% 1,349,932 2.2% 1,317,251  2.1% 1,271,373  1.9% 1,335,332 1.9%
Manufacturing 12,115,128 21.0% 12,627,586 20.8% 13,250,867 20.7% 13,801,043 20.1% 13,636,644 19.3%
Construction 3,327,837 5.8% 3,564,392 5.9% 3,860,806 6.0% 4,185,053 6.1% 4,330,048 6.1%
Wholesale and Retail

Trade 8,799,702 15.3% 9,416,822 15.5% 10,058,449 15.7% 10,443,036 15.2% 10,697,978 15.2%
Fnance, Insurance and

Real Estate 2,879,267 5.0% 3,047,100 5.0% 3,179,882 5.0% 3,683,236 5.4% 3,775,760 5.4%
Transportation and

Public Utilities 4,139,835 7.2% 4,606,622 7.6% 4,900,018 7.6% 5,351,130 7.8% 5493532 7.8%
Services 12,756,562 22.1% 13,696,971 22.5% 14,746,767 23.0% 15,582,556 22.7% 16,509,978 23.4%

Government and
Government Enterprises 10,820,700 18.8% 11,137,773 18.3% 11,772,286 18.4% 12,397,504 18.0% 13,225,469 18.8%

SOURCE Kentucky Cabinet for Economic Development, Division of Research
NOTE Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
TOP 10 MANUFACTURERS
(Ranked by Number of Employees)

2002
Number Number
of of
Company Plants Employees

Ford Motor Company 2 10,900
General Electric Company 6 9,725
Toyota Motor Corporation 3 8,714
Johnson Controls, Incorporated 16 5,109
Lexmark International Group 1 5,000
Dana Corporation 14 4,592
Toyota Tsusho 9 3,821
Emerson Electric Company 7 2,641
Publishers Printing 2 2,583
R.R. Donnelly and Sons Company 2 2,299

SOURCE:

2002 Kentucky Directory of Manufacturers, Harris InfoSource in cooperation with the Kentucky Cabinet for Economic Development.
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
JUNE 30, 2002

Adoption of Kentucky Constitution
Form of Government

Land Area (square miles)

Miles of Highways, Roads and Streets

Police Protection:

Statewide Jurisdiction
Number of Kentucky State Police Posts
Number of Sworn Officers
Number of Other Statewide Agencies
Number of Officers

County Jurisdictions
Number of Sheriffs
Number of Deputies
Number of County Departments
Number of County Officers

Local Jurisdictions
Number of Departments
Number of Sworn Officers

College and Universities
Number of Departments
Number of Sworn Officers

Other law Enforcement/Task Forces/Airport Security/

County Schools Security

Number of Departments
Number of Sworn Officers

Higher Education:

State Supported Universities and Community Colleges
Number of Campuses
Number of Full-Time Instructional Faculty
Number of Students, Fall 2001

Private Colleges and Universities
Number of Campuses
Number of Full-Time Instructional Faculty
Number of Students, Fall 2001

State Supported Recreation:
Number of Resort Parks
Number of Recreation Parks
Number of Historic Sites
Area of State Parks (acres)
Number of 2002 Overnight Visitors

Permanent Full-Time Executive Branch Employees

SOURCES: Kentucky Revised Statutes
Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
Kentucky State Police
Kentucky Council on Post Secondary Education
Kentucky Department of Parks
Kentucky Personnel Cabinet
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1792

Legislative, Executive, Judicial
39,650

78,912

16
954

476

120
1,515
11
618

250
3,892

144

13
173

22
5,616
158,084

21
1,420
29,168

17

22

10
43,948
503,445

37,219
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Paul E. Patton, Governor

On the front cover: The Kentucky Floral Clock

The Kentucky Floral Clock was dedicated on May 4, 1961, by The Garden Club of Kentucky in co-sponsorship with the Commonwealth.
Kentucky'sis one of the largest of this type in the world.
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